Phoenix Journal #218



By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

Table Of Contents

INTRODUCTION	1
CHAPTER 1	2
THU., OCT. 30, 1997	
HALLOWEEN AND APRIL'S FOOL DAY	2
MARKET DIVE	2
CHAPTER 2	9
SAT., NOV. 15, 1997	9
GUEST EDITORIAL, HATONN	9
AND IN MEETINGS—	
OTHER TOPICS OF THIS DAY, SUCH AS IRAQ	13
IS THE CHINESE TAKEOVER OF THE LONG BEACH NAVAL DEPOT OFF?	14
HEALTH AND ENTERTAINMENT	17
CHAPTER 3	
SUN., NOV. 16, 1997	18
MISCELLANEOUS CURRENT EVENTS	18
IMPEACHMENT UNDER "HOUSE" INVESTIGATION	18
JAPANESE MARKET TUMBLE?	
BUT WHAT IS THIS "GRAND DESIGN"?	20
SO, WHAT OF THIS "SECRET" GERM FIND?	
by: TIM WEINER [Khazarian writer],	
AND, WHAT OF THE MURDERS IN PAKISTAN?	21
CHAPTER 4	29
TUE., NOV. 18, 1997	29
CHAPTER 5	35
WED., NOV. 19, 1997	35
AND ON AND ON IT GOES!	35
OTHER WARNINGS IN THE CURRENT NEWSCAST	
OUTBREAKS OF CONTAMINATION IN THE FOOD SUPPLY	
"O" IS FOR OUTBREAK	37
CHAPTER 6	43
FRI., NOV. 21, 1997	
BUT HOW COULD CONTAMINATION BEACCOMPLISHED OTHER THAN	
THAT ALREADY PRESENT?	
CHAPTER 7	49
SAT., NOV. 22, 1997	
SMALL PROBLEMS	
STEALTH THAT FITS IN YOUR HAND by George Seffers and Mark Walsh	
WONDER WEAPONS by Douglas Pasternak	53
CHAPTER 8	59
TUE NOV 25 1997	59

THIS IS THE WINTER OF OUR DISCONTENT?	59
WEALTH IS NOT GOOD HEALTH	62
JAPAN	63
EXCEPT THROUGH ME, ETC.	64
CHAPTER 9	
SUN., DEC. 7, 1997	65
ZITA'S MEMORIAL GATHERING	65
CHAPTER 10	69
MON., DEC. 15, 1997	69
NEW WORLD ORDER	
ON THE INTERNATIONAL CONSPIRACY: FOREWORD	73
C. Berentemfel, 1989	73
THE "CONSPIRACY AGAINST SOUTH AFRICA"	74
THE SECRET SOCIETIES	75
THE REVOLUTIONARIES	76
THE ILLUMINATI	76
THE UNITED NATIONS	77
CHAPTER 11	80
TUE., DEC. 16, 1997	
ANTHRAX NIGHTMARE FROM GREECE THIS MORNING	82
THE ONSLAUGHT ON SOUTH AFRICA	85
THE ATTEMPTED COUP	85
THE ONE-WORLDERS' RESPONSE WAS AN	
ATTEMPT TO TAKE SOUTH AFRICA BY FORCE	85
THE TRUTH ABOUT REFORM	
THE ENEMY WITHIN	86
CHAPTER 12	
WED., DEC. 17, 1997	
WHO HAS THE HEAVIEST LOAD?	
IS MIND SLAVERY THE HUMAN FUTURE?	89
THE PRESENT SCENARIO	
ROLE OF THE LIBERALS	92
FACING FACTS	
OPPOSING THE WORLD REVOLUTION	
THERE IS NO "FAILURE" WITHIN THE LIGHT OF GOD	100
CHAPTER 13	
FRI., DEC. 19, 1997	
DISTRACTIONS OR ATTENTION-NECESSARY?	
ANTHRAX	101
LIGHT SHOWS	
FORCE AND POWER	
SO—WHEN?	
CHAPTER 14	
FRI DEC. 19, 1997	
AND THEN THERE WERE NONE	109

GLOBAL.	2000		1()(
	2000	***************************************	1,	•

INTRODUCTION

Many are the ways that evil uses to seduce the weak, lazy and blind into becoming traitors to their own souls and to all humanity.

Presented in the following pages is information on how ones who know what they are doing are leading those who are either too blind to see, too weak to resist, have too big of an ego to care, are too greedy to care, are too crazed to care and/or are too intimidated or blackmailed to do what they know is right, into total enslavement or death.

These individuals and groups of people are involved in giving or selling large parts of our country—such as Long Beach Naval Depot, huge National Parks, Rivers Monuments (such as Independence Hall), and hundreds of thousands of public lands and private lands—to our mortal enemies. In addition they have given and are still giving them hundreds of billions of dollars.

Presented also are articles on new weapons and old weapons and how they are being used against us all over this globe to conquer and enslave us.

By being informed with the enclosed information we will be better ready to withstand the onslaught of these webs of evil which are tightening ever tighter around us with each passing day.

But, only by trusting God and with much effort and hard work to accomplish His Will can we have the strength to make it through the coming days in safety.

It has been written that except that God in His mercy stepped in no one would survive what is soon to come upon us.

CHAPTER 1

REC #1 HATONN

THU., OCT. 30, 1997 9:31 A.M. YR.11, DAY 075

THU., OCT. 30, 1997

HALLOWEEN AND APRIL'S FOOL DAY

It is with some trepidation that I write this morning for we near Halloween's "All Satan's" Day and it, like April's Fool Day, seems to allow for an all-out show of bad misbehavior and downright sanction for lying, cheating, tricking and treating.

However, the problem we have with allowing the trickster days to pass without input is beginning to mean that we NEVER get to bring truth and assistance through the veil of pranks and false promises.

MARKET DIVE

The inquiries as to "what happened" with the stock markets diving around the globe are piled here at our receiving end but it is so blatantly obvious what happened as to shock you into not being able to see the forest for that tree in your line of vision.

People lost on the market platform ONLY if they "sold" something. However, you will note that the market no longer works on industrial or commercial INVESTMENT but rather on the fool's games of speculation and gambling. You will find that even the outrageous and totally baseless roll programs and trading programs didn't ACTUALLY lose a cent but gathered in untold amounts of funding as sell-out of the market progressed.

The "greatest losers" (i.e., Bill Gates, et al.) didn't lose a centavo—nor a fraction thereof. They DID NOT SELL ANYTHING and therefore loss or "recovery" are stupid definitions under any circumstances. You never lose or win until you sell. EXCEPT when others control your funds and they sell. People come into the markets with an attitude of pure speculation and gambling in its most obvious form. You buy futures, invest in funds that buy futures, options, and on margin. When things go to Hell in the handcart you will find that CALLS are made just as are made on any commodity unbalanced in loan values—or it is WIPEOUT! The houses simply take the shares if you don't pay up on the call. Moreover, if the banks have leveraged the differences, they will simply take the collateral assets. However, banks usually take a hit when you have a large fluctuation of this nature.

Note, however, that only Asian markets were actually compared to your own and certainly it should become obvious, to you who read our presentations, WHY. Hong Kong/China is/are the targets for the day, what with the Head of China visiting in the U.S. Don't be naive, readers, for it is totally unbecoming to trained-and-schooled students who can connect the dots.

COLLATERAL

And, furthermore, what is the logical thing for these markets to do? Shore up with asset collateral! Will they? Who knows, but opportunity knocks loudly if you put two and two together and add correctly. Does it not stand to reason that if a bank is out a billion dollars that it needs, badly, a collateral asset of at least a billion dollars in the going currency value exchange?

What happens here is that Central Banks can simply issue a BUNCH more bonds and Treasuries and, whammo, the bank is safe and the Elite have just sucked you in with nothing more than the cost of printing a bunch of handbills. If a nation's central bank only issues bonds once annually, it may well be that an interim "exception" be made to the program so that stabilization comes quickly.

Which banks would need do this? Any bank with an opportunity of gathering up far more in collateral than is at point AND any nation whose banks are under assault as in the Swiss circumstance of having to forfeit "Holocaust" (supposedly) accounts which were/are backed by gold. The very best thing these banks can now do is to gather in GOLD-BACKED elder certificates and bonds as well as CONTRACTS which are also backed by GOLD. No government is going to offer or own up to these contracts for they would lose the control, but, the opportunity is available and, whether or not you realize it, is being used in GREAT MEASURE as phase-out of old certificates is underway. Switzerland is the last great country which has a currency valued on a solid product as in "gold".

It would appear to me that the Federal Reserve itself, with the mouth, Greenspan, would be gathering up these certificates and contracts as rapidly as their little hands could get them. Why? Because, after the Federal Reserve Act, and the Brown-Taylor Act the Federal Reserve had to stand ready, willing and able to pay the Treasury DEBTS if the debt agreements, treaties or contracts were finalized prior to those acts. And, the Big Boys have used these assets liberally to buy arms, nations politically, mineral rights and generally tie up the commercial world, and this without any pledge and assign to humanitarian projections except for the "show" of same.

How can this be pictured? Well, let us consider that you have a \$10 billion asset and we further assume that you have the market value of the collateral at 100% AND the bank(s) grant, say, 80% loanable value so that your asset could be accepted with loanable value of 8 Billion Dollars.

The original contract in play is then marked down to the 80% value and those ratios utilized. Some 10-year Central Bank Bonds, in countries pressed for funds, are paying 20%.

If we assume a large "Borrower Corporation" pledges the asset, borrows \$8B, buys \$4B worth of 10-year Central Bank Bonds at 10% interest, the interest alone (\$800M X 10 years) liquidates the loan, leaving the Borrower Corporation owning the \$4B worth of Central Bank Bonds. In the meantime the Borrower Corporation has \$4B free and clear and has only the interest on the \$8B loan to worry about. If that loan was taken in Japan at, say 5%, you can readily see that the Borrower Corporation will make a lot more money with a lot less risk than it normally would in its regular business, even if it pays \$2B of its loan for the use of the collateral.

Preliminary negotiations are proving this to be a fully implementable procedure. The "negotiation" comes,

of course, for the purchase of the bonds in point. This is easy at the issuing time, but is more difficult to accomplish in mid-year. However, most of those Central Banks will reconsider the positive position of offering MORE BONDS for this very purpose.

And no, I will not have an economic training course. Most of you readers who have any interest already KNOW of that which I speak and the "Ah-Ha!" is already hitting your pencils and papers. If you are not deep into working on this project, then the whole thing has absolutely no meaning anyway, so why waste both of our time? And NO, I will not give you information where this is already in operation for we are not going to jeopardize others' already workable programs. If you want to "win" the game, you will need to work, where you are guided to work and not just blow some other party out of his presentations and assets.

Africa is a prime place to work, however, because they need both assets and collateral, and Africa has a neat way of disallowing removal of funds from their country. You can bring in funding in about any amount, but you can't MOVE IT OUT. Therefore, be prepared to USE the funds in development of projects within the country for the most part. With our projections it is as important to develop humanitarian projects in Africa as it is in the United States of America. Here I speak of food production, industrial production of those things which benefit mankind and citizens of any nation, water purification systems, waste-water reclamation and thus and so.

The ABUSERS of the gift have already spent billions of dollars on war and war toys and tearing apart governments. We have no political interest AT ALL in such games as ALL of mankind, individual and consortium, have to eat, dress and have shelter.

God always gives the gifts you sincerely pray for but you have to find the methods and, finally, if the intent is purely greed in nature, you will lose dearly before the "game" ends.

Please NEGOTIATE with holders, etc. If you have asked for and gotten commitment of large individual commissions, I suggest you reconsider your stance. Why should anyone pay 10-less-or-more percent of a total transaction to someone who is usually quite demanding and annoying? WHO, indeed, are you assisting in these instances? Would this be self or full intention of getting something done which benefits, greatly, circumstances which improve Earth's quality of both life and life-styles? Some take 6-7 PER-CENT for simply handing over a copy of the contract package to an unknown individual. Well, what have you done to earn some \$600 to \$700 MILLION "little" commission? What you have done in actuality is bury the transaction for no business person in his right mind would ante to such outrageous hold-up tactics. I suggest that some of you regular inquirers and participants attend this very, very carefully for, from Africa to Canada, it is killing your efforts quite effectively.

In almost every instance the holders of the contracts (MY PEOPLE) will certainly negotiate with you for in actuality, as things are structured, you may well serve them far more than you serve any funder or intermediary on the funder's side of the transactions.

As with some of the elderly, valid Peruvian debt bonds and contracts, there is a silent but workable plan for these documents. The Treasury actually will work a "deal" for a given amount of "buyout" value. By this I mean that they will agree to incremental payments (GREATLY discounted) but will then pay the agreed

upon sum and then RETIRE the document FOREVER! Is this the way to go? Well, indeed, if you hold those small but now valuable documents.

The point, of course, is to deal with the ones who can deal. This means that you have to meet requirements of not lodging or damaging the Treasury "economy", take the lesser funds and then, PROBABLY, roll the funds into Trading Programs as established by the Fed. Remember that these massive Trading Programs pay off the Fed more dearly than any other parties involved, regardless of appearances.

Meanwhile all the show-and-tell is for your distraction while other games are in play which you don't know about as to rules, possibilities or political expression.

Would I go to Hong Kong now that things are hot? You bet! Always realize that the food is being cooked in the heated kitchen and not in the cold room with no activity.

But China is non-humanitarian? Do you suppose the U.S. is just one big brother filled with humanitarian concerns for YOUR WELL-BEING? Come now, children.

The Coalition of African States is interested in introducing, into Africa, humanitarian projects and services. But can you get to such players as would be Quadaffi, et al.? No, but there are a lot of other players beyond Quadaffi IN AFRICA. Egypt is in Africa, after all, and most of us come originally from Egypt. You need FUNDS available to back the collateral so no nation suffers collapse, and therefore you must go forth to where that commodity might be, and that can be in any place on the globe from the Sultan of Brunei to the Captain of the *Goodship Lollypop*. Do not, however, in my service, do anything outside the working society regulations or the law—of GOD or MAN.

It will become obvious along the way, as you may already see, that no ONE individual has control even of paperwork as might be claimed. V.K., for instance, has NO CONTROL over other Peruvian documents just as valid as is "hers" and, whether or not she agrees, she has NOTHING to do with the "half" that was not left TO HER. Grannie wants to be THE CONTROLLING FORCE in this issue and it is unacceptable, and the government, by their own declaration, will just "let 'er die, contracts and all...." This bodes ill-wind in the blowing for "they" can accomplish this end easily. She has chosen to not work with God or early partners, so the loss is more intensely in point. It is the circumstance between the Devil and the Deep Blue Sea. If you cannot or won't get verification of the documents for use other than personal gain and wealth—then you must be prepared for whatever the more powerful players have in mind for you. On the other hand, however, to continue to lodge these outrageous globally destructive instruments is indeed without mental righteousness for that becomes a destroyer, not a creator, and thus is OBVIOUSLY not of GOD. And we will not even consider working with such poorly intentioned parties. Either we CREATE that which is beneficial and goodly or we do nothing, and certainly we WILL NOT ASSIST wrong intentions of anyone simply wanting accolades and wealth off the death and demise of others who came before and held the assets. It is always wise to check INTENT in anything you set forth to do.

SPEAKING OF INTENT

A lot of people will learn a LOT about God and the Universal Workings of Spiritual Truth. My wonderment is in watching the numbers who refuse to help themselves in the face of their all-fired assumption of

ego know-it-all. Most, even with good intentions, are perfectly happy (or unhappy) to wait for someONE ELSE to do it for them and *then*, oh then, they will hop aboard the train going to Successville. In other words, let someone else risk it all, including the neck, but your Spiritual understanding and misunderstanding keeps you from more than lip service to ANYTHING.

When you project and pronounce that we are somehow doing something unrighteous and ill-intended, you had best catch up with all that stuff you didn't see fit to read or study or get the facts, because nobody here is going to personally hold your hand through a hundred years of college/university learning. You catch up on your own—or know that you are out of the game! If, further, you care so little about Spiritual TRUTH as to close eyes and ears—until—then I suggest that you are probably ALREADY OUT OF THE GAME and can't bring your ego up to speed enough to know you missed all the rescue vessels sent prior to now—for your safety.

You, if you fit into the above pattern, may well spew that "Me and God are working on our things." Are you? How dare you LIMIT GOD TO YOUR PERCEPTIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS? Ah, but many will tell me that they are simply polishing their own souls and diamonds and that is sufficient according to Tim, Buck and Too. Oh? And what value is a diamond, polished to brilliance, in the middle of the wastelands WAITING for some magic to hit their program of get-it for something they perceive they DESERVE? A diamond has NO VALUE except that which it is given, no more—no less. Remember this when you mix physical aspects with spiritual Truth. And yet, a man can ONLY be known in the worldly projection by that which HE DOES. This too is THE reflection within the Spiritual aspects upon which God can measure a Man and the Man measure himself when standing in ALL-KNOWING BEFORE THAT WONDROUS CREATOR.

By the way, to you who can't balance the concept of physical against or within the Spiritual perceptions: Spiritual realms are the places of SOUL and the physical realm IS THE PLACE OF PRESENTATION IN MANIFESTATION—THE SCHOOLROOM OF SOUL.

God only wants "ALL" from you for HE, after all, GAVE "ALL" UNTO YOU. What are you willing to offer back into HIS hands? Yes indeed, it IS important. If you cannot let go and LET GOD, you err for you can never secure that which is unknown or out of reach to your physical hands. Giving back to God ALL THAT YOU HAVE AND ARE only allows you to realize the greatest gifts of all, for God will, EVERY TIME, show you the way to HIS greater service and abundance. And, friends, if you claim, or actually do have, willingness to lay down your life for some cause—it had better be God's, for anything lesser in intent is unacceptable as merit points. There must be full intent TO LIVE FOR GOD, not just sit around and drink toasts to possible success at something or other and waiting to get acclaim for being some kind of foolish martyr or gain the brass ring. God has no interests in your martyrdom or your brass, or even golden, rings.

I further suggest you never mind the speakers or writers. READ AND HEAR THE MESSAGES AND YOU WILL KNOW IF THE SPEAKER IS WORTHY. This one misperception in realization is going to cost some very interested, in wealth, individuals—all of the plum/cherry pie. If you cannot discern truth but only judge your opinion of a speaker—you are NOT WORTHY of having leadership or abundance intended for the recovery of a sick world. Yes indeed, you need examples—but how many examples is it that you demand? Think hard on these things for they DO make all the difference in your little opinionated

worlds of, most often, misperceptions.

Does your denial, say, of Dharma make any difference in anything? NO, not other than YOU! If you cannot sort TRUTH from any presentation, then therein lies your lack of wisdom—not in pronouncing judgement on possible speakers, messengers or grandmothers. IF you can't "BUY" Aton, who cares? Well, since neither Aton nor any other entity IS FOR SALE, I suggest you be a bit careful of that which you proclaim "I can't buy that...!" Is your message in truth or is it false? Those are the only things requiring perception—not judging some body with a mouth!

Will God show you the way? YES, INDEED, <u>EVERY TIME</u>! The question, therefore remains, WILL YOU SEE OR HEAR THE INSTRUCTIONS AND GO "THE WAY"? So be it. And remember, YOUR demands ARE NOT *OUR COMMANDS*. We know who we are—who are you? Your judgments are only reflections of your recognition of your own inability to succeed and fall into expected, and trained, failure. If you "didn't think of it...", then it can't be? Oh wow, watch out, for you just made the most erroneous assumption of your life. You have just turned "opportunity" into pre-determined failure.

And readers, if someone tells you that for a fee he will do "it" in 5-to-10 years, forget it for he has no realization of doing anything except postpone everything to suit his pocketbook and his perceptions of his own ego self. These people don't DO anything except make sure they have a nice income for at least 5-to-10 years and won't produce positive anything. This is especially true of lawyers and attorneys. A dying AIDS patient is not going to wait for "those miracles" that are promised in 10 years and until you stop listening to the death-producers you are going to surely be among the "victims". And, if a lawyer demands a retainer you KNOW you are going to spend, at the least, the amount of the retainer AND MORE. I also suggest you stop "blaming them" for that which you have insisted come to pass. A lawyer will take your endless supply of money until it is gone forever and *tell you you "probably" can't win*. After telling you that you are going to lose, what more could the man be held responsible for producing? You will have PAID him for the probable screwing you are GOING TO GET!

Now to my team, we are doing fine and yes, we CAN hang on for the prize is near and there most certainly is, WITHIN GOD, a way of positive revolvement back to those times of balance before the Satanic grabbers took over. It is through right actions, intent and without bloodshed.

What we need is surely available and all we must do is recognize it, produce it and then beyond and above all, use it wisely as the Stewards of these gifts God expects of us, HIS presentation in the manifest world of illusions. Since God is MIND and we are of God and therefore, MIND, please allow us to USE OURS!

Hold hands, chelas, that we may unite in the move toward that which is right and wise. Do not allow ones to hang onto your hands who simply pull you back and finally bring you down. God will walk WITH us and He has no wish to walk out front although He might well walk behind to see what we will do with that which HE gives so GRACEiously. And indeed, most will simply lose the game and drop away just short of victory. Blessed are those who have "lost it all" in the service for they have no concept of losing—only a concept of need to win and prevail. These are the challenges God allows for your growth and mental obstacles which allow mental directions followed by physical action in the world as you experience it. Each game of "Encounter" is but a mental test of thought projection.

Enough to ponder for the sitting, for those who are willing shall see the meat of the offering and those who are unwilling will miss the point if it be stomping upon their heads.

Willing or unwilling: LIFE IS WHAT HAPPENS WHILE YOU LIKELY ARE MAKING OTHER PLANS, SO MAKE SURE THOSE "OTHER" PLANS ARE WORTHY OF GOD AND SURELY, IN THAT WAY, THEY WILL BE WORTHY OF YOUR OWN ATTENTION.

Salu, and may this Halloween time of Evil expression and Trick and/or Treating through demands of self of another, be a lesson worthy of learning. Satan doesn't need to change one iota of his play in expression for his game works every time while playing into the greed and lust of individual ego black holes. Have you parents ever considered uncostuming your offspring and going about with them holding their bags of goodies and GIVING A GIFT TO YOUR NEIGHBOR? Ah so, what a different world we would have! Good morning.

CHAPTER 2

REC #2 HATONN

SAT., NOV. 15, 1997 9:34 A.M. YR.11, DAY 091

SAT., NOV. 15, 1997

GUEST EDITORIAL, HATONN

We have been so focused on matters of local importance that I have been relieved of the daily paper input. I want people who perceive that things are not as they might well be to please, all of them, all the time, try running an albatross like *CONTACT*, gleaning nothing but trouble for nothing in return except the feeling that you have somehow made a contribution to Truth.

I have been asked to comment on Gary Wean's material now being run in *CONTACT*. I can't even begin to reasonably comment since I have not read the material. If I had time for my scribe to study everything coming through this conduit to "get to Hatonn", we would have NOTHING done—period—and that is unacceptable.

Gary Wean's material was fine and acceptable in the O.J. Simpson "thing", but is **not** OK now? He writes of things such as Jewish involvement in the hierarchy of almost everything governmental or police-related and when he does so, YOU call him anti-Semitic, racist and a bigot. When he uses the term Mishpucka you don't even remember the definition, according to NBC (yes, I said NBC—yesterday), and yet you claim him to be uninformed and his research unworthy? WHO is unworthy? The reader who throws rocks, or the investigator and researcher who writes what he finds?

The *CONTACT* is not, nor ever was, an "anti-" anything. It was established to be a voice for the covering of information that never even makes it to the public eyes even via the so-called "patriot" or "free" press. Nothing more and nothing less. Next position is to offer THAT WHICH IS BEING OFFERED IN THOSE PUBLICATIONS AROUND THE GLOBE WHO DO DARE TO PUBLISH TRUTH, AND GIVE CREDIT AND ACCOLADES TO THOSE BRAVE WRITERS WHO HAVE ONLY A NAR-ROW BASE OF READERSHIP. We can get truth a bit "further" along the print route, nothing more.

Have "I", Hatonn, done a lot of commenting in the past on topics chosen, yes, by me, to inform since I can see both ends of this road and the traps along the way? INDEED! But when I don't have time to write paper after paper, journal after journal because of other focus, can't you nice people appreciate the magnificent job being done by the "fill-in-ink crew"?

AND IN MEETINGS—

Stark terror fills the hearts of the team here who must face the world and the music every day, along with the courts and the press, not to mention the media-loving outrageous tales for their tabloids.

Then come the meetings of which we have very few any more as I have all but lost my speaker and the visitors take the time and attention totally away from that which is pertinent to the meeting itself. Visitors are always, and always have been, welcomed abundantly, and the "regulars" have been gracious in sharing and having time taken for every Tom, Dick and Harry teacher and preacher coming along. Now we have ones coming once or twice and want to get in on the possible gold-pots at the end of some rainbow or another while there is little they can do except make themselves appear as silly as they ARE.

A new visitor took a great deal of time at the last meeting and gathered us complaints from the attendees for the personally searching and family matters as presented for my consideration. Well, I was patient and nice with "them" when they were asking fortune-telling questions about themselves, so I should now be rude to guests? No, I will not be rude although the ones who bring these strangers among us obviously DO NOT GET THE PICTURE or they would not take such valuable time for themselves.

If, as our visitor says, someone knows Ramos' mother and can get to a visit with her—go visit her! Why ask ME? Just don't involve anything we are doing of a business nature unless YOU KNOW EVERY-THING THERE IS TO KNOW ABOUT OUR ONGOING PROJECTS AND PROCESSING. This MUST come from the parties bringing the visitors for we have no time for this kind of trivial time-wasting.

WE DO NOT, HAVE NEVER HAD, NOR SHALL EVER HAVE, A CHURCH, A CULT, A GROUPIE, NOR A GATHERING FOR THE "SEARCHING" AND "FIND MYSELF"-CENTERED PEOPLE. There is a paper here called *CONTACT* and it is not even "here". There are some products but they are not "here" either. I am not in the business of fortune-telling nor of unwinding anyone's affairs. I see lots of errors in judgment taking place every day but that is not my business. For instance? Who decided the newest kid on the block got the private office in *Contact?* That particular party was offered a position as computer data entries and to help handle same after Mr. Moorhead departed in a changing of responsibilities in Las Vegas (where, by the way, all of the businesses are centered). There is now mass displeasure at what has evolved and NOW, AFTER THE FACT, I am consulted to sort it out? Perish the thought, kids, you do it—you fix it!

It is always thus when "God becomes a focus" that the misfits, searchers, ones who were unsuccessful elsewhere and now want to "find themselves" will flock to such as we—because: "God wouldn't, surely, let me flounder about in unknowing." Oh yes HE WOULD! Changing locations to a tiny town in "nowhere" is foolish on the very face of it for nobody, especially "searchers", want the available work for they are, after all, "managers" of some kind of failed plots prior to now. Then to top it off there comes the efforting to become an "insider" somehow with those who are so busy as to be going nuts so that they are somehow acceptable as the intruders they are. THERE ARE NO NON-MENIAL JOBS HERE, NO FUNDS HERE, NO HOUSING OR COMMUNAL ASSISTANCE AVAILABLE HERE—JUST PEOPLE GOING INTO THE HOLE EVERY DAY JUST TO GET THEIR TASKS UNDER CONTROL.

I am forced to speak of these things because there is a PILE of documents stacked up here awaiting MY INPUT as directly penned TO ME. It is at best a frail reed you use to go through Dharma for she only feels the pressure and can't do anything about your plights AT ALL. Blessed are you who share your love and gifts with us (her, etc.) but she is human, and a very, very sick human at that.

Why don't I just heal her in my miraculous way? Because she would just try, AGAIN, to handle everybody's business including mine and hers.

If you have come to this location, I would suggest that you attend your own business because it will NEVER get tended if you think it will be through Ekkers or myself. My mission is NOT TO ATTEND YOUR LIVES—my mission is to revolve some elements of righteousness into that which you have plundered and blundered and "fixed" beyond recognition in your absence of responsibility. I can not care less about the personal attitudes or imperfections—take that up WITH GOD, CHRIST, or an energy devoted to personal matters such as your GUIDE OR TEACHER—OF WHICH I FIT THE ROLE FOR NOBODY YET WHO CLAIMS OTHERWISE. WHEN I AM THE TEACHER AND GUIDE, THERE NEEDS BE NO DISCUSSION OR INQUIRIES (ESPECIALLY TO DHARMA OR THROUGH DHARMA FOR RECOGNITION OR CONFIRMATION).

Am I being harsh? Yes, of course, for you hear and take within ONLY THAT WHICH YOU HAVE ALREADY DECIDED IS THE WAY IT IS! We had a period of information exchange and "training" for our jobs for the past ten years and that does not include a redoing of lessons or repeating same. The information is available to any or all who would want the input, and if you don't care enough to do this for self—forget the higher education from this resource.

However, for you who perceive that my own personal writings are being somehow deleted from the paper: it is simply a matter of my private and instructional writing necessities which will eventually be a resource in manifestation for those things which we MUST ACCOMPLISH—and that is NOT going to be fed to our very adversaries any longer!

Speaking of local adversarial personalities, it appears the numbers are dwindling as they find it more desirable to go the course WITHOUT GOD. Two of the major players are now gone, one dead, the other left town. The lawyers in point, however, continue to use the dead and the false presentation of their corporations for their own court encounters and it is going to come, now, to a screeching halt. The others can continue until they hang themselves as is only worthy of such lying and cheating on their parts.

A lot of judges and legal entities are going to now have to answer for their participations in the GAMES up to now. An no, I will not give evidence here for their use but the consequences are both expensive and entangling as one after another has to face the "piper"—and who do you think is going to get dumped on—the "little guy" who did the first lying or the JUDGE who blundered into the trap of helping out his buddies?

These perpetrators continue to use, unlawfully, corporations not even structured as they have "assumed" them to have been and, now, one who has been useful to their cause without even permission or input has been dead for over two years AND Father Ed Cleary whose deposition, wherein he stated right up front that he had "no intention of telling the truth", has been used in every subsequent case involving any of "us", died on the 10th of November. This leaves Betty Tuten ALONE in the foolish "run-up the legal fees". And how is SHE going to answer to EXTRA when the stuff hits the fan in these new proceedings?

There was just this week a Bankruptcy hearing for George Green, his second to KEEP FROM FACING THE TRIAL—ALSO ONLY HOURS BEFORE THE TRIAL DATE.

This last one was not well received as documents lay before the Trustee while he lied, squirmed, looked to Horton for confirmation, etc. It was a black-mark day on the very meaning of the court and, even if not terrible to outrageous legal manipulations, will be noted suitably and that will probably BE BACK BEFORE THE STATE COURT WHICH WAS THE PURPOSE OF THE SIDESTEPPING IN THE FIRST, AND SECOND, PLACE.

Example of the foolishness? Well, Mr. Green claimed ALL THE BOOKS that were security holdings, were destroyed in the mud and floods of last year. (???) But, the floods were in Reno and the books were miles away in Carson City in an area that received NOTHING of floods. Then the parties who are to "back him up..." haven't been paid by Mr. Green so I don't think they are going to be the happiest campers to help him out of his hole this time around.

Another wonderful attribute of Mr. Green is the blaming of his wife for everything deceitful and every underhanded scheme—in that somehow SHE ends up the one having all the assets, the corporations, et al. SHE, of course, is never informed and, much the less, present, to either defend herself or make note of her being so much as "alive".

Mr. Green sits crimson-faced with anger while he points to Ekkers and claims they "did it all" and "operated Ponzi schemes and scams" and whatever else he can attribute to them from his own actions. It is funny indeed that he continues, after stealing and lying, to operate other publishing companies (of course denying it in the face of the State documents before the Trustee) and calling the gold acquisition plan with loans, to be a Ponzi set-up. How so? Mr. Green should know, but doesn't, it seems. No misunderstanding is present save from those who dwell with Mr. Green. Gold has NOT doubled as Mr. Green promised nor has anyone with any insight at all thought otherwise.

If you don't think GOLD is going to save your bacon one of these days—then your porker is in pretty bad condition. Gold has no value particularly except what the economists give unto it—but it will surely be the basis, as throughout human history, for any kind of economic structuring or restructuring.

The "loans" are with the Institute and the notes have not gone anywhere, even if backing is totally tied up by these courts and banks. And you, further, who would kill the golden-egg-laying geese are not only blind but awfully gullible to the "fall-guys" tales of woe. They want the Overton GOLD but when that next hits the courts and the minute the good-old-boys call the fictitious defendants Ekker-Phoenix, the gasoline is in the fire. They did it with Tuten and, NOW, Ekker-Ekker has FULL RIGHT to confront on a personal level and that is all we have been waiting for.

Who will finally "get the gold"? How much gold do YOU believe might be left? There are some judges with their "olies" on the line already, over just that point! And how nice, by them listening to Green while he told them the gold was originally Ekkers' and he bought it from Ekkers and ten other tales of some misfit mind—he opened the passage for PERSONAL intervention in those cases BY THE EKKERS who now are learning everything there is available to learn about Title 42 actions against all parties involved in deceit in and by the courts and judicial system. This is not a good thing for judges and attorneys, clerks and misdirected "order-writing clerks of the courts". Issues are not even the point in testing—but Constitutional RIGHTS violations are as far as it need go and the rest is plain frosting on the cake as to individual wrong-doing.

Do you actually think a JUDGE is going to continue to rule WITH a George Green and the likes of Horton and Abbott, Horn and Brent when his own entire career and all assets are under rightful attack for his Constitutional actions in wrongdoing? The Constitutional violations are so obvious and evident that the cases shouldn't go much beyond the original filings on Civil Rights violations. The fines and jail assessments are established BY THE CODE IN THE COURTS, so what is to be discussed after the presentation of proper paperwork? Lots, I would guess, but not by the Plaintiffs, for sure. There is no point doing anything on the issues in these cases for the courts have already formed conspiracies right down the proverbial line of legal oppositions and through every involved party. So, go for the Constitutional violations and they have NO PLATFORM ON WHICH TO STAND TO MAKE THEIR SELF-STRUCTURED DECISIONS. YOU STILL *HAVE* A *CONSTITUTION* EVEN IF IT IS NOW SHOVED ASIDE AND THE LEGAL PROFESSION OF THE BAR ASSOCIATION WORKS TOTALLY BASED ON THEIR OWN REVISED LAWS. THOSE LAWS ARE UNCONSTITUTIONAL. However, do you take up arms and go fight them? Foolish people, of course not—you do it right and cause them to be equally nice (for you WILL be overly-nice) to YOU.

Who might have a case? EVERYBODY who has received one document from the court with your name in "upper case" print or has had to stand accused or in defense in a courtroom with a gold-fringed flag hovering by the Judge. Silly? NO, the LAW, good buddies, THE LAW! Will the courts ever be swamped by such failure of the people to "take it any longer"? Who knows but wouldn't it be nice if you took responsibility and did something useful, calm in the face of the enemy of freedom, and demanded rights in the CORRECT court under the *Constitution*—just as written with any and all of its original errors?

OTHER TOPICS OF THIS DAY, SUCH AS IRAQ

And just what about Iraq? What is this bully called the U.S. and Brits going to do about Iraq and Saddam? Well, it will be stupid whichever choice is made. But KNOW, WORLD, it is a major DISTRACTION from what is really taking place while you focus on ol' Saddam's escapades.

Everything you are told about the confrontations ARE LIES, from the U-2 spy-plane overflights to the shielding set forth by Saddam. The people of Iraq are going to confront you of the "Great Satan" even if it now costs their lives for you have hurt them physically and deformed and killed their babies to the point they would rather die than succumb further to your atrocities.

As to the U-2 planes, what in the world is the matter with you? They tell you they can't use the satellites for such mundane information-gathering as on Iraq. Are you nuts? A giving of information gathering from satellites is NOT ENOUGH to merit stopping a world war? Come, come. Could it be that there AREN'T so many satellites making it to space for surveillance these days and nights? And by the way, the U-2 is a totally OBSOLETE craft so what do you open-faced and -mouthed, believe while they feed you garbage?

You are going to huff and puff and blow Saddam's house down? Oh? And what do you think the Chinese-Russian alliance will do about your games a bit further down the road when you have NO DE-FENSE AT HOME, GOOD BUDDIES? When the U.S. takes on a war unilaterally, you can bet the other enemies will move into the slots left vacant by the downsizing of your military and the rest being sent abroad.

IS THE CHINESE TAKEOVER OF THE LONG BEACH NAVAL DEPOT OFF?

Perish the thought—it is not only "back on" but the transfer is UNDER FULL WAY. Ah, but you didn't know? Well, I just couldn't get to all the fill-in information so only some of you will even realize what happened. But, it was written up, AGAIN, in *Spotlight* and the follow-on information regarding the Chinese has been pouring out from every resource right along the way—including as to what is happening in the markets of the world, the shams of the cover-up mattresses.

No, the paper's staff does NOT focus on these things except in the tid-bit pieces of the *News Desk*. Rick is not only now the Senior Journalist—but the ONLY journalist. I WAS the journalist to pick up the hundreds of writings, but now I must focus on funding just to stay alive here with ANY KIND of paper. Why? Because, as I asked Sunday, "Who has solved the problems of funding?" and NOBODY offered even a comment! Well, when all else fails, we get at it and do it ourselves. Are we so brilliant? No—we just don't stop when the going gets rough or the walls come up to stop us. However, it does certainly stop the ability of our "journalists" to do anything else WHICH CAN BE WRITTEN ABOUT. Why can't we write about these activities? Because you go report directly and instantly to the adversary and if you don't—then they get it from the surveillance equipment or the paper itself. The *CONTACT* for years has been the first document studied each week (before publication) by the CIA and other Intelligence agencies. Have we known this all along? Of course, how else do you think I can communicate with them? They know what agreements they have made WITH ME and my status and security file listing. It is only you-the-people who can't seem to deal with my presence. The government and Intelligence Services don't have even a second's delay in understanding. All I expect or have ever expected is that YOU PEOPLE MEET YOUR AGREED-UPON CONTRACTS.

"Well," you say, "what is it that we can find out on our own, such as about the serious input of the Swiss banks, etc.?" Say what? Don't you realize that the Swiss central banker warns of a threat to the WHOLE SYSTEM by what has taken place there in Switzerland and the assault against the banks? No? Why not?

I try to write in such a way as to have NO INVISIBLE SPEAKERS and yet we always come to the quibblers who claim, "plagiarism" and other seemingly terrible accusations. Truth and news are not at point in "plagiarism", at best, and how else do you expect to get anything of reasonable news if you can't understand that which ALREADY IS? You can't, that's how.

The instability in the Asian Markets is simply a reflection of this very type of bank assaulting by certain groups set up to kill the banks not under total International New World Order control—TO BRING THEM UNDER CONTROL. However, KNOW that the accomplishment will be the death of all banking, or the Asians will rise up and WIPE YOU OFF THE MAP! Mankind's problem through the Khazarian empire is one of annihilation at the hands of the Asians! This will happen just as soon as it can be properly arranged by the Powers that Be in THOSE CAMPS who await the coalitions to be formed and the take-over ports quietly arranged for entry within the intended countries.

Are these "new" invaders quietly geared to peace and order? Oh no, no indeed. They are trained for worse atrocities than you have yet recognized, more racism than you have imagined and more violence of people-against-people than you ever dreamt could come to pass.

So who will be spared? Possibly the Native American or historical lineaged peoples of the globe. Remember that the "Indians" or Aboriginal people, come from Asian ancestors just as the Khazars of the now-called "Jewish" (but are not) faith and race came from the Russ, Mongol and Nordic tribes. When the "Chinese Asians" team up with the non-Khazarian Russ, there will be the Armageddon expected. The pressures will come from the North as prophesied, and the people South will be driven all the way into Turkey, thus representing the elimination of Israel as it has come to be accepted. The Palestinians will join the fray and this will be ever so much more bloody than what could have been told to you-the-sleeping-masses.

Do I make up fearful tales to shock you? No, first of all, it is apparent that shocking does nothing to you who now feast on blood-sucking and sacrifice. This is simply a presentation or reminding of your "Prophets' speakings".

Who will be protected in those days which must be cut short lest all be destroyed? GOD'S TRUE PEOPLE and those who have moved to assist in restoration of the balance of righteous ownership and stewardship.

Where will this be? Anywhere and everywhere you find TRUE intent of God's service and not the projected assumptions of that which you would simply LIKE TO BELIEVE to suit self-adoration.

Does this mean we are anti-government? Certainly NOT! Anarchy is that which comes from any kind of "overthrow" of any system, good or bad. This is never good for there is nothing upon which to base a NEW type of governing body for restoration of stability.

Will we be able to do anything worthy of mention in time to side-step the full blast of this onslaught? I don't know and certainly NOT if everybody waits for somebody else to fix everything, from what goes into a given paper to earning the funds to establish some program for better projects and industrial regrouping of nations and peoples.

What can YOU, as an individual, create and accomplish? Well, it isn't for me to say for, until you think you can do something worthy, you will do nothing save possibly cause more discomfort to the ones taking responsibility.

I note that just about everyone who asks, say, Ekkers, "What can I do to help?" when told, can't seem to be able "to do that!" and it comes back, "...well, I meant other than helping fund or 'doing' money." The best two excuses are: "The IRS is giving me problems," or, "I don't believe we should mix God and Money." Oh? How else are you going to accomplish ANYTHING in this money-oriented world of today? Do you or do you not have to LIVE in this world AS IT IS?

So, what is the purpose of even considering the ones who just "want to be"? Ah, I thought you would never ask: IT IS TO ALLOW GOD TO SORT INTENTIONS OF INDIVIDUAL PARTICIPANTS AND UPON WHOM HE CAN PLACE HIS TRUST OF FOLLOW-THROUGH. Remember, and you always seem to forget: GOD WINS, AND WHETHER THAT WIN IS NOW OR LATER MAKES ABSOLUTELY NO DIFFERENCE TO WE OF THE HIGHER REALMS.

Is a "water irrigation system" on the leased farm YOUR PROBLEM? No? Then why do YOU AS-SUME IT TO BE EKKERS'? And, if you are hungry do you or do you not expect to help eat grain and beans which the Ekkers have made sure are there for your survival? Oh, I see, you "gave at the office"? Well too bad God or Ekkers weren't in the "office pool".

Remember that neither Ekkers, nor I, care a whit about your business or your participation—but GOD TAKES NOTE OF INTENTIONS and what you do—ALWAYS! Will moving away from us change anything? No, God is always "there", wherever you go, for there is no where to run and no place to hide.

Ekkers and I are fresh out of taking responsibilities for each of you who now claim, "Well, I gave up (this or that) to come to this place and now..." Stop right there for we NEVER, NEVER said to "come on down" and if you play at that kind of accuse-and-blame game you are more foolish than when you "came anyway". For those who "just use", it will never be different from this moment in time. And you who come, get help, and then turn and complain about the very ones who held out their hands to help you—shame on you for you shall go down just as you have everywhere else you have plied your tricks. To, further, bear false witness as to happenings or circumstances is a greater shame upon your character and it is better if you consider the quickest route out and away from here. But if ones have co-signed or helped with debts you may owe, I suggest you CLEAR THEM TOTALLY prior to your departure. This is not a commune or charity welfare house to feed and shelter the unwilling-to-work. There is a whole township, in fact, three or four of them, in the immediate and adjacent location—why do you piddle your time away in some method of dreaming that God will somehow give you that for which you interminably wait. And how many of YOU aid and abet this concept constantly through your own MISPERCEPTIONS of what God will or will not do?

There is such abundance of willing hands waiting for the call as to be staggering to the senses. Why would GOD take the misfits and unworthy who claim and take up space and energy while the trained and willing are put aside? It simply will NOT HAPPEN.

"But, couldn't I just help count out the money in the counting house if and when...?" Surely so but, so too can a school student without any nosey input or interest in the amounts or the gossip which is presented as a possibility OR the unfortunate insistence that you "can do it better if you just change..."

"But God promises..." you shout back at me. Oh? GOD PROMISES A RETURN OF THAT WHICH YOU SEND FORTH—SO BE VERY CAREFUL OF YOUR DEMANDS UPON GOD.

"But I was always told..." you retort. Ah indeed, and so be it that in the guise of RELIGIONS you were TOLD INCORRECTLY! I have NOTHING to do with RELIGIONS—I happen to be OF GOD and know the difference.

Spirituality and "religion" are two VERY DIFFERENT concepts just as mysterious and mystic are two VERY DIFFERENT, and opposing, ideas. The facts are that "ideas" are of the Spiritual reality, actions precipitated by ideas are of the physical manifestation. Physical actions are the judgmental concerns of physical—and ideas in intent are the Spiritual reality of the MIND REALISM. Until physical EGO can be set aside, it is a fact that MIND REALISM cannot be forthcoming and all the lying to self and others will not change one iota of the truth of it. So, if you err and repent, err and repent—don't expect the "other"

to let you repent again and again lest they dislodge their own status in the world of REASON and REAL-ITY of balanced interchange. And YES, we do have these types of personalities abundant among us.

HEALTH AND ENTERTAINMENT

This title is somewhat misdirectional because I can't, either, choose what you will do or how you will feel physically or mentally about your choices.

We are continually asked about the status of Zita. She IS, what more would you have me say? Will she live or pass on to other realms of activities? That is up to her and her alone. She has no disease which is taking her life but she will not keep food down within her body, so eventually she will not longer be able to stave off the invaders. There is NO CANCER eating away her vital self. So, we come right back around to choices. Choices are often hidden, and most often totally hidden from the one experiencing the choice itself.

What of Charles' son Scott, who was in the death coma? He is coming along very well with full faculty (brain) responses. However, no one saw fit to do what I had agreed with the man to do, and his recovery from tubes and invasions is taking a long toll on recovery. I warn you people, the medical professionals and hospitals ARE A HAZARD TO YOUR HEALTH. But, I note that ones who will do anything else in confrontation, would NOT confront or demand anything of the doctors or family in participation. Am I being hard? Yes indeed because YOU broke my agreements. Is it OK? Well, not with me—but surely enough, with you and, therefore, take it up with God and stop asking things OF ME.

Will I have any friends WITH me when this journey ends? Of course, and they will be informed and in knowing. The others will be OF THE OTHERS who always drop away when the game is not of their own choosing or perception. Will that moving away make them "right"? No, but what else is new—they were never "right", so they continue the pathway of incorrect perceptions.

Have I digressed from the daily important issues? Oh goodness no, THESE ARE the daily important issues! These choices, actions and perceptions are EXACTLY that which have made up the other issues of the day from wars to theft. You can never, by the way, BUY PEACE AND CONTENTMENT—only the possibility of getting the significant other off your back. That temporary relief is exactly that: temporary for the very movement into the "easy way out" will come to confront every move you make from that "give in" unto your closing chapter of living.

This particular writing has gone far too long in space and time consumption so we will have to take up banking, markets, interactions of nations, etc., at another sitting. Sorry about that but life is what happens while we try to make other plans and stay ahead of the ones who "just can't understand" anything.

Salu, and if you think I be hard—TRY GOD ON FOR QUICK REVIEW.

CHAPTER 3

REC #1 HATONN

SUN., NOV. 16, 1997 10:12 A.M. YR.11, DAY 092

SUN., NOV. 16, 1997

MISCELLANEOUS CURRENT EVENTS

It is difficult to confront "a" topic when the news is filled to overflow with that which is important and yet given in totally erroneous presentation. For instance, why, REALLY, are you headed for a major war with Iraq? Could it really be new developments from the mean old man from the Middle East? Of course not, but the real reason for the confrontation should not be too difficult to uncover if you generalize all of the things taking place about which you <u>are</u> told.

In every instance you must consider the "whole" and never look at what is projected as "apparent". There are myriads of reasons, for instance, that Clinton might well be on the Presidential move into something BIG. But the reason will not be what is proposed to you-the-people. Remember that Clinton's controllers and handlers are struggling for their political lives while Clinton dances around in the tunnels under the White House and tosses grenades (that he has been instructed to toss) at the so-called enemy, mean old Saddam.

IMPEACHMENT UNDER "HOUSE" INVESTIGATION

Enough really hard EVIDENCE is now public to impeach Slick Willie and bipartisan backing is growing as scandal after scandal breaks forth about the First Family. An Inquiry of Impeachment Resolution, directing the Judiciary Committee to "inquire whether or not grounds for impeachment for William Clinton exist" is under consideration. It should be noted that this topic is under heavy attention of all the "alternative" press papers. There is a coalition of at least 17 colleagues of Rep. Bob Barr structuring this major political move toward a full inquiry.

Nobody wants to do a half-baked political move of this magnitude in bringing charges against what—in the opinion of a **majority** of the people—is the most corrupt administration to sully the White House in the nation's history. And, rightfully so, because if you look carefully at Willie's options as per his higher-level echelon of instructors and handlers, the next move is to MOVE THE U.S. INTO A WAR SO THAT THE "INQUIRY" IS INSTANTLY SQUELCHED BEFORE IT GETS FULLY BIRTHED. YOU DON'T IMPEACH A PRESIDENT "IN WAR".

You have moved into a time where the culprits in crime have the ability to play their trump cards and thwart almost every move toward bringing about good government. Therefore any excuse to move troops and have military intervention or interplay will be utilized instantly when the going gets too serious to overcome through political power of ordinary measures.

While you are now focused on the Middle East—AGAIN—guess what? The senate (of your U.S.A.) struck a deal that allows the Chinese Ocean Shipping Co. (COSCO [remember?]) access to the closed Long Beach, California, naval facility. This too puts Clinton into a bind because he personally has to certify that COSCO is not a security threat. But, Clinton had long been getting pay-offs from the Chinese, so guess what this means? Open sailing.

But you thought that deal was off? See what happens when you stop looking? And moreover, guess what—more military bases are set for the slash-and-burn pile.

Could the Chinese use that port as a transfer place for drugs and arms? Certainly. Only last February the shipping giant (COSCO) was caught attempting to smuggle 2,000 fully automatic AK-47 assault rifles into the port of Oakland, California. Customs officials said the weapons were intended for "sale to street gangs in Southern California". But, I say, "What is new about that?" This time they got caught and that is the ONLY difference if you check out what makes it through and onto the streets.

The opposition to "business" projections is that the Chinese would flood your U.S. markets with "slave labor" products. Say what? What kind of labor does the U.S. utilize? Anyone who can be arrested and/ or have property seized for lack of tax payments, etc., ARE SLAVES. It is time, readers, to call that spade a spade instead of a shovel and get on with what is going on.

What I do find amusing to hysterically funny is the description offered about the Adelanto facility which was to be the product hub. It is described as MASSIVE. The little building doesn't even have a basement and is not even as large as a small-town grocery market. *You in California GO LOOK AND SEE FOR YOURSELF!* Adelanto is a DEAD town without any hope of citizen recovery as it is now standing in the midst of total deterioration and decay. This "massive building" is standing in its framework for the world to see and there is nothing hidden nor is there any wish to do so.

I would suggest that if ships with arms are already coming through such as Long Beach and in Oakland, the problem would and could be better managed under the eyes of official inspections. What else are you going to do with these DEAD towns and military bases? People, THIS NATION IS IN SERIOUS, SERIOUS TROUBLE!

I would like to put the Chinese issue aside for now, however, because it is such a big subject as to preclude any other discussion once into it. The Asian markets, though, would demand that some attention be turned in that direction.

JAPANESE MARKET TUMBLE?

It is recognized that the Japanese stock market toppled and fell totally the end of this last week. But you won't hear much about the devastation if something can be done on Monday and Tuesday of this week in order to continue to bury the facts. Trillions of dollars will be injected into that market in a full-out attempt to salvage the market and keep the yen from total collapse. The yen was destined to be THE currency to corner a share but the view looks pretty bleak today. Don't "they" wish they had tried the Bonus Certificate for collateral? This same thing is going to happen to the U.S. and other markets, and some day perhaps you-the-people will open your eyes. All the nation needs is the collateral VALUE, but politics as

usual is the name of the "only game in town". WOW, it surely is difficult to get any information circulated through your controlled brain-mass between the proverbial ears of you-the-people.

Would there be enough in the Bonus to do the job? Oh indeed! This is going to be some kind of ongoing ticker-tape charade until you can bury it in war, and the Middle East, as usual, is the planned deception.

How can I know and cause you to realize the seriousness of the encounters taking place? What year is now drawing to a close? Ah, 1997? Well, that leaves two years to totally accomplish and have operational, in full, the New World Order and Israel's "Grand Design" "by the millennium change".

BUT WHAT IS THIS "GRAND DESIGN"?

Well, we get a bit gun-shy from all of you who throw rocks and slang terms, like anti-Semitic, upon our heads for even speaking of this subject. This is nothing new or hidden in agenda or otherwise and it has been openly spoken about and intentional plans laid since prior to Israel being snatched away from Palestine to be recognized as a "state". The entire plan is reflected in the BLUE of the flag of Israel. It is recognized as the "Blue Turban" around the head of Israel (Star) in the central field of the flag in point. The two blue stripes on upper and lower halves represent the Nile River at Egypt and Euphrates River bordering Syria and Iraq. The intent is to have every inch of land in between, under Israeli control, and it is planned to be had by the year 2000

Let it be further realized that the deed will be headed up by the BRITISH ISRAELIS and fought to the death by the Americans as the slave-soldiers and YOU WILL BACK IT WITH EVERY DEMAND YOU CAN MUSTER.

"But what about the secret germs and warfare 'stuff' in Iraq that precipitated this new action?" What about it? If it is "secret" how came it to be "known"? And, have you ever had an honest presentation about the Desert Storm diseases YET? And how come it takes weeks and massive confrontation for anything to be made public—IF, INDEED, TRUTH IS THE BASIS OF THE CLAIMS? Doesn't there seem to be something rather smelly about this turn of events when they could have told this story right off at upstart and had good results? It is a lie, of course, and this is another "trial balloon" to see what it takes to fool all of you people all of the time until the criminals accomplish their bloody aims.

SO, WHAT OF THIS "SECRET" GERM FIND?

It is easier to copy the propaganda than to tell the story in paraphrase, *after the fact*. Then we will return to the Grand Plan.

[QUOTING: Bakersfield Californian, Sat. Nov. 15, 1997]

SECRET GERM FIND IGNITED IRAQI ACTION

U.N. inspectors also have reason to suspect chemical tests on humans.

by: TIM WEINER [Khazarian writer], *N.Y. TIMES News Service.*

WASHINGTON—The showdown over Iraq's secret arsenal began when U.N. inspectors sought to uncover its biological-weapons program, including germ-warfare tests and suspected caches of anthrax, U.N. and U.S. officials said Friday.

The officials traced the confrontation, which has led to growing global tension, to an Oct. 27 letter from the chief of the U.N. weapons inspectors, Richard Butler, to Iraq's foreign minister, Tariq Aziz.

The letter said the United Nations intended to inspect secret sites controlled by President Saddam Hussein's elite personal security force, the Special Republican Guard, and suspected caches of data and materiel from Iraq's biological-warfare projects. [H: And where do you suppose these nice people could have gotten such germs as Anthrax which was singularly being tested throughout the last three decades at Dugway, Toole, Utah? That's right, right through that "Agriculture" exchange program of Bush-Saddam through BCCI and shipped to the various nations in "the plan" for Arms for Iran through Bush and the CIA!]

A senior U.N. official said the inspectors believed that those searches would help them fully describe the biological-weapons program for the first time, more than six years after the U.N. inspections began.

The Iraqi leadership never responded to the letter, sections of which were disclosed Friday by U.N. officials. But it appears to have struck a nerve.

Two days later Iraq announced that it would shoot down American U-2 spy planes supporting the U.N. inspection team, and it vowed to expel the American members of the team from the country, a threat fulfilled on Friday. The United Nations, in turn, withdrew all its inspectors in protest.

[H: And just what was expected to be seen from that U-2? You can read credit cards from the Moon but I really didn't think you could visualize microbes yet, from a spy plane—so you know something else is afoot than what they tell you the game is about!]

The letter also sought information on missile warheads that the inspectors believe were filled with biological and chemical agents, and documentation on Iraq's possession of VX, a chemical nerve agent—all previously subjects of investigation.

[END OF QUOTING]

This is not the end of the article but points out that the propaganda desired to be "leaked" to you-the-blind-and-stupid is fully disseminated through the controlled press of the Khazarian media. It is also noted that the article refers to "and other germs found" in the further headlines but of course there is no reference or designation of those "other" dastardly things.

AND, WHAT OF THE MURDERS IN PAKISTAN?

Ah, sweet babes in the woods moving down that Primrose pathway—those murders were perpetrated by a NEW faction claiming responsibility and who said there would be "more" if the conviction of the Pakistani in jeopardy were to be sentenced to death. Stop it; the murderers were Mossad (ISRAELI) operatives and the thrust was intentionally structured to bring the U.S. into another fray to fight another's battles. Worse, the whole thing was done in conjunction with the CIA. When will you learn that these people will do ANYTHING to accomplish their overall goal and so-called Divine Grand Design?

Let us move back for historical value and information regarding this Grand Plan to information offered by *The American Mercury* magazine a long way back, in 1968. The article has again been run by *Spotlight* and it is an excellent presentation which might well better come from conventional sources than from invisible truth-bringers which only seem to confuse your focus.

<u>ISRAEL'S GRAND DESIGN:</u> LEADERS CRAVE AREA FROM EGYPT TO IRAQ

[QUOTING, Spotlight, Nov. 3, 1997, page 12:]

by John Mitchell Henshaw

The metamorphosis of tiny Israel from a midget to a giant is in the making. The grand design of Judaic-Zionist expansionist doctrine is to seize all the oil-rich lands from the shores of the Euphrates to the banks of the Nile. [H: Please do not lose sight of the fact that this was written in the SPRING of 1968 (30 years ago).]

In defining the aims of Zionism, Hebrew scholar Levnoch Osman recently said: "In our eternal Book of Books (the *Torah*), the lofty ethical teachings of which are cherished by all mankind, the land of Israel is described not as a long, narrow strip of land with wavy, crooked borders, but as a state with broad natural borders. God has promised to Patriarch Abraham the following:

"I give unto them the land where they have sown their seed, from the river of Egypt unto the great river of Euphrates' (*Genesis 15:18*). And so, in order to realize the words of this prophecy, the Israeli state had to continue, not in the borders it has today but within its broad historical boundaries."

And as far back as 1952 Moshe Dayan, the present Israeli defense minister, declared: "Our task consists of preparing the Israeli army for the new war approaching in order to achieve our ultimate goal, the creation of an Israeli empire."

The British historian Arnold J. Toynbee, who served as an adviser on Near Eastern affairs to the British delegation at the Versailles Conference, in a newspaper article published in June last year (1967) stated the Zionist aims in these words:

We are Jews, the living representatives of Judah, one of the 12 tribes of Israel that conquered most of Palestine in the 13th century B.C. We held Judah's share of the conquered territory for seven centuries, till we were deported by Nebuchadnezzer in 587 B.C. We were back again within less than half a century, and we then held Judea, once more, for the next 773 years, till we were evicted by the Romans in A.D.

135. We have never renounced our claim to the land of Israel. We have always hoped, believed, and proclaimed that we shall get this land back again. It is our land, we contend.

After another 1,883 years we did recover a foothold there in 1918, and during the half-century since then, by devoted hard work, ability, and military valor, we have built up our present national State of Israel, and have inflicted three smashing defeats on the Arabs, who have been trying to evict us once again.

We want to have a country of our own again, like other peoples and like our own ancestors. We also need to have a country of our own, because, since the conversion of the Roman empire to Christianity in the fourth century A.D., we have been penalized and persecuted by the Western Christian majority among whom we have had to live.

The persecution has culminated in the unprecedented crime of genocide which has been committed against us in our lifetime by a Western people, the Germans, in Europe. We are not going to let the Arabs commit the same crime of genocide against us here, in our land of Israel.

[H: Now please note, readers, that this all refers to Biblical projections through that book *The Torah*. But ah, the *Talmud* is the accepted document of choice for the "Jews" in this modern day and age, so what gives? Well, it is recognized, also from first-given prophecies regarding these "lost" people that the U.S. will, one of these days, recognize the sham presentation and also evict these people in which case they will leave the Khazarian non-real Israelis in the U.S. while the so-called Jews take the land in the Middle East. It is a simple plan and it has worked to perfection thus far. The so-called Jews (who aren't Jews or Israelites) DO NOT WANT TO LIVE IN THE INCONVENIENT AND HOSTILE ELEMENTS OF THE MIDDLE EAST—THIS IS WHY THEY TOOK OVER THE FULL CONTROL OF THE UNITED STATES AND NORTH AMERICA. Is this somehow "anti-Semitic"? I hope not since all Middle Eastern races (Arabs) are, ALSO, SEMITES!]

GENOCIDE IN SIX-DAY WAR

Apologist Toynbee omitted mentioning the fact that the Jews themselves are currently engaged in genocide. During the Six-Day War last summer, Israeli Defense Minister Moshe Dayan ordered Brig. Gen. Yesha'ahu Gavish, the Israeli commander of the Sinai campaign, to ruthlessly drive the hapless Egyptian troops into the Sinai Desert to die of thirst, hunger and heat. Temperatures on the arid Sinai rise to more than 100 degrees during the day. For over two weeks thousands of wretched Egyptian stragglers wandered over the swirling wastes to finally drop dead in their tracks.

U.S. reconnaissance planes flying on the perimeter of the Sinai Desert took hundreds of pictures of the stragglers and reported there were about 50,000 Egyptians dead or dying on the desert at the time. The U.S. Air Force loaded 60,000 gallons of water in five-gallon jerry-cans on pallets and prepared to drop them in the areas where stragglers were observed. However, Defense Secretary Robert McNamara ordered the project mission of mercy halted after he received phone calls from White House foreign

policy-planner Walt Rostow and UN Ambassador Arthur Goldberg. [H: Yep, same old guys from the USURPERS and, most certainly, that same old Robert McNamara of Vietnam fame.]

This flagrant violation of the Geneva Convention on the treatment of prisoners of war amounted to genocide, designed to destroy a whole nation.

Newspaper reporters visiting the war zones in Syria and Jordan, reported that if one sniper in a village fired on Israeli troops, the whole village was destroyed including the women and children. Napalm is frequently used.

This systematic extermination is an ideological doctrine of Zionism, The leading exponent of genocide is the chauvinist Moshe Dayan, whom the Zionists have proclaimed a Biblical "messiah" on a white horse. Arrogant, boastful Gen. Yitzhak Rabin, chief of the Israeli General Staff, who plotted and executed the Six-Day blitzkrieg last June, is in direct charge of the projected expansionist program from the Euphrates to the Nile. [H: Following a few strategic assassinations, who do you suppose is now in charge of seeing to the Grand Plan?]

The scope of this ambitious scheme of territorial seizures and exploitation has been recognized by at least a few of our American military strategists for years. This writer recalls that a dozen years ago an Army lieutenant colonel, who was a student at the War College, confided that some of his instructors believed the Zionist expansionist policy would provide the spark to ignite World War III.

(Incidentally, the then lieutenant colonel is now one of the top commanding generals in Vietnam.)

By guile, treachery and bloodletting, the Zionists plot to annex all of Jordan, virtually all of Syria, half of Iraq and a large part of Saudi Arabia and all of the rich cotton lands of the Nile Valley. It would be a simple matter then to grab Yemen, Aden, Muscat, Qatar and Oman with their rich oil development. Israel is already well advanced in the development of its first nuclear warhead. [H: And, had the war not been cut short they would have used it in that Six-Day bloodbath. They NOW have an entire arsenal, thanks to you nice crazies of North America and they will be most happy to accommodate the use of some of them on YOU.]

"According to the Zionists' schedule of operations, within a decade the Israeli empire will be the master of the Middle East and take its place as a nuclear superpower on equal footing with the Soviet Union and the United States. David Rockefeller's Standard Oil Company will pay its royalties to the Israeli military usurpers instead of the Arab sheiks. [H: Does prophecy come true or what?]

FABULOUS OIL RESERVES

The stakes are high in this traditionally British-protected region. The Persian Gulf and adjacent countries hold 70 percent of the non-communist world's oil reserves and produce half of its oil output. British withdrawal from Aden creates a power vacuum that will inevitably be filled by Israel and the Soviet Union.

The British have expressed the pious hope that their withdrawal would galvanize the Arab rulers into dropping their feuds and really unite in a mutual defense pact. However, the spreading oil boom is inten-

sifying the territorial ambitions of rival kingdoms, sultanates and sheikdoms. Iran is selling oil to Israel, another aggravating factor in Mideast tensions.

Like the tentacles of an octopus, the Israeli armed forces struck out in all directions into Jordan, Syria and Egypt in Israel's Six-Day aggression last June. Even when encountering no resistance, the Israeli armored forces abruptly halted at predetermined strategic terrain points; they had accomplished their mission in the first phase of the Zionist Grand Design of imperialistic conquest. It was time to stop and consolidate their gains rather than risk spreading their forces too thin.

Israeli leader Menachem Begin says: "The return of even one bit of earth to the Arab would be a betrayal of the nation." The grandiose idea of an Israeli empire controlling the Middle East is now for the first time arousing great popular enthusiasm among Jews everywhere in the world.

Officially Israel is continuing the pretense of keeping the door open to negotiations that might result in return of the conquered territory, in exchange for Arab recognition of Israel and a peace treaty.

Jordan's King Hussein has reportedly already made a secret and desperate offer to Israel: In exchange for the return of the West Bank of the Jordan River, Hussein agreed to demilitarize it, negotiate border adjustments and even waive his insistence upon regaining the Old City of Jerusalem. Israel rejected the offer.

Israel Minister of Labor Yigal Allon bluntly stated: "The natural border of the country is the Jordan River—a border that could be established only if Israel kept the West Bank areas it took from Jordan.

Gen. Aluf Ezera Weizmann, second highest-ranking officer in the Israeli army, is even more adamant: "We shall stay where we are and bring in Jews. We now have the unusual opportunity to consolidate the state for the Jewish people and help prevent future wars."

"If there is a fourth war," Defense Minister Moshe Dayan gloats, "we are in a position to win more decisively than ever."

And he warned that in the "fourth war" the great cities of Cairo, Damascus and Amman will be annihilated. This is in conformity with the genocidal plan.

Israelis bitterly complain that along with the occupied territory that is three times the size of Israel, they have inherited its population of 1,330,000 Arabs.

Aliyah—voluntary relocation to Israel—has been a flop as far as Western Jews are concerned—few of them want to go to the Holy Land of their forefathers. The majority of Jews now in Israel are from Asia and Africa.

The system of government in Israel is a mixture of theocracy and gerontocracy. Full citizenship requires membership in the Jewish religion and Jewish ancestry. Israeli authorities refuse to accept Arabs or "Gentiles" (non-Jews) as full citizens with equal civil and political and economic rights. Militant Zionists frankly admit that Israel and neighboring Arab nations cannot coexist. They claim that the incompatibility

is due to ideological fanaticism. However, the Arab oil lands are fabulously rich.

"We must take steps leading to a long-range consolidation, lest we be considered a temporary, transient factor in the occupied areas," declares Israel Galili, minister without portfolio in the Israeli Cabinet.

The Zionists have invented the term "coercive noninterference" in explaining how they force the subjugated Arabs to cooperate with their conquerors. When the Mayor of Nablus announced that he would resign rather than front for the Jews, the Israeli military officers told him that no one would be appointed to replace him, which would result in utter chaos. The Mayor had second thoughts, stayed and obeyed the Jewish military commanders. Hundreds of similar examples could be cited.

ARABS FEAR GENOCIDE

"The Middle East today is dominated by raw, naked, savage, animal fear. The Arab nations are driven by the fear of mass death, by the fear of Israel's genocidal intentions toward them. Israel, by bringing in immigrants from all the world, has upset the demographic balance of the Middle East.

"The first basic fact about populations is that they multiply. The population of Israel is increasing, and the populations of the Arab nations are increasing. In the conflict between populations, either Arabs or Jews must someday end up being driven into arid desert wastes which will not support them, where they will find relief only in the oblivion of death. Israel means to kill the Arab populations and to occupy their lands. The Arabs, driven by fear of death, react powerfully. They seek the protection of a powerful nation, Russia, to which they will become tributary in return for protection . . .

"For the free world, this is a practically irretrievable disaster," says Benjamin H. Freedman.

"We might well rationalize all this as strictly none of our business except that hundreds of millions of American foreign aid dollars are being spent for the enrichment of an international Zionist network extending from Tel Aviv to Paris, London and New York. The Israelis are already pumping oil from Egyptian wells and splitting the profits with Rockefeller's Standard Oil combine. This is only the prelude.

Now for the first time Soviet Russia is successfully penetrating the oil-rich Mideast countries. The Russians have made agreements to explore for oil in Iraq, Iran and Egypt. They have extended bids for cooperative ventures to Algeria, Syria and Kuwait. The agreement with Iraq provides for development of oil reserves in an area taken away from Western companies.

Most of the Arab oil countries are starting oil firms to give them a stronger hold on their petroleum reserves and a bigger bite on profits. They have also recently hiked the royalties they get from the big Anglo-American oil firms.

The Soviets furnish the technical know-how to the Arab oil industry and work out world marketing agreements with the Arab rulers. The Soviet naval fleet is standing by in the Mediterranean. The Kremlin has launched an aggressive campaign to establish a protectorate over the Mideast oil lands. Russia finally has a firm grip on Egypt. Syria is now totally dependent on Soviet weapons and the protective arm of Moscow. The Soviets have a facility in Latakia. [H: And, just how many of you in view of today's changed world think that the Soviets wanted to protect and serve the Arabs???]

Yemen is receiving Soviet arms, Russian advisers are training its army, and Soviet armed forces are establishing base facilities in Yemen. After all the millions the U.S. gave Iran in foreign aid, the ungrateful shah (who has \$300 million stashed away in Swiss banks) is cooperating with the Soviets in construction of a natural gas pipeline that would feed Iranian gas to parts of Russia not easily served by Russian gas.

The sub-rosa partnership between Zionism and Communism is still a fact. As Israel drives the Arabs into the arms of the Kremlin, Israel expands, fulfilling a grand design and an aggressive plan agreed upon years ago. And like the Arabs, Americans are helpless victims in this international crime.

[H: Please pay especially close attention to this tid-bit about this author, John Henshaw, and see what your feelings are after you meditate on the subject for a minute.]

"The late John Henshaw was chief legman for columnist Drew Pearson, who later broke with Pearson. At that time, Henshaw's expenses were PAID BY THE ANTI-DEFAMATION LEAGUE, a lobby for Israel, which had a 'special relationship' with Pearson. Thus Henshaw's Middle East insights are unique."

[END OF QUOTING]

I don't need to spend more time on this topic for I think it must be clear that in 30 years a lot has progressed beyond the presentation of events in this report. It is, further, difficult for our paper staff to sit silently when they are blasted by our readers, some of them, for daring to print material by Gary Wean on the topic of Mishpucka (Jewish Mafia "Family") and, people, these people in point CALLED THEM-SELVES "SERPENT PEOPLE" IN THE THIRTEENTH CENTURY AND CHANGED THEIR LABEL TO "JEW" ONLY RELATIVELY RECENTLY. We don't have any other title to use since this is the title they project on selves, so it should be noted that perhaps people should get informed before they bitch, moan and complain about us not doing OUR JOBS. We offer—you take or leave it for we force nothing onto anyone or down anyone's throat. We are a "free press" efforting to offer all sides of any topic, and thus it shall remain for as long as we remain free to do so.

Dr. Young is the Editor of this paper and he is no dumb bunny out of the wino-gutter. He holds at least three doctorate degrees (in physics and engineering just to name two), and we honor RESEARCH. So, if you have complaints please go do equal research as have the ones whose work we reproduce and offer, and we shall be most happy to consider your viewpoint, be it different from what we have. You will find, however, that you will concur with our information AFTER you have done your homework!

Am I defensive of "our" crew at the paper? YOU BET! We all welcome disagreements, but we do not welcome insults, defamation or slander to our people working voluntarily around the clock to get this paper to you-the-people.

I believe you will find that the party with the most harsh but illogical and incorrect complaint is the same who answers his phone "Pleiades Space Command". Now "THAT" is a stretch if ever there was one.

We respect YOUR RIGHT to do and say that which you choose, but it might well reflect, in wisdom, not to cut throats of the very ones who are diligently trying to save our necks—along with YOURS.

It would be hoped that WE ALL are doing our utmost to the better good of humanity and knowledge

in an open and free society brotherhood of man, so we take heavily the rocks heaved upon our heads under such adverse circumstances as we daily face.

I have not lightened the burden or hours of keyboard writing for my scribe during these several months of seeming absence, BUT, the information scribed is personal and instructional as to funding and other matters such as projects, proposals and the like. This means that where I was writing 99% of the paper's contents, we now must leave 99% for others to fill. But we are back pretty much, so don't hold your breath or you will have learned how to ascend. We are doing our jobs—and we can only assume that you too, are doing yours?

May you be given to THINK first, and then, in wisdom, write or speak. Salu, and I take my leave in the Light of the Radiant One.

CHAPTER 4

REC #1 DORIS

TUE., NOV. 18, 1997 9:43 A.M. YR.11, DAY 094

TUE., NOV. 18, 1997

May I please editorialize a bit? I have only used up one of my annual "twice permissions" to write on my own account and thank my beautiful friends for all the wondrous love and joy they have sent this year. I am totally filled with laughter at some of the things which come back to me, like the beautiful letter that came to "Dirus". Then, there was a lovely note about my new name which I had apparently affixed to a note. No, it is not a new name, it is simply that my right hand didn't know what my left hand was doing and was on the wrong typewriter keys.

I chuckled as I recalled an Art Linkletter session with his little kids saying the darndest things. The little boy was just turned six and it was only a few days before Christmas and the subject got, somehow, around to race. The boy said he was Jewish and Art asked him, "How do you know that you are Jewish?" Answer, with total logic: "Because my favorite gum is Jui-cy Fruit."

Art: "Oh, then do you get a lot of that in your stocking on Christmas and do you have a Christmas tree up and ready?" Reply: "Oh sure, because everybody knows you have to have a tree to grow packages."

Art: "Well then, are you a believer in Santa?" Answer: "No, I'm a Catholicism Protestical." (!!!)

It makes you wonder, doesn't it? As humans we lose sight, totally, of ourselves and our directions as we hang onto that which is physical and manifest upon our stages of experience.

I also hang onto that adage that "God Loves YOU!", and "you" in first person is "me", I choose to believe.

With all this KNOWLEDGE in full-blown acceptance, I know there will always be a reason, a logical reason, for everything that comes along as I nold truth, honor and knowing at the head of my directions and actions. I don't have to complain, nag, bitch and moan over anything. *This doesn't mean, please, that I don't do these things; it is simply that I don't have to.*

Am I a messenger? Well, in that I type a lot I suppose the "message" manages to come through—but no, I do not actually consider myself to be much of a messenger—just "a" (among zillions of) little observers. HE is the Messenger, and in that realization I do not have to be perfection to serve HIM. Every moment of the day and night I try to always recognize that THE Man said: "I am the way, the truth, and the life. No man cometh unto the Father but by me." John 14:6

It took almost a lifetime of foolishness to figure out what was meant here by that recognition and it surely makes life a lot easier for me. I marvel that it takes so long and so much trouble to finally recognize the point of this journey.

Was this "man", Jesus—THE WAY? No, that is not what he said. He said that through the CHRIST way was the only passage to our Father. And now, we don't even REMEMBER the way.

I realize that I can now say, "Except through me you cannot realize the gifts of The Father." It has nothing to do with "me"; it means that except through the directions, instructions, truth, light and life can we recognize that we even have gifts. Then we must reach out beyond ourselves to perfect and bring to honorable conclusion those gifts as intended for our return passage unto the Father. [Doris, 11-18-97]

With this statement made, I can only surmise that I will live long enough and receive enough guidance to endure and see to it that our mission is accomplished in spite of everything the adversary can toss in our faces. Watching and marveling over "miracles" has NO MEANING; we must create the miracles for same to have any value, any meaning or any realization.

Am I now putting myself above others? No, for I am only ONE of the myriads of speakers, receivers, holders of gifts great and small, and only a tiny fragment of the ALL which shall prevail. I am so grateful to have come to realize my purpose, my mission, AND MY RESPONSIBILITY. Wouldn't it be fun to come to know just HOW LONG I have searched and blown it? And, if we have experienced through the eons of time and space, why is remembering so elusive? Perhaps it is because it is not what you were but, rather, what you ARE that has meaning if there should be a "will" be.

Without putting down any person or persons who have come through this way and shared a bit of "in love" with me, I am grateful and hope that I have offered back some measure of meaning of the term, "love". However, to be in love is not the same things as a soul being "*IN LOVE*". I have no way to offer back unto the One who keeps me WITHIN LOVE to ever bring more than a pittance back in return.

One of the first questions always asked of me, even from such as Shulman of *EXTRA* is "But, why do you do this?" My only response could be: "Do what?"

I know what people mean to ask, but I can't ever seem to respond with other than something that seems trite and unworthy, and since truth and goodness seem to make everyone else quite uncomfortable, the subject is usually ended pretty quickly. But, you see in the person's eyes that they have heard you and they, too, will never be so sloppy in their presentations, again. I watch *EXTRA* as often as I can and I find that hardly a segment passes, when the subject Mr. Shulman covers is important, that he doesn't phrase something Commander Hatonn told him "that" infamous day in our little borrowed-for-the-occasion multipurpose room.

It was decided to never run a rebuttal to the original international story they ran, which was total fabrication, because "the subject is simply too great to allow further confusion by those who can't see or hear." They will help us in legal actions against those who set up the whole encounter but respect compels them to leave, at the least, Dharma alone. He went to the parking lot to do his "lead-in" and it was starting: "Everyone comes to an idea or a story with skepticism—BUT…"

Following the encounter, we understand the CIA and FBI both had major meetings of top-level entities and the orders came down: "LEAVE THEM ALONE". You have to understand that only WE don't understand the magnitude of our place in this play. "They" do know and they know the agreements and

"they" make every effort to simply place higher secrecy covers on the LEAD player(s). I don't even rank high enough for a bother to tuck me in at night!

We try to live every action so that we neither, further, get "tucked away" for some blunder. And, we note the adversary's team is simply collapsing into a heap of worthless garbage.

I find myself wondering what it must be like to meet God at the end of a journey such as Ed Cleary, ex-Priest, had to face [upon his transition, 11/10/97] in the confrontation of that which IS and has recently been perpetrated by him with his so-called "new friends". He once told me in great humor that "I have just now learned to feed myself; it was nice being King." I wonder what it was like recognizing wrong intentions and directions when standing face to face with THE MAN OF HIGHER UNIVERSAL BEING. I'm sure that it was wonderful, for God has nothing save forgiveness and HE doesn't judge—so we make our own contracts and know what kind of sentence we next have to serve if we blew parts of the prior one. And Ed? Well, I assume he realizes that whatever negative "stuff" he dumped onto us will be among our greatest learned lessons for use as we move on. There was no crowd to honor his life—he was ultimately ALONE as to human friends—if there was even ONE. Even his care was a "paid-for" undertaking and the heart is saddened at the loss for I do not like perceiving that anyone has to have lesser that I might have my lessons, and yet, how else do we ever get our lessons except through the relationships of that which IS and is presented in more than one observation platform? If no one states their misunderstandings and "what went wrong" how can we correct even so much as a business presentation? And I have learned that when people try every way imaginable to get whatever I have, even if I can't see anything, then I have to realize that I have something THEY WANT.

Since Spiritual Truth is rarely what I assume people want in this world play of "getcha" and "get it", then I have to, again, assume that what I hold they might well have in order that we can move along in our own special direction under and through God's way. And, indeed, we set about discerning and judging just how best to offer, with bonus shares, that which they seem to be trying to steal. They can jolly well work out their own final and ultimate realizations. All we have to do is act with integrity and within truth and honor and we shall have that which is needed for ultimately concluding our own intent of a "better way" for our having passed, again, THIS way.

Is "it" slow in coming? Only to us does it seem slow for we are impatient and, once seeing "the way", we are annoyed with everyone else who can't seem to grasp a meaning outside themselves and their centralized worlds of realization.

Can we do and accomplish that which is given us to accomplish? Of course; it can't be otherwise. How do I KNOW? Because, friends, if "I am the way, the truth, and the life, no man cometh unto the Father but by me." And, if the only ULTIMATE focus or purpose of MAN is to return to and within "the Father", what other assumptions are there to accept save that this SHALL BE DONE. This is not religion or pious prattling. It is factual truth beyond religious doctrines laid forth BY MAN for his own better status in power and ego. And moreover, I have no right nor wish to thrust my knowing upon your believing.

I have also come to know that my "dying" will not relieve me of my contract nor of my commission accepted. Perhaps when we all realize this one truth, we can better work hand-in-hand to accomplish goodness upon this place. My realization is that when "me" is working and praying only for "thee" and

"thee" is only doing the same for "me"—then and only then can we accomplish ANYTHING, for until "thee" is more important to "me" than is "me", we can't progress off dead center of self.

I have recently given much thought on the lesson from Little Crow who speaks about "breath" being "life" in this dimension. When you can't breathe, it becomes very important, these little words. I have, as I have been more and more deprived of "breath", come to realize that those ACTIVITIES of living ARE *NOT THE SAME THINGS AS LIFE*. I have learned more about "life" and "living" than in all my running about hither and yon thinking that spinning on the treadmill was the purpose of being somehow "alive". No, running around is but an effort to come to grips with "death" as we erroneously suspect it comes to pass. But, friends, GOD HAS TO HIT US, USUALLY, WITH THAT 2x6 to even begin to get our attention!

I can't run the local marathon for any good cause—but nothing stops me from running my fingers over the keyboard except pure laziness. I don't even have to work up a sweat or breathe deeply to click away on these new-fangled print machines. In addition, the plus of not being able to speak so much non-stop is that I find far fewer of my own feet stuffed in my mouth. Might we all have such a respite in our journey!

I now know something else of great importance, and that is that we do not need go back to the very meagre basics of living to survive and grow—we only have to go back to the Spiritual Truth of the CONCEPTS of basics. And, further, we only have to seek out that which holds the basics for our use and create a way to again accomplish the "impossible" from that which is ALWAYS POSSIBLE. GOD WILL ALWAYS PRESENT THE "POSSIBLE"—NEVER THE NEGATIVE ASPECTS OF NON-CREATIVE IMPOSSIBILITIES.

I don't need to write a book here and I realize that over the years I have grown and I have been that open book which all of you see more openly than can I for we have walked long together in agreement and disagreement while we struggle to accomplish whatever we perceive is our task. I can honestly report, though, that I now KNOW God loves me and God loves you—AND LOVE NEVER HURTS OR DESTROYS—<u>NEVER</u>. So, I also KNOW that when we stop perceiving every blemish as a big deal of God's punishment, only then can we let go enough to succeed in those "impossible" games.

Another secret I will share is that, were I feeling better and could breathe normally, I would NOT be at this keyboard for I perceive so many other things to be done as to stagger my own mind. Nay, my job is HERE—AT THIS KEYBOARD—for this is the ONLY way the instructions get past my own fingers and brain. If I KNOW and I do not share that knowing, then I have lived selfishly and totally in vain. This becomes a hopelessly lost world ONLY IF WE ALLOW IT TO HAPPEN.

I see all the loving things people send to shore up my hurts and the love expressed in everything from cards to flowers and I am overwhelmed for I know it is not to a lady named Doris; it comes to a servant-in-arms and in coalition with the senders of those flowers and they say to me: "Come on, get up off your self-pity and let's get on so we 'each' can get our jobs done." Some things sent are so precious and have such meanings to only the sender as to shock us into realization that we are ALL in this, equally and together. We hold those things in safety against the day when abundance is about us and the "things" can be returned or kept as precious reminders of the true value of our passage. We only have lack of abundance in a measure that we create to limit our growth. I choose to have no more limitations for I hold to the first portion of the GREAT LESSON: "IAM THE WAY, THE TRUTH, AND THE LIFE...". In this are ALL

THINGS MADE POSSIBLE.

It is suggested that I am sounding like a preacher of some kind—if I had a "religion". So, therefore, I do religiously have a Spiritual reality which is ok with me. I am appalled at the great numbers of people who make religion a career of some kind. Revelation doesn't "just happen", except as insight, and those who pander to the uninsightful are lower than criminal to me in my own estimation. They tout that which they are "fed" to glorify some doctrine or other—while God is left out in the cold, outside the heart of the so-called church which claims HIS name.

May I always accept the gift offered unto me that I can then take that gift and figure out what I might do with it to better serve. It always works, so I wonder at our own futile attempts to deny it.

So, do I fear God? Apparently in some measure of human misunderstanding. But I realize that I only RESPECT God for there can be no fear in TOTAL LOVE. I accept—HE LOVES. I realize that I, like you, can only be that which I AM, and to be more I must learn and come into knowing. If, though, I accept that when the student (me) is ready, the teacher (HIM) will be present, accounted for, ready, willing, and able (with that 2x6). I come now to realize that I (WE) can no more fail to become that for which we are destined than can the mighty eagle become a sparrow.

I do not wish to "come unto the Father but by..." for, if I would choose another route, I would not reach THE Father I so surely seek. I would remain among the hapless seekers of the generations who miss the boat every time it sails.

I will go now and I think I might meditate a while as I realize that my Teacher wrote my lesson for me—AGAIN. In that quiet place I shall be shown the WAY, the TRUTH and the LIFE, and we will be instructed on our next actions to make sure we accomplish the worthy goals we have jointly chosen to share in this journey. You who know me KNOW that I am nothing and that you are nothing—BUT TOGETHER WE ARE BEYOND ALL MEASURE OF ABILITY OF AN ENEMY TO BRING DOWN. That realization makes it clear that IF NOT ME, WHO? And, if there be "me", there is a "you" and among us—we have it ALL. It is simply universal LAW.

Let us make this the year of the COMING AGAIN OF GOD AMONG US for it takes me and it requires YOU. Can we not make GOD a finalization of all that is goodly and stop allowing the term to simply be a prefix for "damn"? Why must we turn the wondrous perfection of the universe into a gutter-being to make our egos be able to function in this world of physical misfits? GUNS DON'T KILL PEOPLE—PEOPLE KILL PEOPLE AND THAT LOVE OF KILLING IS THE DESTRUCTION OF OUR SPECIES.

I shall walk a bit taller this day because of this lesson shared and, perchance, breathe a little more deeply (pun intended), and in that deeper breath of life perhaps see a little farther, and in that larger vision perhaps God shall show me the way! I am quite sure that the CHOICE is going to be mine and that I shall have to confront that choice, myself and myself alone—AS HE AWAITS MY CHOOSING AND DECISION.

I think that on my tombstone it will read: WHAT IN THE WORLD TOOK YOU SO LONG? It should not have required a rocket scientist to figure it all out—but it did, and all I can do now is move on and get the job done. Do I fear God? No, but I am terrified in fear of everything OUTSIDE of GOD. So, if you see

me hanging on for dear "life" in that bubble of invisible shield, come on in because I will make room for you—I will not move out for you. I will live for you and for God; I am unwilling to die either for you or for that which would be a false God who would even ask such a choice.

But for now, and perhaps more important to the weary reader, I shall close this lecture to myself. Thank you for your indulgence and sharing a bit of a coffee-break with me. I will remind myself that you were not actually a "captive" audience for you could have quit reading anywhere from the first word onward.

May the Light that guides our way be THE Light so that we never fall nor wander from our task in point.

With any kind of luck, for you readers, this will be my final personal time-grab for this year. D.J.E.

CHAPTER 5

REC #2 HATONN

WED., NOV. 19, 1997 11:15 A.M. YR.11, DAY 095

WED., NOV. 19, 1997

AND ON AND ON IT GOES!

Readers, new people exposed to *CONTACT* often speak in terms of our "fear tactics" and, further, accuse us of being anti-government, extremists, and thus and so. No, we point out the facts and the TRUTH. We try always to back up each bit of information with documentation from somewhere around the globe so that you don't have to decide whether or not you "can believe" us.

Just today in the news you will find a very casual announcement that TONS OF POTENT (ONE DROP-LET OF THIS STUFF WILL KILLA HUMAN INSTANTLY) stuff has been acknowledged, located, and attention is being demanded for removal and disposal. Is this something to do with that miserable, awful and genocidal Saddam Hussein in Iraq, further justifying all sorts of bombings and terrorist wars? *No, it is in mid-Indiana* [Please get the correct information as we might even have the wrong location], *so the breaking story goes. Many tons of the "stuff" is stored and urgent fear of leakage is upon you all!* This is described as "war material" and is airborne. I hope this gets placed on the "hotline" as more information is gathered at *CONTACT* because it would appear to me that criticism and criminal sanctions might well need to start on your own doorsteps instead of killing off the rest of the world at your convenience.

Dharma can only deal with one topic at a time as we still TYPE every word of every article handled by her and me. This is to cause full attention to the topic as well as to realize that if we can write it—you have time to read it! I am confident that by next Tuesday's paper deadline there will be more information.

OTHER WARNINGS IN THE CURRENT NEWSCAST

Ok, readers, the push is on for care in cooking and storing holiday foods, especially turkey and any meats. "You need to defrost everything in the refrigerator, cook thoroughly, purify the cutting boards and the counter tops EVERY TIME USED, and 'use common sense'." To make your holiday time more relaxing the mouths go on to exclaim to be cautious of unpasturized apple juice and cider and any egg-nog, along with raw or poorly cooked eggs. They also point out that such as salmonella can be present on greens and sprouts and even on nuts.

Have a happy, happy HOLIDAY, friends. I hope some of you are around after the fact to wish you had paid attention.

OUTBREAKS OF CONTAMINATION

IN THE FOOD SUPPLY

I have written so frequently and in such depth prior to this on the various mysterious outbreaks of disease along with new or old microbes which have become so resistant as to be considered possible of pandemic genocide that I have hesitated to nag you readers more about care and attention.

Lately, however, there has been such attention and so many petitions for input that I feel compelled to again speak on the subject having been sent a copy of the current *U.S. News and World Report* wherein even the cover is pointing out the immediate dangers. This, while you have a pending war in Iraq and other amazingly important topics are covered by other leading news magazines.

The cover pictures a sick calf and the printed reference reads: First, a calf on this Vermont farm got sick. Then the cows started dying. Then the people fell ill. Soon, federal scientists were hunting down a virulent new microbe.

I have stressed prior to now and will attempt to again warn you and stress once more the dangers involved in what is now taking place to endanger the good health of every living animal species on your globe.

What can you do? Well, I can't do more than remind you to get and find out all you can about the colloids now being offered for use because antibiotics are becoming more and more useless with each new outbreak. I also remind you that you can still find purification through the use of hydrogen peroxide prior to intaking items that might be contaminated.

I can only speak on these topics, suggest possibilities for protection and then, readers, the ultimate responsibility for yourself and family rests upon your own shoulders. We are a newspaper and have no input to your medical or physical health matters. We do make an effort to make available useful items and information but we can do no more. WE DO NOT IN ANY WAY PRACTICE MEDICINE NOR DO WE PRACTICE LAW. These professional practices are Gods and God-like organizations run by the Medical Association and Bar Association (private entities and not licensed federally authorized entities). I, further, have asked repeatedly that YOU NOT ASK US TO EVEN REMOTELY DIAGNOSE OR SUGGEST TREATMENT FOR ANY HEALTH OR LEGAL CIRCUMSTANCE.

This topic is so important, however, as to cause me to ask to run the article as offered: *U.S. NEWS AND WORLD REPORT*, Nov. 24, 1997, Cover and beginning story, page 70.

Since we will not go to press in time for newsstand issue to be purchased we will, as agreed, offer the entire article and copies can be obtained directly from the magazine.

Full credit and appreciation is given to the magazine and to the author, Amanda Spake and photographer, Yunghi Kim.

Subscription information: *U.S. NEWSAND WORLD REPORT*, PO BOX 52133, BOULDER, CO 80323-2133.

It is with great seriousness that I ask you to pay attention and this attention should go around the globe for, with the extremes in weather patterns and flooding expected to be widespread, you will find a major and

rapid upsurge of all diseases and contamination of animals and farm lands along with produce brought to market. Your only line of defense is a full-out line of offense to pre-treat food products in every *possible* instance while also being prepared to IMMEDIATELY take counter-action if symptoms occur. If anyone eating with you begins to present symptoms—ACT INSTANTLY.

[QUOTING:]

"O" IS FOR OUTBREAK

TROUBLED PARADISE: Some 70 percent of all outbreaks of foodborne illness are traced back to meat and poultry products.

Amanda Spake

When a drug-resistant salmonella struck a Vermont farm, health officials knew it might be just the beginning...

Cynthia Hawley walked out the back door of her mother's house about 8 a.m. to feed the calves. It was a cold May day at Heyer Hills Farm, but she remembers the sun was shining, unusual for Franklin County, Vt., 50 miles south of Canada, where snow stays on the Green Mountains sometimes into June.

Hawley crossed the stone steps to the barn and got the pails for the calves' grain and fresh milk. When she carried Evita's food into her hutch, she saw that the calf's eyes were sunken and her belly was bloated. Evita, mostly black with just a little white, was her baby, her beauty, a perfect Holstein. Hawley gave the calf some aspirin, a shot of the antibiotic ampicillin, and the milk. But by 2 p.m. Evita was worse. Hawley phoned her veterinarian, Milton Robison, and left a message that a calf was very sick.

Robison arrived at the farm about 4 p.m. All the calves were running high fevers. Suspecting he might be dealing with some sort of salmonella, he treated the animals with analgesics, with electrolyte solutions because they were dehydrated, and with more ampicillin to knock out the bug. None of it helped Evita, and about 9 p.m. the calf died.

The next morning, another calf was down. Wednesday morning there was a third. Most of the animals suffered blood diarrhea, a sign that bacteria were destroying their intestinal walls. In the vet's experience, cows fought off salmonella on their own, just as most healthy people do. But these animals weren't fighting it off. And the odd thing was that the antibiotic wasn't working either. Was his diagnosis wrong? An autopsy on the second calf that died revealed massive damage to the lining of the intestine. Yes, it was salmonella. But what kind? Robison already had sent stool samples from the first calves to the veterinary lab at Cornell University, his alma mater, but results were days away. Now he sent a section of the dead calf's intestine on to Cornell, too.

At Robison's suggestion, Hawley, 45, and her mother, Marjorie Heyer, kept the young grandchildren away from the barn. But, like many dairy farmers, the Heyers drank their own, unpasteurized milk. "It tastes better," Heyer says, "and you're selling it for \$1 a gallon. Are you going to buy it [at the store] for \$2.50?" They'd never had a problem with contamination at the farm before; why should their raw milk be

unsafe now? [H: I have to remind you that only 7 drops of food grade hydrogen peroxide or *Oxysol* would purify the gallon of milk, or pasteurization (heating) of the milk in a pan on the stove would also have purified this particular form of contamination.]

Neither Hawley nor Heyer knew that they were battling a virulent new foodborne pathogen. Or that, within days, nine members of the family would fall ill, and one would nearly lose her life.

EACH YEAR UP TO 81 MILLION Americans suffer a foodborne illness; 9,100 die. The cost to the nation is anywhere from \$5.6 billion to more than \$22 billion per year in medical treatment and lost wages. Bad food also makes big headlines. Last August, Hudson Foods ordered the largest meat recall in history—25 million pounds of hamburger patties—after *E. coli 0157-H7*, a deadly bacterium, was found in its burgers. Imported raspberries contaminated with the parasite cyclospora sickened thousands in 29 states in the spring of 1996 and again in 1997. Last month, United States Department of Agriculture inspectors discovered *E. coli 0157-H7* in ground beef shipped to a Virginia grocery by Beef America, resulting in another big recall. And earlier this month, some 700 people became infected with *Salmonella heidelberg* after eating ham stuffed with greens and spices at a church supper in rural Maryland. Two women died and 31 other people were hospitalized.

THE ODD THING WAS THAT THE ANTIBIOTICS WEREN'T WORKING

Traditionally, America has had the safest food supply in the world, enviable for its quantity, quality, and cleanliness. Rapid changes in food production have put a cheap chicken in every pot—and a chicken takeout shop on every corner—and brought the bounty of the global garden to our doorstep. We live in a "culture of plenty", unimaginable 50 or 60 years ago when most food still was grown locally by individuals and small producers on family-owned farms.

Plenty has its price, however. Outbreaks of foodborne illness have become more common, larger, and international in source and scope. And federal enforcement of food-safety laws, spread among 12 different agencies, has grown disparate and chaotic as the food industry has expanded and become more complex. The Food and Drug Administration has 700 inspectors and lab personnel to monitor 53,000 food-processing plants and all imported produce. Plant inspections have slipped from once every three to five years in 1992 to once every 10 years today. "Recalls," says Maurice Potter, assistant director for foodborne diseases at the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention in Atlanta, "are an admission of defeat—they're bad for everyone." Recalls of FDA-regulated products have increased almost fivefold since 1988.

About 70 percent of outbreaks of food-borne illness are traced back to meat and poultry products, according to the USDA which regulates animal foods production and processing. Eighty percent of illnesses and 75 percent of deaths from meat and poultry products are caused by two pathogens—salmonella and campylobacter. Crowding animals together on large farms, multistep processing, and broad distribution of perishable food—all, ironically, hallmarks of our modern food system—promote the spread of both bacteria.

Scientists have been familiar with some strains of these two pathogens for years. But as better ways to

produce foods have been developed, the bacteria have found new ways to infect the food. "If you understood the epidemiology of foodborne illness 10 years ago, you don't necessarily understand it to-day," says Michael Osterholm, chief epidemiologist at the Minnesota Department of Health. Five or 10 years ago, says Osterholm, the No. 1 vehicle for foodborne disease in Minnesota was meat; now it is produce. Microbes also have shown far more cunning than researchers once imagined they could. Scientists did not discover until 1986 that *Salmonella enteritidis*, rare in this country in the 1970s, had found its way *inside* the shells of eggs by infecting the ovaries of laying hens. Passed to humans who eat undercooked eggs, the strain now kills more people than any other foodborne pathogen in the United States.

The most worrisome development, however, is the emergence of new disease organisms *resistant to drug treatment*. Like the bug that struck last spring at Heyer Hills Farm.

THE IMPORTANCE OF THE ILLNESSES might never have been recognized had it not been for Doc Robison. On Thursday, May 8, Robison checked back with Cornell on the calves' samples. He'd been right; the culture plates indicated salmonella. By *Friday*, Cornell had the strain: *Salmonella typhimurium*. The samples were being forwarded to the USDA lab in Ames, Iowa, for phage typing, a screen that would yield more information about the bug. Robison reported the salmonella outbreak to the Vermont Department of Health, as vets and physicians are required to do by law.

By Monday, May 12, 5-year-old Nicholas Heyer, Cynthia Hawley's nephew, had become very ill with diarrhea, cramps, fever, and vomiting. Nicholas's cultures were positive for salmonella. The illness can be deadly to young children (who don't yet have well-developed immune systems), to the elderly, and to people with chronic illnesses, cancer, or AIDS. In some cases, the bacteria pass through the intestinal wall into the bloodstream where the infection, if not stopped, can be fatal. The CDC estimates there are 2 million to 4 million salmonella cases in the United States annually, and perhaps 200,000 of those people are sick enough to see doctors. About 6 percent of serious infections invade the bloodstream. An estimated 1,000 to 2,000 people die of salmonella yearly.

Nichola's doctor wasn't taking any chances. He put the child on Bactrim, an antibiotic combination of trimethoprim and sulfamethoxazole. Soon, Heyer and five or six other people around the farm who'd been drinking milk came down with the illness. Their doctors, in turn, treated them with Bactrim.

Robison told a colleague at the Vermont Department of Health that he thought something unusual was happening at Heyer Hills Farm. Not only were a significant number of cattle dying but people at the farm were getting sick, too. He had a touch of it himself. Robison piqued the interest of the Vermont Health Department, which contacted the CDC in Atlanta.

Until Friday, May 16, Cynthia Hawley thought she had escaped infection. She had cared for the sick cattle, but she drank no raw milk. She had an appointment at noon to get a haircut in Burlington, 25 miles away. At the hairdresser's, she began to have chills. Then she was burning up. Next, she began to feel excruciating pains in her stomach and lay down on a couch. Within an hour, she could not stand up. At about 2 p.m. she phoned her mother and asked if she and Cynthia's sister could pick her up and take her home.

By the next day, Hawley could not keep liquids down. Her diarrhea began to turn bloody, just like the

calves'. Heyer drove her daughter to the nearest hospital, in St. Albans. Emergency room doctors there called in Mara Vijups, an internist. Vijups did an examination, heard about the salmonella, and admitted Hawley immediately.

The hospital hooked her up to electrolyte solutions to hydrate her, and Vijups prescribed a synthetic penicillin (she was allergic to Bactrim). Hawley worsened. After a day, Vijups tried another antibiotic, a cephalosporin, without success. Mostly, Hawley slept. She struggled to the bathroom on Sunday to find her diarrhea watery and very bloody. "I was pretty scared," she remembers. "I knew from the cows that once their diarrhea started getting watery and bloody, they were dead."

On Monday morning, May 19, Vijups, Hawley's doctor, checked on her in the hospital. Hawley had seen a news report the night before about the spread of a new salmonella strain in England. "I know I've got that DT 104," she told Vijups. To her surprise, Vijups responded, "Yeah, that's what we're dealing with."

The report from the USDA laboratories in Iowa had come back that morning. The samples showed *Salmonella typhimurium* DT 104, identifiable by its resistance to five or more antibiotics including ampicillin, chloramphenicol, streptomycin, sulfonamides, and tetracycline.

THE CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL and Prevention in Atlanta is located in a six-story brick building adjacent to the campus of Emory University. At the Foodborne and Diarrheal Diseases Branch of the Center for Infectious Disease, eight epidemiologists spend the majority of their time working their computers and telephones. Eight medical investigators, epidemiologists in training, are sent to the site of outbreaks. But only in a limited number of outbreaks—about 12 in each year—does the CDC actually send an investigator to look for more cases, interview patients, take lab samples, and report back to Atlanta. Those cases are chosen because CDC scientists believe they will lead to new information and advance the science of foodborne disease.

The heart of the CDC's operation is the electronic network it has built with local health departments in every state. The health departments feed raw numbers to the CDC weekly. The public hears about salmonella or E. coli when large numbers of people are hospitalized. But most foodborne illnesses are not associated with large outbreaks. They are "sporadic" or isolated cases among individuals that may never be reported to health departments or the CDC. The CDC estimates that for every reported case, 10 to 100 go uncounted.

Sitting in small cubicles, staring at printouts, CDC epidemiologists scour the state data looking for patterns, trends, and anomalies. When the epidemiologists find something curious, the CDC notifies the state health department and asks for more information or suggests avenues of investigation. When CDC scientists find trends that worry them enough, they begin to track the bacteria worldwide. And that is how epidemiologist Frederick Angulo, became obsessed with *Salmonella* DT 104.

Angulo had watched this bug sweep through Germany, Denmark, England, and Wales, eventually emerging in the United States. DT 104 was identified in this country in 1985. By last spring, when the Heyers were trying to save their dying calves, Angulo had discovered that 10 percent of all salmonella cultures being sent to the CDC were the DT 104 strain. He knew of only one large U.S. outbreak, among

19 Nebraska schoolchildren in October 1996. The source was never determined.

In England, DT 104 already had become epidemic. It was killing 40 percent of infected cattle and putting 36 percent of people who became sick the hospital, twice the number expected from food poisonings. There are bacteria that stay in only one type of animal and never make people sick, DT 104, however, first infected cattle, then spread to other species in every country where it gained a foothold—and no one was sure how.

Angulo knew that in the United States, DT 104 had already been found in sheep, pigs, horses, goats, cats, dogs, elk, mice, coyotes, squirrels, raccoons, chipmunks, pigeons, and starlings. The birds were a real concern because their droppings spread disease everywhere. As microbiologist Paula Fedorka-Cray, the USDA's DT 104 expert had said, if it's in birds "it would just be a matter of time before it would show up in a lot of animal species". There was some evidence in England that DT 104 had first infected exotic birds, parrots, and parakeets, which had spread the infection to cattle through feed.

[H: My serious suggestion is that you who have chickens (poultry of any type) and/or domestic aviaries or indoor birds, that you keep handling, especially mouth contact to an absolute minimum. I further suggest that if you want to avoid the problems outlined here that you treat all water with abundant *Oxysol* and/or Hydrogen Peroxide. I further suggest you add some colloidal gold, silver, titanium and copper to the drinking water of all possible pets and even wild animals that may feed and water at your stations. There is no need to lose pets or wildlife to this invasion, or to any other, but I can't remind you enough that the antibiotics available will not touch these new strains of bacteria.

I am asked if the devices which are sold to produce silver colloid are any good? I don't know. If you don't get a good golden color tone to your product—NO.

It may be realized before this whole thing of new microbes settles down that there will have to be colloids produced of iridium and even mercury to have the frequency required to knock out these bugs.

If you are taking silver colloids and/or gold colloids and are getting no positive results I suggest you add *Oxysol* to the intake and, as well, titanium colloid. In colloidal form these elements are totally safe and neither can you overdose. Avoid any large amounts of "fall-out" in the products. In addition I strongly suggest you get yourself some Gaiandriana and Aquagaia so you can rebuild and enhance your immune systems. I know of no other source than New Gaia for Oxysol or the dria products, Aquagaia and Gaiandriana. In addition, it would be an exceptionally good idea to keep on hand plenty of Gaialyte because diarrhea caused by these new strains of microbes will almost instantly dehydrate the body and damage the intestinal tract.]

IN ENGLAND, DT 104 ALREADY HAD BECOME EPIDEMIC

The English experience with DT 104 is notable for several reasons. Ten years ago, the bacteria began infecting cattle and killed many of them. Farmers in the UK treated infected cattle with several types of

antibiotics. Within about two years, the bacteria became resistant to the antibiotics. The first humans infected in the UK were like the Heyers, dairy farmers who had direct contact with sick animals and drank their own raw milk. But the bacteria soon moved into other food animals.

When Peter Galbraith, Vermont's state epidemiologist, called Angulo in Atlanta to tell him that DT 104 had shown up on a dairy farm near Burlington, the CDC quickly dispatched investigator Cindy Friedman to Vermont.

CHAPTER 6

REC #1 HATONN

FRI., NOV. 21, 1997 8:29 A.M. YR.11, DAY 097

FRI., NOV. 21, 1997

U.S. NEWS AND WORLD REPORT, Nov. 24, 1997, Cover and beginning story, page 70: [RESUME QUOTING]

ONCE HAWLEY'S DOCTOR HAD THE report from the USDA lab, she realized the only drug DT 104 was clearly *not* resistant to, was a powerful class of new antibiotics called fluoroquinolones, "the drug of last resort", as one doctor calls them. Vijups gave Hawley a fluoroquinolone called ofloxcin, which probably saved her life.

Scientists have recently discovered genes that carry antibiotic resistance on plasmids, or extra pieces of DNA, that are replicated when a bacterium multiplies. What makes DT 104 so special is that its resistance genes are located right on a chromosome, hard-wired into it, making antibiotic resistance easier to pass along to the next generation of bacteria.

[H: When on these topics the next question is usually, "Is this a man-crossed species?" The response has to now remain, "most are" and let it suffice for once out of control it doesn't matter a whit who started the thing and you should focus on what to do to avoid being a death statistic if you encounter the invader. Where you have had nothing identical prior and yet a lot of people "come down" with it at approximately the same time—you can consider that it probably is an intentional process, at least in the beginning.]

Since the early 1990s, there has been growing controversy over using the few remaining effective antibiotics to treat animals, thereby creating multiresistant strains against which humans will have no defense. When DT 104 struck cattle in the UK, farmers used Bactrim to treat them; since 1993, 14 percent of DT 104-strains in the UK had become resistant to fluoroquinolones and nearly 30 percent had developed resistance to trimethoprim, the agent in Bactrim that kills DT 104. "With antibiotics, the more you use them the faster you lose them," says Patrick Wall, chief of gastrointestinal disease at the public Health Service Laboratory in London.

Wall underscores his point with a story about holiday turkeys. Last year some turkeys were put on fluoroquinolone drugs by a farmer in England who feared a respiratory disease would make them ill and unsalable. "But once you introduce a quinolone drug to kill one bug, it causes resistance in all the others," Wall says. "So a large number of these turkeys ended up with multiresistant DT 104 infections that were also resistant to fluoroquinolones."

Soon after, there was an outbreak in a restaurant where frozen turkeys were left out all night to thaw. The next morning, the chef came in and thought the turkeys were fresh. He didn't cook them long enough

to kill all of the DT 104 bacteria in the meat. "Thirteen people became ill with *salmonella* DT 104 infections," Wall says, "and one person died. Because the bacteria had become fluoroquinolone-resistant, there was no drug to treat that one very sick person."

The FDA's Center for Veterinary Medicine is reviewing an application to use fluoroquinolones to treat cattle. A fluoroquinolone for treating E. coli infections in poultry was approved by the agency in 1995. Now fluoroquinolone-resistant campylobacter have shown up in poultry.

Linda Tollefson, an epidemiologist at the FDA's Center for Veterinary Medicine, says DT 104 has caused some soul searching within the agency and the scientific community. "I think the situation in the U.S. has the potential to be similar to that in the U.K.," she says. "The fact that it's epidemic in the UK is something FDA takes very seriously."

THE CDC INVESTIGATOR, FRIEDMAN, arrived at Heyer Hills Farm shortly after Hawley came home from the hospital on May 24, nine days after she was admitted. Because the outbreak sickened both humans and animals and because it closely paralleled the English experience, the CDC considered it scientifically significant. At about the same time Friedman was arriving in Vermont, other CDC scientists were investigating DT 104 outbreaks in Washington State and in California. Hundreds of people fell ill from eating Mexican *queso fresco*, or fresh cheese, made from unpasteurized milk and sold in Mexican-American communities in both states.

Washington State health officials were unable to trace the cheese back to a particular dairy. But DT 104 had been a growing problem in the state's dairy herds and beef cattle. According to research by Thomas Besser at the department of veterinary microbiology and pathology at Washington State University, no DT 104 infections were reported in the state before 1986. But by 1995, 84 percent of the salmonella samples from cattle were DT 104. Among humans, 42.5 percent of the 1994 samples were DT 104.

The power that emerging pathogens like DT 104 potentially hold over our food supply has not gone unrecognized in Washington, D.C. Over the past year, the federal government has instituted a new Hazard Analysis Critical Control Point (HACCP) system to try to halt the march of the microbes in slaughter-houses and food processing plants. Beginning in January, USDA inspectors will begin reviewing results of the new, mandatory testing for generic E. coli (a sign of fecal contamination) required of the slaughter-houses under HACCP. Only 1 in 300 beef carcasses, 1 in 3,000 turkeys and 1 in 20,0000 chickens will be tested, however. No microbial testing is required in meat and poultry processing plants.

Some of those within the government who have faith that HACCP will improve food safety still recognize its limitations. "We, of course, *hope* HACCP will lower the pathogen load in food," says USDA's I. Kaye Wachsmuth, deputy administrator of the Office of Public Health and Science at the Food Safety and Inspection Service. But she concedes that the food industry has, to date, been no match for the microbes. Between 1990 and 1992, for example, an average of 25 percent of all chickens FSIS tested were positive for salmonella. Under the agency's new "Pathogen Reduction Performance Standards" 20 percent of a company's broiler chickens and 45 percent of its ground chicken can test positive for salmonella and the plant will still be in compliance with HACCP. Among turkey processors, the magic number will probably be 15 percent.

This may not be quite as bad as it sounds. According to Michael Doyle of the University of Georgia's Center for Food Safety and Quality Enhancement, salmonella colonies in poultry are small and cause illness only when the birds are mishandled, such as when frozen turkeys are not fully thawed.

The real problem with poultry is not salmonella but *Campylobacter jejuni*. Recent data that have been made available to the federal government by the Minnesota Department of Health show that 70 to 90 percent of chickens and turkeys in Minneapolis supermarkets have been tainted with campylobacter. Unrecognized until 1977, campylobacter is now the most frequent cause of acute bacterial diarrhea in the nation, striking from 2 million to 8 million people each year.

In an effort to bring order to the crazy quilt of food safety enforcement, legislation was introduced in Congress on November 4 that would create a \$1 billion-a-year Food Safety Administration. Caroline Smith DeWaal, food-safety director at the Center for Science in the Public Interest, proposed such an agency—hundreds of outbreaks ago.

The CDC's Angulo says that new food safety initiatives may eventually reduce foodborne-illness risks, but they don't attack the problem at its source. "What DT 104 is calling for," Angulo says, "is a more comprehensive understanding that foodborne illness starts on the farm. Stopping it will require a paradigm shift, a re-evaluation of everything from the massive use of antibiotics in animal feed to the practice of giving calves milk from cows who are sick or that have just given birth. These are very common practices which no one had to worry about until DT 104.

CINDY FRIEDMAN WAS ALSO DEVELOPING this comprehensive understanding—from the ground up in Vermont. She was interviewing family members, testing animals, and sampling milk tanks.

By the end of the outbreak in June, 22 of the 147 cows at Heyer Hills had become ill and 13 had died. Friedman found 17 other cows with positive DT 104 cultures. Three of the family's six dogs were positive, too, but did not fall ill. "We cultured the bulk milk tank filter on two occasions," one week apart, Friedman says. Both samples were positive. "DT 104 was still in the milk." Ninety percent of family members who drank milk became ill. But milk was only one cause of the illness. Caring for sick cattle was another. "This was the first outbreak that conclusively showed animal-to-human transmission," she says.

Leaving Heyer Hills Farm after three weeks of detective work, Friedman was still pondering the questions that bedevil Fred Angulo and England's Patrick Wall: "How did DT 104 get on this farm? How did it move around? Why is it so virulent? And where will it show up next?"

[End of Quoting]

If you are inclined to take this very lightly and pass right on over the fact that "you too can be infected" but don't want to bother, I suggest something else for your possibility thinking.

Since we have long recommended that you people carry a supply of 35%s Food Grade Hydrogen Peroxide to use in your water wherever you happen to be, I now have another suggestion for your attention: IN ADDITION TO THE HYDROGEN PEROXIDE DROPS YOU ORDINARILY USE, DOUBLE THE DROPS IN THE WATER, ADD APPROPRIATE AMOUNTS OF OXYSOL (10 TO 20 OR 30 DROPS

PER GALLON, SO AT LEAST 5 TO 7 DROPS PER GLASSFUL) ALONG WITH GOLD, SILVER, COPPER AND TITANIUM, *MIXED COLLOIDS*, ADDED AS WELL IN EACH GLASS. IF YOU ADD THE COLLOIDS YOU CAN CUT DOWN ON THE AMOUNT OF HYDROGEN PEROXIDE AND THERE WILL BE LITTLE OR NO TASTE. DRINK *LOTS* OF THIS TREATED WATER ALONG WITH YOUR MEAL AND SOME "BEFORE AND AFTER" TO BE IN YOUR INTESTINAL TRACT FROM ONSET OF A MEAL. If you attend this procedure very quietly and simply tell your host, if asked, that you are having to add digestants per physician's orders, there will NO EMBARRASSMENT—PERIOD. Somebody has to stay well, just in case. If a lot of people get sick, for goodness sakes, somebody has to attend them. In this capacity as attendant—keep the colloids at ready FOR YOURSELF!

Wash hands often and rinse in hydrogen peroxide (any old 3% from the store will do). Do not get careless and lazy for the life you can save THIS TIME might very well be your own, and believe me, just the lack of the symptoms that go along with this disease is worthy of full mention.

I ask that a message be put on the hotline BEFORE Thanksgiving reminding everyone to be CAREFUL, take measures to prevent illness and take a little effort at precautions.

Let us give attention to holiday tips as listed in conjunction with this article just presented. The outline can be put on the hotline as a reminder that it is serious in eating-land and that the full story will be in the next paper. You will note the "news" is hitting these warnings heavily, but not THE CAUSE—only the reminders to take care—OR BLAME YOURSELF IN ORDER TO PROTECT THE PRODUCERS AND MARKETERS.

[QUOTING SAME REFERENCE]

TURKEY A LA MICROBES?

by Mary Brophy Marcus

A closer look at the traditional Thanksgiving spread—say, through a microscope lens—may make you hesitate before eating. Here are ways to make sure your holiday feast is safe.

Turkey and stuffing. If undercooked, turkey can spread *Campylobacter jejuni*, the leading cause of foodborne bacterial infection in the United States. Campylobacter sickens about 2 to 8 million people annually, causing up to 800 deaths. Doctors have also recently discovered that campylobacter can lead to Guillain-Barre syndrome (GBS), an autoimmune disease that attacks nerve tissue, causing temporary paralysis and chronic nerve-related abnormalities. One strain of campylobacter, 019, seems to produce very high rates of GBS—one case in 158 infections. Turkey can also carry salmonella, culprit in 2 to 4 million illnesses and at least 1,000 deaths per year. To avoid the nausea, vomiting, diarrhea, and other more serious side effects of these bacterial invasions, the USDA urges shoppers to avoid prestuffed birds, to buy poultry last, and to defrost it only in the fridge. Stuff the bird right before cooking [H: OR NOT AT ALL; CAN'T YOU COOK THAT STUFFING SEPARATELY AND NOT RUN THE RISK? THERE WILL BE NO DIFFERENCE IN TASTE IF YOU SEASON WELLAND THERE IS THEN NO CHANCE OF PICKING UP ANYTHING UNWANTED. IT ALSO SAVES TIME AT THE TABLE FOR THE SCOOPING AND LATER FOR THE PUT-AWAY "SLAVES".], AND MAKE SURE IT REACHES 180 DEGREES AT ITS THICKEST POINT. STUFFING SHOULD

REACH 165 DEGREES. TO SLOW-COOK OVERNIGHT OR HAVE ROASTED MEAT OUT ALL DAY IS TO INVITE A CASE OF FOOD POISONING, BECAUSE BACTERIA THRIVE AT TEMPERATURES BETWEEN 40 AND 140 DEGREES. The USDA's year-round Meat and Poultry Hot Line (800-535-4555) is open from 8 a.m. to 2 p.m. EST *on Thanksgiving Day*. [H: That should tell you all you need to know, good feasters!]

Paté, deli meats, soft cheeses. Listeria is far less common than salmonella and it is sometimes found in foods made with unpasteurized milk. The bacterium can lead to stillbirths, miscarriages, and meningitis, and causes about 250 deaths yearly, though that number is dropping with prevention efforts. One study suggests high digestive-tract acidity fights listeriosis, so people on **antacids may be more at risk**.

Eggnog. Homemade with raw eggs, the holiday favorite is an environment ripe for *Salmonella enteritidis* bacteria growth. No amount of strong liquor will kill the bug. Amazingly, 50 percent of Americans still eat raw or undercooked eggs. Pasteurized eggnog is OK.

SHELLFISH. Grandma's oyster stuffing could carry the bacterium *Vibrio vulnificus* if shellfish is undercooked. The same goes for raw shellfish harvested from warm waters, culprit in 10,000 poisonings and 100 deaths annually.

Fresh fruit and vegetables. Fresh produce consumption has jumped 50 percent since 1970. Lettuce, tomatoes, and fruit can carry salmonella if tainted by sewage water or unclean hands. *E. coli*, the bacterium found in undercooked hamburgers, has also popped up on lettuce. In 1996, Guatemalan raspberries contaminated with the parasite *Cyclospores cayetanensis* were implicated in a rash of poisonings. So you might be wise to forego those fresh raspberry tarts in favor of cooked berries. Perhaps serve over vanilla ice cream—made from pasteurized milk, of course. *Mary Brophy Marcus*

[END OF QUOTING]

Readers, I am NOT going to do your homework for you and I have covered what to do if you are eating OUT or at anyone's home so as to not cause a flap of any kind or get any attention for any precautions.

What you are going to end up doing before the years fold in on one another is to be responsible for RECOOKING or at the least REHEATING or using irradiated foods. A good cook will become one who serves SAFE food. This does not have to be more difficult than simply COOKING CORRECTLY or utilizing cleansing washes.

Even in the baking of breads and pastries the liquids can be decontaminated by these products mentioned above. It is not always suitable to boil or pasteurize the liquids. However, a warning is that some liquids will not give up their bugs to simple pasteurization but it certainly will take out the real buggers of today. Look up temperatures on "pasteurization" in your local dictionary. I am not a food and drug resource for doing your homework.

Can you just imagine what will happen if contamination causes thousands to get ill or even perish from all the Holiday free meals for the homeless and hungry? This could wipe out your major downtrodden areas of any or all cities.

BUT HOW COULD CONTAMINATION BE ACCOMPLISHED OTHER THAN THAT ALREADY PRESENT?

Bunches of ways—if contamination is the thing of the day to accomplish.

I haven't time today to focus on something that seems so weird and harmless as to shock you but can have access for airborne microbes of any kind and their effective spreading. This just happens to be a cute new toy of the powers-that-be so don't shrug it off as a cute Christmas trick.

The title of the Article is: STEALTH THAT FITS IN YOUR HAND. DoD toys with use of Tonka-sized airplanes.

There are now, as we write, little toy-sized airplanes (15 cm long, the size of a man's hand or smaller) that can be sent out on patrols, missions, contamination projects and bombing raids. These can be placed ANYWHERE and can land on the side of buildings or on people. The payload can be dropped, sprayed in the air currents, in the rain or wherever suitable. Can you imagine that Indiana gas that is more potent and lethal than Serin in a solution dispersed through a "toy" airplane? Well, start imagining because the tricks are upon you.

So, beloved ones, have a HAPPY HOLIDAY SEASON and *EAT WELL*! But, please remember: AN OUNCE OF PREVENTION IS WORTH A POUND OF CURE—ESPECIALLY WHEN THERE <u>IS NO CURE</u>. And remember something else while you are *THINKING*: Saddam Hussein has NOTH-ING compared to what <u>your</u> deadly dealers have available and are now putting into daily use. The play for the world takeover is now under way and it doesn't come from Iraq.

REMEMBER AS WELL: GOD CURES NO ONE, ANY TIME, ANYWHERE—HE SHOWS YOU THE WAY, OFFERS SOLUTIONS TO THE PROBLEMS AND YOU HAVE TO HEAL SELF OR REMAIN UNHEALED! Salu.

CHAPTER 7

REC #1 HATONN

SAT., NOV. 22, 1997 10:57 A.M. YR.11, DAY 098

SAT., NOV. 22, 1997

SMALL PROBLEMS

I feel a bit at a loss as to how to dump "it all" onto you and not have you just shut down from overload. And, further, does it really help to know everything and stir your worry centers to fiddlestrings? Please remember that YOU are the most important receiver, **BUT, I have to write as if all 7-billion PLUS people on the planet are getting their only messages from this keyboard. Please, if an article is not your "cup-'o-tea", realize that someone has to have the information.** Sometimes the point is just to let the Elite Power Takers KNOW that WE KNOW. Public knowing is the ONLY real measure of security that you are going to gain. If you KNOW what to do to protect yourself, or just that "they" have these potentially lethal methods of "gettin'-ya", you can't be gotten IF YOU ATTEND WITH CAUTION YOUR PRECAUTIONS.

To move onto the Stealth that fits in your hand, as promised yesterday, I would point out that this is a BIG piece of equipment compared to what was chuckled over from Japan just yesterday. There is a tiny mechanism which is a replica of an automobile—but is so small that it can only be seen through a microscope. To compare size with something recognized they had painted a tiny "road" around a couple of American dimes. The little auto was still so tiny compared to a dime that even enlarged by microscope it was hardly visible. Now, that is not the wonder of the thing for after all it was certainly as large as a MICROBE, AND, could produce and be a carrier mechanism for ANYTHING chosen to be dispersed through that tiny toy. With that in mind we will offer the new "Defense Trends" as presented in an article sent by 2x6 from Florida.

miniature stealth plane

It comes from *NAVY TIMES*, Nov. 24, 1997.

[QUOTING:]

STEALTH THAT FITS IN YOUR HAND

DoD toys with use of Tonka-sized airplanes

by George Seffers and Mark Walsh

Thank you so much for your gift to Fourwinds and your kind prayers and thoughts for our work. We walk in faith, knowing that very, very soon NESARA shall happen, the windows of Heaven shall be opened and the abundance shall flow, and the starships of our friends shall land with their new technologies, and we shall have peace! Keep hope alive!

H: We are talking about the size of something which is about 15 cms. That would be approximately the length of less than the width of two columns of this newspaper.]

The Defense Department wants to field fleets of tiny airplanes, no more than 15 centimeters long, capable of conducting communications, reconnaissance, and even *lethal missions*.

The Pentagon's Defense Advanced Research Projects is expected to award a multimillion dollar contract to develop those Micro Air Vehicles by the end of this month.

The airplanes, which will be no bigger than a man's hand, will perform a variety of missions at the brigade, platoon or lower levels in urban neighborhoods, forests or mountains. They will be ideal, experts say, for covert missions requiring short flight and stealth.

"Unlike a Predator or some other unmanned aerial vehicle, they can fly down a city street and be unseen, or at least have a very low signature," said David Murphy, weapon system analyst with Delex Systems Inc., a Vienna, Va.-based company specializing in defense research and analysis.

The radical exploratory development program is sponsored by DARPA, Arlington, Va., which has budgeted nearly \$15 million in 1997 and 1998. Agency officials expect to spend about \$35 million by 2000.

James McMichaels, program manager for DARPA's Tactical Technologies Office, has vowed public silence on the project until source selection was made, according to spokeswoman Jan Walker, but Walker said the agency is "down to the wire" on selections.

Possible contenders for the program include Northrop Grumman Corp., Los Angeles, and Lockheed Martin Corp., Bethesda, Md., which have studies under way on futuristic unmanned combat vehicles. Additionally, Xerox Corp.'s research center in Palo Alto, Calif., which is working with DARPA on research for dust-like surveillance particles, also five- to 10-year time frame," said Manny Garrido, director of advanced systems for Battlespace Inc., Arlington, Va.

For the immediate future, any micro-unmanned system would not have the ability to fly continuously or carry a substantive payload, a British unmanned aerial vehicle engineer said.

[H: I am going to interrupt right here to point out something going on as we write that you may well have missed with all the international distractions.

We wrote about microbes which are *somehow* being introduced into the food chain. Do you think that the carrier must "*look like*" a microscopic automobile or airplane? Come on, readers, you can do better than that just by listening to, AND HEARING, the news as offered.

There is news offered that says to the effect that "Iraq can manufacture enough Anthrax to wipe out the world in just a few short weeks!" Say what? Manufacture? What have we here if not the MANUFACTURE of an artificial microbe? I would hasten to point out that two or three decades ago there were THOUSANDS of sheep in the area around Tooele, Utah (Dugway Proving Grounds) wiped out totally by escaped Anthrax from an accidental spill at Dugway. Since this is the resource for the Iraq stash and start-up "manufacturing capability", I find it interesting that YOU PRODUCED IT FIRST AND MADE IT AVAILABLE.

What restrictions do you think might be placed on an airborne bunch of microbe-appearing carriers infecting specific animals and people—any day, anywhere, World location? The approach is always to hit in unsuspected areas but where the parts of the game are easily accessible for animal, human, and plant studies. Don't let this leave your consciousness for a minute as you work through the next series of attempts on pandemic outbreaks.

Can you protect yourself from these artificial organisms? No, probably not, but you can protect selves from the natural REPRODUCTION of same as well as from the spread of the resulting disease cycle. It does, however, depend on your willingness to recognize these attempts on society AND BE WILLING TO TAKE THE TIME AND EFFORT TO USE PRECAUTIONS. EACH PERSON IS RESPONSIBLE FOR SELF, SO STOP BLAMING "MOTHER" OR "DAD" OR THE LOCAL POLITICIAN FOR NOT ATTENDING YOUR NEEDS. YOUR LIFE, AND YOUR SOUL, ARE <u>YOURS</u>, SO TREAT THEM AS THAT WHICH THEY ARE, IMPORTANT!]

"But it's certainly an area that we're interested in because it would be *covert* (hidden, secret, silent)," said Peter Gibson, technical expert in unmanned aerial vehicles at the British Defense Evaluation Research Agency.

FLY-ON-THE-WALL ROLE

The Defense Department has no requirement for any lethal payload for unmanned aerial vehicles of any size. But the micro-airplanes, which will weigh only a few grams and carry tiny payloads, could prove effective weapons in certain situations, Francis said.

"A single bullet can do in a human being pretty easily," Francis said, adding that a small amount of plastic explosives also could be carried. "If you can pre-position a small payload near a [command, control and communications] nerve center, you don't necessarily need a big bang." It is also noted that the benefits of exploring micro-vehicles may go beyond things that fly.

"And there are likely to be interesting spin-offs in the future," Gibson said. "For example, reconnaissance systems as small as a colony of ants could negate the need for these systems to be airborne platforms." [H: Yes, and then you can blame it on some magnificent *ACT OF GOD* or simply never publicly know the reason something was infected or blown to smithereens.]

CONSTRUCTION CHALLENGES

Three major challenges to building the tiny fliers include aerodynamics, propulsion and navigation. [H: It is OBVIOUS that these obstacles have already been overcome and methods of management have already been perfected.]

Aerodynamics are radically different for smaller vehicles than for larger ones, meaning that what makes a 747 go down may make a micro-plane go up. [H: Please NOTE that a smaller little creature like this can ALSO MAKE ANY-SIZED LARGER CRAFT GO DOWN, NOT JUST AERO-DYNAMICS BUT WITH A BIG, BIG BANG—TRY TWA 800!] To help solve the problems, Francis said, defense officials should use Nature as a model.

"Birds do it and have been doing it," Francis said, referring to flight on a small scale. "Did Nature not choose propellers because it didn't know how to make them or because it didn't need to?"

DARPA has not yet defined how the vehicles will be propelled or controlled. Although battery power is most likely for early versions, micro-jet engines being developed by the Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Cambridge, Mass., and expected new similar developments could be big players.

Retired Air Force Col. Michael Francis, the former DARPA program manager who launched the initiative, said the vehicles are being developed to take advantage of revolutions in microelectronics and micro-mechanics.

Micro-components rapidly are becoming an option for low-cost, highly maneuverable battlefield technology.

The vehicles also could play a fly-on-the-wall role; landing on walls, in trees, or near air ducts for underground bunkers and using sensors to gather information before flying back to the operator. They even could be called on to fly near an enemy's communications center and jam transmissions.

The vehicles could be deployed from a plane, unmanned aerial vehicle or a soldier's backpack.

Navigation could include remote control, preprogramming or, eventually, guidance by the Global Positioning System satellite network.

The effect on the battlefield so far is a question mark, experts said. While they cannot be relied upon in open areas or on windy days, the vehicles will offer an advantage in areas dangerous for troops.

[END OF QUOTING]

Now, readers, doesn't all this just make your day? Undoubtedly you can relax and know that your future potentials are in good hands—surely!

Without more to-doo about little things I think you who might need some input on the more recent discussions about "sci-fi" weapons now recognized as "wonder weapons". Last July 7, 1997 *U.S. NEWS AND WORLD REPORT* did a special report on these bully-weapons and it is time to share that with you who might not have had access to that journal.

[QUOTING, from U.S. NEWS AND WORLD REPORT (Cover Story report), July 7, 1997:]

WONDER WEAPONS

The Pentagon's quest for nonlethal arms is amazing.
But is it smart?

by Douglas Pasternak

Tucked away in the corner of a drab industrial park in Huntington Beach, California [H: You know, local readers, right down there in Southern California where the Chinese have been and are landing.], is a windowless, nondescript building. Inside, under extremely tight security, engineers and scientists are working on devices whose ordinary appearance masks the oddity of their function. One is cone shaped, about the size of a fire hydrant. Another is a 3-foot-long metal tube, mounted on a tripod, with some black boxes at the operator's end. These are the newest weapons of war.

acoustic weapons

For hundreds of years, sci-fi writers have imagined weapons that might use energy waves or pulses to knock out, knock down, or otherwise disable enemies—without necessarily killing them. And for a good 40 years the U.S. military has quietly been pursuing weapons of this sort. Much of this work is still secret, and it has yet to produce a useable "nonlethal" weapon. But now THAT the cold war has ended and the United States is engaged in more humanitarian and peacekeeping missions [H: OH, BARF!!], the search for weapons that could incapacitate people without inflicting lethal injuries has intensified. Police, too, are keenly interested. Scores of new contracts have been let, and scientists, aided by government research on the "bioeffects" of beamed energy, are searching the electromagnetic and sonic spectrums for wavelengths that can affect human behavior. Recent advancements in miniaturized electronics, power generation, and beam aiming may finally have put such pulse and beam weapons on the cusp of practicality, some experts say.

Weapons already exist that use lasers, which can temporarily or permanently blind enemy soldiers. [H: Or, in the case of Dodi al Fayed, just kill them DEAD.] So-called acoustic or sonic weapons, like the ones in the aforementioned lab, can vibrate the insides of humans to stun them, nauseate them, or even "liquefy their bowels and reduce them to quivering diarrheic messes," according to a Pentagon briefing. Prototypes of such weapons were recently considered for tryout when U.S. troops intervened in Somalia. Other, stranger effects also have been explored, such as using electromagnetic waves to put human targets to sleep or to heat them up, on the microwave-oven principle. Scientists are also trying to make a sonic cannon THAT throws a shock wave with enough force to knock down a man.

While this and similar weapons may seem far-fetched, scientists say they are natural successors to projects already underway—beams that disable the electronic systems of aircraft, computers, or missiles, for instance. "Once you are into these antimateriel weapons, it is a short jump to antipersonnel weapons,"

says Louis Slesin, editor of the trade journal *Microwave News*. That's because the human body is essentially an electrochemical system, and devices that disrupt the electrical impulses of the nervous system can affect behavior and body functions. But these programs—particularly those involving antipersonnel research—are so well guarded that details are scarce. "People [in the military] go silent on this issue," says Slesin, "more than any other issue. People just do not want to talk about this."

microwave weapons

PROJECTS UNDERWAY

To learn what the Pentagon has been doing, *U. S. News* talked to more than 70 experts and scoured biomedical and engineering journals, contracts, budgets, and research proposals. The effort to develop exotic weapons is surprising in its range. Scores of projects are underway, most with funding of several hundred thousand dollars each. One Air Force lab plans to spend more than \$100 million by 2003 to research the "bioeffects" of such weaponry.

The benefits of bloodless battles for soldiers and law enforcement are obvious. But the search for new weapons—cloaked as they are in secrecy—faces hurdles. One is the acute skepticism of many conventional-weapons experts. "It is interesting technology but it won't end bloodshed and wars," says Harvey Sapolsky, director of the Security Studies Program at MIT. Says Charles Bernard, a former Navy weapons-research director: "I have yet to see one of these ray gun things that actually works." And if they do work, other problems arise: Some so-called nonlethal weapons could end up killing rather than just disabling victims if used at the wrong range. Others may easily be thwarted by shielding.

Sterner warnings come from ethicists. Years ago the world drafted conventions and treaties to attempt to set rules for the use of bullets and bombs in war. But no treaties govern the use of unconventional weapons. And no one knows what will happen to people exposed to them over the long term.

Moreover, medical researchers worry that their work on such things as the use of electromagnetic waves to stimulate hearing in the deaf or to halt seizures in epileptics might be used to develop weaponry. In fact, the military routinely has approached the National Institutes of Health for research information. "DARPA [Defense Advanced Research Projects Agency] [H: Guess this one is FRESH IN YOUR MINDS?] has come to us every few years to see if there are ways to incapacitate the central nervous system remotely," Dr. F. Terry Hambrecht, head of the Neural Prosthesis Program at NIH, told *U.S. News*. "But nothing has ever come of it," he said. "That is too science fiction and far-fetched." Still, the Pentagon plans to conduct human testing with lasers and acoustics in the future, says Charles Swett, an assistant for Special Operations and Low-Intensity Conflict. Swett insists that the testing will be constrained and highly ethical. It may not be far off. The U.S. Air Force expects to have microwave weapons by the year 2015 and other non-lethal weaponry sooner. "When that does happen," warns Steven Metz, professor of national security affairs in the U.S. Army War College, "I think there will be a public uproar. We need an open debate on them now. [H: They ARE perfected and nobody has put up any debate about them at all other than to remark how wonderful to cut down on killing. Who is feeding

LASER ETHICS

[H: Indeed "they" have actually used the term "ethics". It's a Mad, Mad, Mad, Mad World!!!]

What happened with U.S. forces in Somalia foreshadows the impending ethical dilemmas. In early 1995, some U.S. Marines were supplied with so-called dazzling lasers. The idea was to inflict as little harm as possible if Somalis turned hostile. But the Marines' commander then decided that the lasers should be "de-tuned" to prevent the chance of their blinding citizens. With their intensity thus diminished, they could be used only for designating or illuminating targets.

On March 1, 1995, commandos of U.S. Navy SEAL Team 5 were positioned at the south end of Mogadishu airport. At 7 a.m., a technician from the Air Force's Phillips Laboratory, developer of the lasers, used one to illuminate a Somali man armed with a rocket-propelled grenade. A SEAL sniper shot and killed the Somali. There was no question the Somali was aiming at the SEALS. But the decision not to use the laser to dazzle or temporarily blind the man irks some of the nonlethal-team members. "We were not allowed to disable these guys because that was considered inhumane," said one. "Putting a bullet in their head is somehow more humane?" [H: And carefully look at WHO is always the one to use these mass weapons of destruction, like the Atomic Bomb—FIRST! You people always cry out for GOD to "bless America"? Where do YOU COME FROM? WHAT GOD IS IT THAT YOU PETITION TO GIVE YOU WHAT YOU THINK YOU WANT?]

Despite such arguments the International Red Cross (Liz Dole's private organization) and Human Rights Watch have since led a fight against anti-personnel lasers. In the fall of 1995, the United States signed a treaty that prohibits the development of lasers designed "to cause permanent blindness". [H: Oh well, "oops" goes a long way in explaining anything and everything.] Still, laser weapons are known to have been developed by the Russians, and proliferation is a big concern. Also, the treaty does not forbid dazzling or "glare" lasers, whose effects are temporary. U.S. military labs are continuing work in this area, and commercial contractors are marketing such lasers to police.

ACOUSTIC PAIN

The next debate may well focus on acoustic or sonic weapons. Benign sonic effects are certainly familiar, ranging from the sonic boom from an airplane to the ultrasound instrument that "sees" a baby in the uterus. The military is looking for something less benign—an acoustic weapon with frequencies tunable all the way up to lethal. Indeed, Huntington Beach-based Scientific Applications & Research Associates Inc. (SARA) has built a device that will make internal organs resonate: The effects can run from discomfort to damage or death. If used to protect an area, its beams would make intruders increasingly uncomfortable the closer they get. "We have built several prototypes, says Parviz Parhami, SARA's CEO. Such acoustic fences, he says, could be deployed today. He estimates THAT five to 10 years will be needed to develop acoustic rifles and other more exotic weapons, but adds, "I have heard people as optimistic as one to two years." [H: Well, you have now seen advertising for "invisible" pet fences that do not do anything to passing humans (????). Come on now, don't play dumb with me.] The military also envisions acoustic fields being used to control riots or to clear paths for convoys.

SARA's acoustic devices have already been tested at the Camp Pendleton Marine Corps Base, near the company's Huntington Beach office. And they were considered for Somalia. "We asked for acoustics," says one nonlethal weapons expert who was there. But the Department of Defense said, "No," since they were still untested. The Pentagon feared they could have caused permanent injury to pregnant women, the old, or the sick. Parhami sees acoustics "as just one more tool" for the military and law enforcement. "Like any tool, I suppose this can be abused," he says. "But like any tool, it can be used in a humane and ethical way."

Toward the end of World War II, the Germans were reported to have made a different type of acoustic device. It looked like a large cannon and sent out a sonic boomlike shock wave that in theory could have felled a B-17 bomber. In the mid-1940s, the U.S. Navy created a program called Project Squid to study the German vortex technology. The results are unknown. But Guy Obolensky, an American inventor, says he replicated the Nazi device in his laboratory in 1949. Against hard objects the effect was astounding, he says: It could snap a board like a twig. Against soft targets like people, it had a different effect. "I felt like I had been hit by a thick rubber blanket," says Obolensky, who once stood in its path. The idea seemed to founder for years until recently, when the military was intrigued by its nonlethal possibilities. The Army and Navy now have vortex projects underway. The SARA lab has tested its prototype device at Camp Pendleton, one source says.

ELECTROMAGNETIC HEAT

The Soviets were known to have potent blinding lasers. They were also feared to have developed acoustic and radio-wave weapons. The 1987 issue of *Soviet Military Power*, a cold war Pentagon publication, warned that the Soviets might be close to "a prototype short-range tactical RF (Radio Frequency) weapon". The *Washington Post* reported that year that the Soviets had used such weapons to kill goats at 1 kilometer's range. The Pentagon, it turns out, has been pursuing similar devices since the 1960s.

Typical of some of the more exotic proposals are those from Clay Easterly. Last December, Easterly—who works at the Health Sciences Research Division of Oak Ridge National Laboratory—briefed the Marine Corps on work he had conducted for the National Institute of Justice, which does research on crime control. One of the projects he suggested was an electromagnetic gun that would "induce epileptic-like seizures". Another was a "thermal gun [that] would have the operational effect of heating the body to 105 to 107 degrees Fahrenheit. Such effects would bring on discomfort, fevers, or even death.

But, unlike the work on blinding lasers and acoustic weapons, progress here has been slow. [H: I hope you have as much difficulty reading this hogwash as I have presenting it to you.] The biggest problem is power. High-powered microwaves intended to heat someone standing 200 yards away to 105 degrees Fahrenheit may kill someone standing 10 yards away. On the other hand, electromagnetic fields weaken quickly with distance from the source. And beams of such energy are difficult to direct to their target. Mission Research Corp. of Albuquerque, N.M., has used a computer model to study the ability of microwaves to stimulate the body's peripheral nervous system. "If sufficient peripheral nerves fire, then the body shuts down to further stimulus, producing the so-called stun effect," an abstract states. But, it concludes, "the ranges at which this can be done are only a few meters."

Nonetheless, government laboratories and private contractors are pursuing numerous similar programs. A 1996 Air Force Scientific Advisory Board report on future weapons, for instance, includes a classified section on a radio frequency or "RF Gunship". Other military documents confirm THAT radiofrequency antipersonnel weapons programs are underway. And the Air Force's Armstrong Laboratory at Brooks Air Force Base in Texas is heavily engaged in such research. According to budget documents, the lab intends to spend more than \$110 million over the next six years "to exploit less-than-lethal biological effects of electromagnetic radiation for Air Force security, peacekeeping, and war-fighting operations".

LOW FREQUENCY SLEEP

From 1980 to 1983, a man named Eldon Byrd ran the Marine Corps Nonlethal Electromagnetic Weapons project. He conducted most of his research at the Armed Forces Radiobiology Research Institute in Bethesda, Md. "We were looking at electrical activity in the brain and how to influence it," he says. Byrd, a specialist in medical engineering and bioeffects, funded small research projects, including a paper on vortex weapons by Obolensky. He conducted experiments on animals—and even on himself—to see if brain waves would move into sync with waves impinging on them from the outside. (He found that they would, but the effect was short lived.)

By using very low frequency electromagnetic radiation—the waves way below radio frequencies on the electromagnetic spectrum—he found he could induce the brain to release behavior-regulating chemicals. "We could put animals into a stupor," he says, by hitting them with these frequencies. "We got chick brains—in vitro—to dump 80 percent of the natural opioids in their brains," Byrd says. He even ran a small project that used magnetic fields to cause certain brain cells in rats to release histamine. In humans, this would cause instant flulike symptoms and produce nausea. "These fields were extremely weak. They were undetectable," says Byrd. "The effects were nonlethal and reversible. You could disable a person temporarily," Byrd hypothesizes. "It [would have been] like a stungun."

Byrd never tested any of his hardware in the field, and his program, scheduled for four years, apparently was closed down after two, he says. "The work was really outstanding," he grumbles. "We would have had a weapon in one year." Byrd says he was told his work would be unclassified, "Unless it works." Because it worked, he suspects that the program "went black". Other scientists tell similar tales of research on electromagnetic radiation turning top secret once successful results were achieved. There are clues that such work is continuing. In 1995, the annual meeting of four-star US. Air Force generals—called CORONA—reviewed more than 1,000 potential projects. One was called "Put the Enemy to Sleep/Keep the Enemy From Sleeping." It called for exploring "acoustics", "microwaves", and "brainwave manipulation" to alter sleep patterns. It was one of only three projects approved for initial investigation. [H: I would suggest that this has been operational in a magnificently mass way for some couple of centuries now.]

DIRECT CONTACT

As the military continues in search for nonlethal weapons, one device that works on contact has already hit the streets. It is called the "Pulse Wave Myotron". A sales video shows it in action. A big, thuggish-looking "criminal" approaches a well-dressed woman. As he tries to choke her, she touches him with a white device about the size of a pack of cigarettes. He falls to the floor in a fetal position, seemingly

paralyzed but with eyes open, and he does not recover for minutes.

"Contact with the Myotron," says the narrator, "feels like millions of tiny needles are sent racing through the body. This is a result of scrambling the signals from the motor cortex region of the brain," he says. "It is horrible," says William Gunby, CEO of the company that developed the Myotron. "It is no toy." The Myotron overrides voluntary—but not involuntary—muscle movements, so the victim's vital functions are maintained. Sales are targeted at women, but law enforcement officers and agencies—including the Arizona state police and bailiffs with the New York Supreme Court—have purchased the device, Gunby says. A special model built for law enforcement, called the Black Widow, is being tested by the FBI, he says. "I hope they don't order a lot soon," he adds. "The Russian government just ordered 100,000 of them, and I need to replenish my stock."

The U.S. military also has shown interest in the Myotron. "About the time of the Gulf War, I got calls from people in the military," recalls Gunby. "They asked me about bonding the Myotron's pulse wave to a laser beam so that everyone in the path of the laser would collapse." While it could not be done, Gunby says, he nonetheless was warned to keep quiet. "I was told that these calls were totally confidential," he says, "and that they would completely deny it if I ever mentioned it." [H: I suggest you keep this little "saying" close to your hearts and you who deal with "plausible denial" regarding everything from Bonus Contracts to mosquito microbes remember that this is the way it goes over and over and over again. You can also know when it gets as far as this, it is perfected and the silent treatment kicks in to be able to deny anything and everything taking place on any encounter field, and more especially reserving the ability to BLAME SOMEBODY ELSE.]

Some say such secrecy is necessary in new-weapons development. But others think it is a mistake. "Because the programs are secret, the sponsorship is low-level, and the technology is unconventional," says William Arkin of Human Rights Watch Arms Project, "the military has not done any of the things to determine if the money is being well spent or the programs are a good idea. It should not be long before the evidence is in."

[END OF QUOTING]

And so be it, readers. I would remind you "out there" that indeed we can write and the CIA can be the first to take their information prior to our publishing date—BUT, if you want to keep this paper in publication—YOU HAVE TO HELP US WITH SUBSCRIPTIONS. We do not accept outside advertising so that there is no attempt at focusing on anything for the benefit of anyone save those we know and serve. Our team here simply cannot longer carry the ball all alone in the ballpark. We have tried keeping the paper to the bare minimum and still have a paper and we are now forced, if I would again participate to any level worthy of note, to have more size to the paper itself.

Why don't we just go and get God to give us some funds? Because that is NOT the way the world turns. We are working 24-hours-a-day on that project of "funding" but I wonder how many of you have gone forth to *solve the problem and help us a bit?* WHERE WILL YOU BE WHEN THE SKY FALLS? Will you still be out there with Henny Penny—waiting? We shall see, won't we?

Good day, and if you can rest well after all this, God help us all. Salu.

CHAPTER 8

REC #1 HATONN

TUE., NOV. 25, 1997 8:36 A.M. YR. 11, DAY 100

TUE., NOV. 25, 1997

THIS IS THE WINTER OF OUR DISCONTENT?

As the days grow short upon the season which brings the chills of Winter within, and without, we are caused, I suppose, to ponder on things which go dormant in the Fall and do not awaken again until Spring. But do you realize that so few things have capability of going dormant that **you** had best not count on the luxury of doing so. It is a time when difficulties come except to those who live in equal atmospheres all the year around, in living, in remaining warm (or cool) and/or survival without the things of accustomed comfort, and assumed presence becomes an attention focus. If you wear sandals, for instance, it is wise to take your overshoes and mittens everywhere you go—*just in case*.

It matters no longer where you reside in natural citizenship around the globe for the globe is now only a CNN-minute away from you and your full capability of getting knowledge. Oh indeed, you don't get the REAL news but you can figure it out if you pay attention.

So that you don't forget to remember: THE NEWS IS A LIE AND THE LIE IS LARGER WHEREVER CNN HAPPENS TO BE PLACED TO ALTER THE REPORTING.

What is happening, for instance in Iraq, is NOTHING RESEMBLING what is being reported to you. And while Iraq stews and the focus is placed thereon, a horrific new Arab-Israeli WAR is set and about to BEGIN! ARE <u>YOU</u> READY? Really?

And in the midst of it all, right on schedule for distractions, are the hits by microbes and other forms of killing. You have to face DEATH every day now, even in the consciousness. Death? Yes, death. You have no other way in general of looking at transitions and translations or the coming and going of souls as bodies perish from one thing or another and are again dispersed into and within the universal Creation. But, for some of you who are traveling here, you must look squarely at that transition, for some physician or recognized "authority" pronounces that "it is time" for your "death". Most of you latch onto those words and possibilities like superglue so that you have an excuse to "cut out" and move on because you know that with those words also comes pain and FEAR.

This is also a time, sometimes long and sometimes brief, that the individual experiencing the direct translation is able, through tyrannies of all kinds, to control the environment of his little world. But what of the uncontrolled perceptions that come as hallucinations from the confused minds which result from malnutrition, shock, and other confusion from a body shutting down its physical operations? You must look closely at what they say if they are raving OR capable of "sane" reactions and speech.

If an end-state individual asks for a knife or scissors, for instance, this is a sure sign, confused or sane, that there is a desire for some device that *cuts the soul CORD in order for release from the CONSCIOUS-NESS!* Depending on the soul state of the individual there will be a dumping of the demand onto the "waiters" and "servers" so that everyone around can experience the individual's FEAR. They don't really want to "kill themselves" but they DO want you "waiters" to feel the pain and struggle.

You must come to realize that the actual transition is a DECISION of very individual proportions. In the cancers of the world, the "end" must be precipitated by something—in order to allow the energy to ESCAPE. This indecision can go on for whole lifetimes or, at least, weeks because the disease process is not what "getsya". There has to be a deliberate close-down of the life physical process. This usually comes from inability or deliberate refusal to eat, but then occur frantic efforts to "get out of bed and changes of the mind" as well as changes of the sheets. If you are locked to a passage-making entity—you are pretty well shackled to the painful expressions of the passing entity. Once beyond reason and logic, however, the being goes right on deliberately past the point of inability to return because the body itself becomes totally compromised. Living through this major decision-making process can totally absorb, if allowed, everyone within harnessing distance. You people have never learned to deal with or understand the "dying process". So, do "I" think I can inform you enough to understand? No! YOU HAVE TO DECIDE WHETHER OR NOT YOU WISH TO LIVE WITH MYTH OR REALITY. The point for "the waiters" is to face this predicament and dilemma openly, frankly, and with full understanding of the person making a preferential choice in the going and coming.

First, look at what are your duties in other directions than to attend the passing party. What do you have to do that creates and contributes TO LIFE? Then, realize the "importance" of your "doings". But I warn you who are experiencing this transition WITH a loved one, that you will be using it as a big cop-out from reality and business as did the passing energy.

You may well plan a simple scattering of ashes as the most important one thing—but are you doing that to save either funds or effort? Is this easier FOR YOU than a memorial funeral service? Or, do you depend on someone else to prepare and handle a "memorial"? What if nobody comes to your party that you plan for THEM? Now, consider your time away from your business duties. Do you plan to interrupt your DUTIES to go about and "mourn" something you are simply relieved to have past your attention? BE REALLY CAREFULAT THIS POINT BECAUSE I WATCH AND WAIT TO SEE WHAT SOME OF YOU WILL DO TO SIMPLY GET A SICK DAY OR A TIME OF VACATION.

AM I HARSH? NOPE, THIS IS WHAT IS MEANT BY "LET THE DEAD BURY THE DEAD"! If those who claim closeness do not come for the living moments—why make a big deal AFTER THE FACT? You do these actions to impress everyone around you and not for self for you, now, after the fact, desire to be the focus of others' attention and compassion. Won't you people ever understand that death of physical body is NOT DEATH OF ANYTHING IMPORTANT? What happens with the living remaining attachments IS THE POINT! "But, what will people think?" go the questions. What they really think, if you be a major participant in a successful conclusion to projects and proposals, is that you have just left them to handle your load as well their own. Am I heavy? I hope so because God never minds carrying YOU, why do you so often refuse to continue to even "help carry HIS load"?

Now, I have lost most of you? You think I am insensitive to your needs? Sorry, crybabies, I am telling you

what IS, and the facts are, you must look at SELF. Do you run hither and yon just to make sure OTHERS <u>SEE</u> your big contributions or do you just move on with your regular share of the load and let LIFE unfold? This goes for those spending time sitting with the living or the dead! In other words, WHY do you DO WHAT YOU DO? Are you lying to self and others—or, are you acting in responsible TRUTH? You will find that almost 99.9 percent of the living physical entities will act in the former manner while choosing to ignore the latter reasons while calling it loving attention. There is very little LOVE involved here for LOVE would do that which ultimately serves LIFE to the fullest possibility.

DON'T KID YOUR SELVES

Do I have examples? Surely so. There is Rick, there is Charles, there is the remainder of my very tiny TEAM who consider all sorts of things to break away for a few days or hours on some excuse or another. Are your threads to those "others" so fragile as to have inability to sustain once you finally focus on them as personalities? Consider it carefully lest you lie to self. Remember that it still becomes imperative that "UNTO YOUR OWN SELF BE TRUE", for all others will see THROUGH YOUR DELUSION and simply call you a hypocrite!

People write frequently to me as to why I don't "just heal Dharma?" What an interesting concept! I can't, nor would I "heal" her. She must heal herself for at best all I can do is offer "the way" and she must make the physical journey. It often takes years of journey to get as compromised as are, for instance, Dharma's heart and lungs. Others have full transplants for the same disabilities. It takes a long interval of doing things totally RIGHT to allow displacement of the dis-ease process and HEAL again for this is not an "imagined" disability—it is a real assault to the body.

Will Dharma "leave" to avoid the discomfort? I don't know for that is her choice, BUT, I observe that we go right on with our work even if compromised greatly, so I don't believe that she will walk away from responsibility. Is this hard to accept as an answer to the loving and caring inputs of our friends and loved ones? No, because until you can deal with REALITY, you can never deal with what physical experience deals you as a hand to play in the game. She, further, knows that if she chooses to "leave" or become invalid, others HAVE TO MOVE ON WITHOUT HER FOR NO PERSON IN THIS CLOSING TIME IS INDISPENSABLE. OF COURSE, THOSE MOVE-ON CIRCUMSTANCES FALL TO THE DECISIONS OF THOSE WALKING WITHIN THIS MAJOR TIME OF LOAD-CARRYING. I NOTE THAT IF DHARMA IS MISSING, HOWEVER, VERY LITTLE GENERALIZATION OF THOUGHT OR ALTERNATIVE ROUTINGS ARE GIVEN ATTENTION. MOST JUST "WAIT" FOR HER TO AGAIN PRODUCE COMMANDER OR HER OWN INPUT TO THE QUANDARIES FACING THE TEAM EVERY CONFOUNDED PHYSICAL AND MENTAL STEP OF THE WAY.

You must understand that what is about you IS YOUR TESTING OF CHOICES, ABILITY TO REMAIN CLOSE TO CREATOR—OR SIMPLY FLUNK YOUR HIGHER CLASSES IN REALIZATION. YOU, AS A WHOLE, BEG AND PLEAD FOR INSIGHT AND CONSCIOUS UNDERSTANDING, BUT THAT IS NOT WHAT YOU WANT—YOU WANT LACK OF CONSCIOUS RESPONSIBILITY AND THAT IS WHAT RESULTS FROM CONSCIOUSNESS IN HEIGHTENED UNDERSTANDING.

Why am I carping on this topic again? Because we have some personal things taking place under our

noses at the same time as we need every fragment of mental processing attending our immediate circumstances. An hour off for Thanksgiving dinner is not the same as a week away to attend ANYTHING.

A trip to file some court documents is NOT the same as taking two or three days away for your "nervous" condition. Ponder it.

In this very time slot there are things taking place that are so critical to our success or failure as to make me feel faint at your attitudes of "escape" claims. I can no longer manipulate the many others who are NOT taking time to do anything except get something accomplished. Don't run away and then come back to catch up and then claim you really did something important! MAKE SURE WHAT YOU DO IS <u>MORE</u> IMPORTANT.

If my "little team" ACTS in right input—you can swing the weight of the economic picture, at the least, around the globe. Can you postpone the intended WAR as spoken of above? I don't know for the WAR is an outcome of Arab-Israeli hatred, one for the other, and the displacement of the Arabs by the Israelis (through the "Great Satan" as is referred to as the United States) by the adversaries of the Israelis. Time is now coming to present the players and just WHO might be that Great Satan and it will not be obvious who is CREATOR resource until after the fact because WAR IS NOT OF CREATOR GOD!

WEALTH IS NOT GOOD HEALTH

Never conclude that when you get or have wealth that you automatically have good health because the confusion and chaos of the transitional time on the globe is going to be impacted by every dastardly deed conjured in the mindset of MAN. Stock markets and National Economies are NOTHING save symptoms of that which is coming down. You are lied to by terrified stock brokers and manipulators who can't see beyond the incredible lies of the Puppet Masters, and then they feed you the poison until all of you ringaround-the-rosy and all fall down.

While P/E ratios are considered and calculated there is argument about whether the Dow will go up or down. Israel and the Islamic states are lurching towards the most dangerous war since who-knows-when? This war will quickly engulf the entire Middle East and, if nothing else, it could spark a catastrophic global depression. This is because everyone is BANKRUPT now and even the ones who THINK they have money stashed in the banks—will find a precipitated FREEZE on their assets so that it is not noticed that the banksters GOT AWAY, LEGALLY, WITH EVERYONE'S PROPERTY. Sadly enough, though, even the IMF is bankrupt and that means the World Bank is also compromised into becoming defunct. WAR WILL BE THE ONLY THING THAT CAN SALVAGE ANYTHING AND THAT IS TO BE SO DESTRUCTIVE THIS TIME THAT IT WILL SALVAGE NOTHING EXCEPT THE PLAN 2000 FOR DEPOPULATION.

You can, in a state of war, depend on the loss of Middle Eastern oil as the supply is severed and the other reserves become depleted. But, you will never question the circumstance beyond the lie told to you about all aspects involved. The supply is NOT a consideration to the Manipulators and Power Brokers, silly citizens.

You will be able to depend on one thing: NUCLEAR WEAPONS. Israel has a stockpile of them and

HAS ALREADY DECLARED READINESS TO LAUNCH THEM, EVEN IF IT MUST BE AGAINST THE U.S.A.

You can also be sure that chemical weapons as well as bacteriological warheads WILL BE USED ALSO. This will not come originally from such as Iraq, although such will be the public CLAIM. Israel and the U.S. have the most generous supply of these types of weapons of any place in the world. England, the British Israelis, have the most sophisticated, and now shared, alternative technologies of anywhere around. And nobody knows the extent of the piles of dastardly weapons held or being sold outright BY THE CHINESE.

JAPAN

Let us look at what is happening in Japan and reflect it onto the world picture of instability.

Japan holds so many of the U.S. BONDS AND TREASURIES as to boggle your minds. If these go into default, there will be massive backwash on all the rest of you—except the powers-that-be because they will simply take Bankruptcy and "Oh well...!" But, note what happened in the recent days of one-after-another Brokerage house folding—but the Banks involved simply PRINT MORE YEN! How much Yens can they print? Unlimited! But what will that do to the stability of anything? The thing you had best watch is that the Japanese hold some of the older money-printing molds of the "dollar" denominations. They can just print a whole bunch of dollars as well. The U.S. will have to ban the use of dated currency to control the influx. So be prepared! The changeover to global currency for such control is simply not completed to the point of controlling a runaway printing press in every major city around the globe.

I hope you are also prepared for CHINA to be THE MAJOR controlling POWER BY SHORTLY AFTER THE TURN OF THE CENTURY.

But what does this mean to the little citizens in hapless victim circumstances—you know, the ones who just went with whatever was told and whatever the masses do or did? Well, hanging yellow ribbons will only present your true colors of cowardice and things will be TOUGH. What it means for survival crews is a very, very short window of opportunity to attend proper handling of any assets possible, sharing what you have toward a protection of what we all, together, have built—and take a very low profile, hunker down, manage to perfection, and help open up some basic recovery projects and holding facilities outside the Puppet Master's domain.

Full operation of Plan 2000 is less than 24 months away and is coming upon you like the locomotive against people tied to the tracks. YOU facilitated the shackles to tie you there on the tracks and this train WILL RUN YOU OVER.

Fear tactics from this old dog? Well, if you aren't panicked, you don't seem to understand the circumstances. What can YOU do against this monster come upon you to devour your very souls? Tell me about it!

Some people who come into knowing will make transition from the physical state JUST TO ESCAPE THESE LAST THROES OF ENSLAVEMENT AND FAIL TO FIND THE DESIRE TO DISALLOW

SUCH TO COME UPON THEMSELVES. DEPTH OF COMMITMENT TO FREEDOM AND CREATION BECOMES THE ISSUE FOR INTENT IS REFLECTED IN ACTION AND YOU HAVE TO REALIZE THAT INTENT TO WAR AND CHAOS IS NOT OF GOD, SO YOU ARE STUCK WITH THE NEED TO *CREATE A BETTER WAY*!

EXCEPT THROUGH ME, ETC.

Many of you, because you are told incorrect information, will simply lay down, sit down, or generally do nothing—BUT PRAY. Wow, that ought to take a lot of you out of the picture for any positive change. You will pray that God "fix it" while you wait. AND YET, HOW MANY WILL GO THE DISTANCE AND ACCEPT THAT "EXCEPT THROUGH ME, NO MAN COMETH UNTO THE FATHER"?

Have you LIVED IN SUCH A WAY that you understand what THAT SAYING MEANS? Or, do you simply pray that God lets YOUR SIDE win the war regardless of who is the UNGODLY? Either party involved in intent to war and kill is NOT GODLY!

Yes indeed, if you are willing to share your wealth, even be it small, and intend to serve Creator in Creator's WAY, then we shall walk through the chaos and into that desired freedom for we of CREATOR-GOD *CAN CREATE*! The rest of the physical fragments who must war and destroy will simply destroy themselves while WE CREATE OUR WAY IN EVOLVEMENT AS GOD DESIRES IT SHOULD COME TO PASS.

I, TOO, AM THE WAY, THE TRUTH, AND THE LIFE! I AM of Christ, the GOD WAY, and I live every moment of my existence in ANY FORM, in that knowing and in those actions which present THAT WAY. DO YOU? We are soon going to find out whether or not you ACTUALLY present that which is your intent or whether your ego simply directs you haplessly along the way of self-serving wishes instead of REALITY.

As the sequence of events continues its outrageous unfolding, we will try to cover as many topics as is possible. I can only offer for there is no coercion in the ways of God. Salu.

CHAPTER 9

REC #1 HATONN

SUN., DEC. 7, 1997 11:30 A.M. YR.11, DAY 113

SUN., DEC. 7, 1997

ZITA'S MEMORIAL GATHERING

I am not much given to wallowing in pity at the passage of one who has served well, lived well, and completed their assigned task. Zita did "her mission" and now we shall see if her children and those left behind will do theirs! Rick will do his and the others are very questionable. These are the things that try a parent's soul at their own passage when the confrontation comes and "I should have done more" rings in the heart and bounces off the ears of GOD.

When a person has a final few days for making lasting decisions, as did Zita, it is a great blessing. It is painful for the ones watching, but the treasure comes from being able to make translation, get lessons, and have very informed decision-making ON THAT OTHER SIDE OF THE "FORGET IT" VEIL.

Zita, I repeat, did NOT have ongoing disease involvement which would take her life, so once she chose her direction, she did what she needed to do to go on and leave those behind to do their work without her burden. Is there a misperception that "there is no burden"? Of course, for it is like "he ain't heavy; he is my brother" or in this instance "she isn't heavy for she is my mother" where it is foolish to protest loudly for it is YOU who ends up appearing the fool. God gives life to each of us, and to lie for the benefit of making another feel somehow more useful is indeed without merit for it is at passage that the acute senses WITHIN—KNOW.

When confronted with necessity or even preferences, it is wondrous what an individual can do. Dharma, for instance, thought she could get a few sandwiches ready for Norio's visit [Hayakawa] but certainly "can't" do another funeral for "my heart is so hurting and times seem quite desperate and I cannot stand on my feet long enough to get anything accomplished—*AND*, do a funeral!"

But it seemed to go well—UNTIL—things went other than as expected. So, you in this place KNOW that Charles, E.J., Pablo, and even Rick, spread out meats, cheese, whatever—so that a gathering could be as nice as we in limited health and circumstances could make it so that memories could be joyful and not always a "wish" that we had done more or better or whatever. Loving hands could then take the feast and present it, and each could enjoy the contribution.

The next question to me was, "Can't you just not write today and simply say whatever we need to tell?" No, because I doubt we could make it through a half-hour of speaking, and a word to Zita TODAY is mandatory from your place, or skip it altogether. Ah, no matter what we think we have learned, there is always more.

A soul, even one at rest and peace, WAITS in accomplishing the hours of becoming readied for the greater transition and breaking free in order to move on to unchartered waters. This "wait" amounts to a sequence of events for the soul's lessons and preparations for FUTURE considerations—and it takes about as long as three full days in your accounting of "time". And, friends, remember something in that it is only in YOUR OWN PERCEPTION that you would decide what another wishes to do or where to be.

I can use this observation in specifically the case of Zita that she did not want a "time" for viewing and depressed expressions of "oh Zita, you look so sick." or "so thin" or whatever. She wanted no one to view her with her body ill and wasted; she wishes to be remembered in the love and vitality of her BEST self. Can we not do, at the least, that much for our sister? She knew that no one, save we of the other dimension, could answer her inquiries and that each perception presented was only an expression of another's opinion of what MIGHT BE.

It is time now to put aside the guilts, the wishes of something other than what was, for no change can be made in your dimension of that which has come and gone. This includes a Mother as well, for when passage comes, all memory is left intact and FOREVER.

In the case of Zita, however, Rick is left with the heartfelt desires of a MOTHER, for a son, who finally saw what she was beginning to understand and it will rest on his shoulders to acquire, grow, and become what is the best in those dreams of later years of a worthy presentation of living.

In these instances of knowing, which demand that there will be time consumed away and in great and pivotal things to be accomplished, the body must be released, and those left in the journey must turn to the task, and again I use the term: let the dead bury the dead. If another did not live to bring peace to self at such times of passage, all the worry and sorrow of those who do understand cannot touch a hair of it for those who do not.

I suggest to many of you reading this that it certainly is time to attend your own nests and attitudes, and make peace, for it may well be your LAST OPPORTUNITY. You cannot simply help or assist another instead—you must attend your own for that circumstance is THE circumstance you will be left to view and feel and experience. It is much like making lunch. We can provide the products and lay it forth, but if it is YOU who will be eating—YOU WILL HAVE TO DO IT YOURSELF or be hungry. When you understand this you will have begun to understand life and death and CHOICES.

Why don't I take the time to tell of all the wondrous things Zita would like to be remembered for? Because they are not the things I would remember with worthy recollection. Neither will I tell all the things lacking or unpolished or unwanted about the person involved. So, too, are the conditions not mine to judge. Isn't that nice: no reason or aptitude to judge and sentence to punishment? Neither do I need make excuses or give justification to my relationship with or to "that" person for their journey is NOT MINE and I have no right to coerce them into my experience.

People make errors and become childish and demanding, but does that make it right to be so self-centered? Of course, for it may well be WRONG behavior, but each person must have freedom of expression and the RIGHT to make the wrong adventure of himself.

Each person will demand and plead for insight and a strict set of guidelines for moral justification for actions. With knowing comes responsibility, and right down to setting the cheese to the appointed tray becomes a problem if the cheese tray be someone else's, for you will probably choose to set the cheese to the "wrong" column—even though there be no right or wrong—only a decision. We simply don't want to assume responsibilities and when we do so, as with spreading out the cheese, state that you assume the task, and it then becomes yours and you had better think out, in advance, HOW THE CHEESE IS TO BE CONSUMED lest you blow the job.

The next thing to consider carefully is attitudes about care and tending of anyone. Do you simply love to change diapers after an accident? Of course not, but when there is a baby, do you toss out the babe because he dirties his pants? No, but it is silly to assure the world that you loved the job of cleaning up after the fact. Learn to value the great things and toss aside the unpleasant. Allow the departed the gift of remembering the positive contributions and, for goodness sakes, let go of the annoying points. If you can find no "good points"—KEEPTHINE MOUTH SHUT—FOR THE WELL-BEING OF YOUR OWN SOUL. Once departed, that "other" could not care less about you or your druthers! It simply is the way it IS. You who hold onto garbage are destined to drag it everywhere you go from now until your own passage—and most of you will cart it right on through and into your next experience and this, beloved ones, is such a stupid thing to do. It is like DEMANDING that everyone ENJOY your religious choices and belief systems. WHY? All religions are set forth BY MAN, so why do you follow the most dreadful leaders? You are the precious one in God's creation, so why would you leave your most important segment of journey in growth to ANOTHER WHO DOESN'T KNOW ANYTHING ABOUT ANYTHING?

People make judgements about me, Hatonn, and they don't even know my name nor do they know how to spell it correctly. Is this MY problem or THEIRS? They have, each of them, every right to think anything they wish about me, turn their eyes to the blinders and fail to listen to the facts—but, does it change anything? Of course not.

So what does all this have to do with funerals and comings and goings? Lots, for in mutual respect and love can people put aside differences, release the poison pens and gossip, and allow a foundation upon which there IS AGREEMENT to begin to heal any rifts or miscarriages. If a person had a talent and a gift in the best or worst of circumstances that followed, that TALENT REMAINS and it should be used with grace and sharing.

I would only point out one reminder, however, about myself, and that is that if you do not "buy Hatonn"—fine. But I remind you that "Hatonn" can be simply a name of some entity, but GOD is the Guy to watch, judging humanity. Except through me (my teachings and belief) shall ye enter the place of our Father. It simply, once again, IS THE WAY IT IS. I am the way, the truth and the LIFE—BECAUSE I KNOW THE WAY, TRUTH, AND AM THE LIFE! You may disagree and that is your greatest gift of all in choices—but—I KNOW THE WAY, THE TRUTH, AND THE LIFE, and you apparently do not even wait, in instances where silence would bide thee well, long enough to LEARN FACTS. Does that make

old "Hatonn" the foolish one? Or, do you toss it off as a bad day for the receiver because I present something which sits disagreeably with your opinions or assumptions?

We need to consider these things as we move on, for we WILL MOVE ON. Change is the only certain thing in your ongoing perceptions. We can make it wondrous and creative or miserable and depressing. Since we all would wish to leave a legacy of good memories, let us consider carefully our own circumstances and honor those who come and go on before us, that we may LEARN and they shall not have lived in vain.

May we always hold the departed in that special place within our beings that they never be forgotten, for memory is all that holds life to reality.

Salu—and to Zita, Welcome Aboard!

CHAPTER 10

REC #1 HATONN

MON., DEC. 15, 1997 1:04 P.M. YR. 11, DAY 121

MON., DEC. 15, 1997

I have chosen not to write what I started to bring to print today because we all stand with one foot in one world or dimension and the other in some other magnificent place—or worse, as the case may well be.

I had thought to write a "Christmas" message while elaborating on spiritual lights other than on the tree and speak grandly on that which would bring lights to the eyes and to the soul while never minding the chaos taking place before our eyes and hearts. Then, next comes a whole shutdown of the paper to wait for our writing, editing, and finally, rearranging the paper to accept the new input. No thank you. A message of spiritual truth is appropriate any time and, further, sometimes it is better not used as some religious celebration time of the calendar and especially at this busy time of the year while everyone is helter-skelter about every business other than the Father's (in reality).

So, this writing comes as a cross between personal and general and I expect you to be able to sort the differences because I will no longer take time to do such a task for you. This is because on this very day Dharma finally took a stand and actually said "NO"! "I can't go on like this any longer and so do whatever anyone else wants to do and I will exist in my job and simply never mind the things killing me in this life experience."

Why is this important? Because it affects EVERYONE HERE WHO HAS LEARNED TO SIMPLY WAIT FOR HER OR COMMANDER (WHICH REQUIRES THE SAME AMOUNT OF TIME EITHER WAY). We physically bend and finally break under such burdens and responsibilities while the world goes right on in its crazy spiral downward. Happy faces may well be farther between as we pass others along the way who either help with the load or refuse to help but either way the air got cleared and the insanity confronted to some measure.

This being temporarily behind us this morning, we move into afternoon with peace in the heart and jangles in the nerves—but, there is a new realization of FACT OF ABILITY TO FUNCTION into he final realization that it was NOT "ok" the way it was going while trying to be everything to everyone and face life as it works deliberately to literally KILL a being, and more especially, if that being is serving GOD.

NEW WORLD ORDER

This is such a tired old phrase that, especially during the loving interval of *Christmastide*, we must not blast away longer at such concepts if we are to stay healthy (wealthy or wise). Well, I note that it is difficult to become wealthy, have any measure of good health, and so surely WISDOM might at the least enter into some of our thoughts which are bored and turning to negation at the overabuse of such terms as are found undesirable.

To realize that right in the good old U.S.A., run by British-Israel, you can know what is coming by what has come in South Africa. Why? Because the concept of New World Order control and enslavement came through that routing.

You don't want to hear "conspiracy" or "religious intolerance" or any of the other truths which exist in your world—you want to tout your "freedom" and let the puppet-masters pull your strings, lie to you, and you go right on down that hoppity pathway without thought or reason. So be it—GOD WILL LET YOU DO EXACTLY THAT!

Even Thomas Jefferson, those many years ago, said: "A country which expects to remain ignorant and free... expects that which never has been and never can be."

So, do you have access to the insight to recognize your enemies, at the least the first groups officially structured to accomplish this NEW WORLD ORDER for the Elite and Power-brokers? Of course. But you DO NOT WANT TO HEAR TRUTH and so don't listen, but I suggest you step out and look down that long, lonesome road of no return and await your fate which is already structured to totally depopulate the globe and bring all save the "masters" into slavery, chaos, disharmony and, ultimately—AN ENTIRELY SATANISTIC WORLD OF EXPERIENCE. It has already been achieved in the "Satanistic" arena so you actually only have about 24 months left to even consider the alternative possibilities.

Does this mean that we are going to fight our suspected enemies or go to war or do not go to war—or what? It means we recognize TRUTH; we recognize and respect those who would be against God in favor of the human greed experience of power and control. We do not overthrow anything, nor even effort at subverting ideas or ideals for we have no wish nor intent to rule or run ANYTHING except within the freedom expectation of our own MINDS.

Dharma shouts that "I can't do this any longer," and the heads shake and waggle and judgements are birthed and poured with heaps of ill-intent upon her head. She refuels from the shared input from those who do little but strive for spiritual ecstasy while moving into higher beingness with some teacher or another. Would it not be wondrous to sit in a state of ecstasy while the world goes right on by while you selfishly "experience" self and wonderment? But GOD doesn't work THAT way, students. GOD gives ability to experience, make choices IN THE DIMENSIONAL SETTING IN WHICH YOU ARE EXPRESSING! SOMEBODY HAS TO COOK THE SOUP!

Some very long months ago a beloved friend in Texas, J.S., sent a small volume to Doris as a little remembrance gift, *The Wisdom Teachings of ARCHANGEL MICHAEL*, "through Lori Jean Flory as told to Brad Steiger". (A Signet Visions Book).

In the depths of "self-defeat", "stuff" was gathered up by the great armful to be cleared in the height of frustration. The little volume fell to the floor with its page marker in place and it read: "Chapter One: Living in Partnership with the Angels". Wow of wows! What else does Dharma ever have in all of her conditions or responsibilities other than some kind of a lop-sided "partnership with the messengers (angels)"? Is THAT the point of this notation? No, for all live in a human physical-spiritual realm of duality—the whole of life, and universal truth, is DUALITY. So what do we have here in which we can escape the "conspiracy" and other information we do not wish to hear? Well, we can turn to the support of others to

refuel empty tanks; we can QUIT and go into a trance within the world that IS enslavement itself—or we can gain what balance we can, share it, and keep the eye on the goal and hold strong.

You are never going to find TRUE REALIZATION from any one TEACHER and certainly never from religious doctrines set forth BY MAN. Each can be a tool for your discerning USE, and through it ALL you can gain knowledge and truth so that you sort your way and see what you are willing to GIVE, that you might find the rest of your wonderful experience. Just to be in a state of ecstasy doesn't cut it because life is rarely a state of ecstasy and certainly not with the misperception and misinformation poured into your brains from the moment of your birthing. You keep SEEKING that which is perfection because when you FIND TRUTH you don't want to recognize that it requires responsibility FROM YOU, EFFORT FROM YOU, AND "FINDING" IS NOT AT ALL WHAT YOU WANTED.

Dharma found what she needed to see by the third page in the volume.

[QUOTING:]

WE EACH HAVE ONE FOOT IN SPIRIT, THE OTHER ON EARTH

Because of my lifelong experiences with the Other Side, I am convinced that we are all beautiful, powerful, spiritual divine beings who are adjusting to life experiences in a human body.

Both aspects of ourselves are important. We should enjoy our human bodies, but the true challenge on Earth is to integrate our physical selves and our spiritual selves. Each of us has one foot in spirit and the other on Earth. And sometimes that can be quite a stretch!

But I believe that we are magnificent *now*, enlightened *now*, and divine *now*. We don't necessarily need to climb to the mountaintop to have a guru give us our truth. All we have to do is to learn to look within ourselves and listen. The answers are there.

In my sincere and earnest opinion, I believe that the truths in this book were offered by Archangel Michael in the higher spheres of Light long before I ever knew that I would receive the assignment to convey them into written word. And I am certainly not suggesting that I was selected for this work because of any great merit or acquired spiritual gifts on my part. The *why* of how I came to be so blessed by, [in this case], Michael is as much of a mystery to me as it may be to others.

[END OF QUOTING]

This is quite enough to suffice for input for reality becomes the part of experience wherein one also realizes that tasks are different, contributions different and responsibilities different. Dharma can easily say, "How nice it would be to go back and write for no one save our precious Michael." She could do this with integrity and honor for she has spent myriads of endless hours with Michael and other Cohans and Teachers who will bring GOD BACK TO THIS EARTH. BUT, that is not her agreement for service—*just to serve Michael of the Blue Ray of all balance, harmony and Archangel to Planet Shan-Earth.* However, if she is to serve her mission NOW, somebody has to take up some of the living pressures that bury

us day by day and inch by inch. And people: CHARITY BEGINS AT HOME where it would seem the whole would be seen but is lost on the blind. "MANKIND" becomes totally a slave to preconceived notions, even if they destroy him.

IF "information and a manner of funding" fall to Dharma for service and all wait while this is brought forth—does it not reason that somebody(S) have to take those unfortunate misperceptions of male-female aspects out of the picture? Moreover, who has to see and understand the limitations FIRST? The person in point, OF COURSE.

I would remind every one of you, however, that it is unwise to take that one foot out of spiritual divine input to meet the druthers of other experiencing (unrealizing) individuals who want it all so "they" don't have to bend too much or stretch too much and can say, "But look how hard I have tried." People get so busy living out their own perceived considerations of "self" that they truly do not notice the point at which one chooses the personal wishes over the direct instructions of the Teachers CLAIMED to be served.

Gentlemen, whoever you might be in your male presentation, had best consider this very, very well for you live with perceptions which the opposition in sexual presentation will not long tolerate. It comes out something like, "I'll do what I want to do and you will do what I want you to do—OR ELSE!"

Some people this very day have (or will shortly) come to full realization that this garbage does not fly and when I write—Dharma will no longer even TRY to help YOU understand those somehow elusive messages that YOU couldn't figure out no matter how hard you tried—and tried and tried! YOU do not want to figure out something that contradicts YOUR OWN PRIORITIES—EVEN IF YOURS BE 180 DEGREES IN THE WRONG DIRECTION.

There is something all of you MUST CONSIDER and that one point is that separation comes from time to time, and when you have spiritual and physical perceptions which clash—divorce of one entity from another usually follows shortly on the trail. I think we may have gotten two or three "divorces" this very morning, but a new realization at this keyboard about what the mission is about.

"But I gave up _______ to serve God, and ______." You what? You GAVE UP? If you feel deprived of ANYTHING in your environment because of your commitment to God and service—YOU ARE INSANELY OUT OF STEP. GOD DOES NOT NEED OR WANT THAT KIND OF "GIVING UP". These are simply power plays of individuals and it is unworthy of you, and especially if you then turn and assume YOU KNOW what the game is and "your way" is the way it must be.

You who are closest to me in our work claim to hear and want to know and, yes, ask for instructions. BUT, I give them and wham, bam, thank you Sir, I'll get around to your input just as soon as I finish MY LIST. So, go do YOUR LIST—for the rest of your life—is quite fine with me.

I get complaints that I repeat so much stuff or have old stuff or someone else's stuff and on and on. If you ever heard and remembered the truth—there would be no need for messages and certainly there would be no PROBLEMS in the world except inner peace, joy and total harmony.

I am going to share a lot of the information in a little pamphlet received yesterday from a close friend in

South Africa. The sending was as much to vent frustration as anything, for surely we know the facts and alliances, but blindness seems to have struck dumb and stupid the receivers who complain and then fall right into the ruts of trained seals.

ON THE INTERNATIONAL CONSPIRACY:

[QUOTING:]

"So you see that the world is governed by very different personages to what is imagined by those who are not themselves behind the scenes." Benjamin Disraeli.

"The world is divided into three kinds of people—a very small group that MAKES things happen, a somewhat larger group that WATCHES things happen, and a great multitude that never knows what has happened." Dr. Nicholas Murray

"We shall have World Government whether or not you like it—by conquest or by consent." CFR member James Warburg, Feb. 17th, 1950.

"This worldwide conspiracy for the overthrow of civilization and for the reconstitution of society on the basis of arrested development, of envious malevolence and impossible equality." Winston Churchill.

"There is no proletarian movement, not even a Communist one, which does not operate in the interests of money." Oswald Spengler.

"THEY HAVE GIVEN US INTO THE HAND OF THE NEW UNHAPPY LORDS.

- "LORDS WITHOUT ANGER AND HONOUR, WHO DARE NOT CARRY THEIR SWORDS.
- "THEY FIGHT BY SHUFFLING PAPERS, THEY HAVE BRIGHT DEAD ALIEN EYES;
- "THEY LOOK AT OUR LABOUR AND LAUGHTER AS A TIRED MAN LOOKS AT FLIES." G.K. Chesterton, "The Secret People"

[END OF QUOTING]

With this above in mind and with recognition that we are going to briefly offer some observations which you can check out—but no longer at your leisure, ladies and gentlemen—because the end is at hand for such dawdling.

[QUOTING:]

FOREWORD

C. Berentemfel, 1989

Even people normally disinterested in politics are concerned over the present trend of events in South Africa. But the effect cannot be understood unless the cause is known.

NWO logo and seal

The cause is the attempt by a small group of super-powerful men to destroy Christian Western civilization and substitute a <u>NEW WORLD ORDER</u> in which the ordinary individual has no freedom of thought or action. It is a concept from which South Africans shrink in fear or in disbelief, but one which they must accept if they are not to become its victims.

This booklet introduces the Conspiracy and gives some indication of its control of events in South Africa. Due to the need to keep it short no references have been given, but on the last page there is a list of books that will provide the story in full.

[H: Please enter the diagram as presented placing Lucifer at the head of the order and the following quotation from *Luke* at the bottom of the page. It should be noted that the little booklet has no page numbers.]

"FOR NOTHING IS SECRET THAT SHALL NOT BE MADE MANIFEST; NEITHER ANYTHING HID THAT SHALL NOT BE MADE KNOWN AND COME ABROAD." LUKE 8:17

[H: If you think me to just be spoiling another Holiday Season, then I suggest you ignore fact and truth and go thine own way—in IGNORANCE furthered by refusal to learn. This is now deliberate refusal to harken to the word of God for you have plenty of opportunity at every turn to get this factual and historical documentation from every direction and thousands of history books of FACTS.

Where the book prints "SOUTH AFRICA", please, as a reference to what has already happened, put instead, New Zealand, Australia and first and above all: the UNITED STATES OF AMERICA.]

THE "CONSPIRACY AGAINST SOUTH AFRICA"

South Africa has never before known a crisis like the one we face today. We are involved in a life-and-death struggle for survival, unable to escape from a situation which developed so gradually that we were unaware of what was happening until it was too late. Our standard of living is in decline and the future insecure. We have betrayed our friends and are now surrounded by enemy countries. Our leaders are surrendering to an unseen threat.

What happened to yesterday when the country was prosperous, taxation moderate, the economy sound and the future rosy? What is the reason for the present crisis?

The answer is that it was **<u>created</u>** in order to make South Africa submit to the "<u>NEW WORLD</u> ORDER".

In his book Fourth Reich of the Rich", written in 1979, Des Griffin said: "The idea of a massive

Conspiracy—a Hidden Hand, a secret force guiding the nations towards their total disintegration and collapse so that a godless totalitarian One-World Government can be established and ruthlessly enforced, is now an accepted fact." But unfortunately even ten years later the existence of the Conspiracy is still not known to many South Africans.

Naive, and drugged with sport and T.V., they accept the version of national and international events presented by the liberal media and so remain in ignorance of the Conspiracy (of which those media are the largest part) and unaware of the role it plays in their own lives.

Now however the time has come when South Africans have to face the fact that there is a Conspiracy and it is responsible for this country's downward trend. Then they can do something about it.

Hundreds of books have been written about this secret plan to enslave mankind, but the most explicit is Dr. Carroll Quigley's *TRAGEDY AND HOPE*. This 1300-page tome describes how an oligarchy of international bankers has for centuries financed wars and revolutions to summon huge National Debts through which they wield worldwide political power. It explains why the intelligentsia joined forces with them and how Illuminati-inspired Communism became the third prong of a pitchfork tossing humanity casually into Hell.

[H: So, do "we" somehow plan to come along and fix it differently, overthrow or subvert citizens or governments? NO, NO AND NO! We expect the Elite who have made agreements with us to keep their agreements, but we have no intention whatsoever of "fixing" anything. That is YOUR PREROGATIVE, WORLD CITIZENS, and we have no interest in changing you from your misperceptions if you prefer ignorance and slavery. Simple? Just as simple as GOD ALWAYS "IS".]

THE SECRET SOCIETIES

Until the late nineteenth century the bankers worked alone towards their one-world goal. Then men like Cecil Rhodes and Lord Alfred Milner, beguiled by John Ruskin's intellectual brand of one-worldism, began to abet them. Rhodes, backed by Lord Rothschild, developed South Africa's gold and diamond fields and used the fortune he made to lay the foundations of the secret societies advocated by Ruskin as a power base. After the death of Rhodes, Milner established the Round Table organisation which still functions in eight countries. It was financed by the Rhodes Trust, Beit brothers and Abe Bailey; and Bailey also financed the Royal Institute of International Affairs (RIIA) established in Britain and the Dominions in 1919. About the same time, the Council on Foreign Relations (CFR) was set up in the US by John Rockefeller, and later the Institute of Pacific Relations appeared in 12 Pacific countries. More recently, the elite Bilderbergers and the Club of Rome have been established in Europe; while here at home we have the South African Institute of International Affairs (SAIIA) of which Mr. Harry Oppenheimer is Chairman. **ALL THESE ORGANISATIONS ARE FRONTS FOR THE INTERNATIONAL BANKERS**.

[H: You have found me frequently speaking about the Oppenheimers and in conjunction with assistance, etc.? I want to remind you of something, students: I HAVE NO INTENTION OF CROSSING ANY OF "MY" SO-CALLED ENEMIES! Neither I, nor you, NEED BECOME YOUR ENEMY TO WORK WITH YOUR ENEMY. I CAN PROMISE YOU, IN FACT, THAT

YOUR ENEMY'S PLAN WILL BE A VERY WORKABLE, ACCEPTABLE, AND ESPECIALLY, LEGAL UNDERTAKING BECAUSE "THEY" MAKE THE LAWS TO REPLACE THE LAWS WHICH WERE "YOURS". It is NOT up to me to twist your arms into some sort of assumed or hoped-for "freedom". What your choices might be are yours to make and therein lies the TRUTH OF PHYSICAL EXPRESSION AND GOD'S FREE-WILL GIFT TURNED INTO YOUR HANDS. Stop your all-fired judgmental projections. I, Hatonn, can work very well indeed with such as Henry Kissinger (as long as he keeps his agreements) and without the same hang-ups of you would-be pious know-it-alls who would blow your own planet to Hell while you claim to be "fixing it". Satan's comrades know exactly what they are doing and they just don't want you to find out. Fine, nobody has to read anything of Truth from me or "we". We have a mission to complete and "saving" your asses is NOT A PART OF IT, SO PONDER ON THAT CARE-FULLY INDEED. If you like living in a corrupted and putrid heap of dung as you have now accomplished in projecting, SO BE IT AND SELAH.]

THE REVOLUTIONARIES

John Ruskin had convinced the founders of the Secret Societies that the way to federate the world was along socialistic lines. Therefore in 1919 the bankers decided to back the Russian Revolution and allow the Communists to establish the one-world dictatorship they wanted; then later take it over themselves. They saw the Communists only as power-hungry revolutionaries, but underestimated them. Karl Marx, their leader, had been a dedicated member of the ILLUMINATI, and used Adam Weishaupt's formula for world conquest as a guide when drawing up the *Communist Manifesto*. THE PRINCIPLES OF THE ILLUMINATI RULED THE COMMUNISTS, AND WHEN THEY BACKED THEM, THE BANKERS WERE EMBRACING THE POWER OF DARKNESS.

THE ILLUMINATI

The Order of the Illuminati was formed by Adam Weishaupt in Germany on May 1st, 1776 with the avowed purpose of establishing a New World Order. The name Illuminati is derived from the word *LUCIFER* meaning Bearer of the Light, and members of the Order regard Lucifer as their leader.

[H: Be very careful and harken back to Michael's input where it is fully established that Lucifer was and is that which is referred to as a reflected perfection in the form often referred to as the Bright and Morning Star and one of the greatest perfection-in-creation of humanistic form, <u>ALSO CALLED SATAN</u>, <u>DEVIL</u>, <u>AND FRANKLY</u>, <u>IN THE JAPANESE LANGUAGE</u>, <u>MORMON!</u> Lucifer was perfection at what he was and don't you EVER forget or overlook it. He is the PRINCE OF DARKNESS, THE PRINCE OF DECEIT AND PRETENSE, AND THE "TRICK-STER" PERFECTED. I not only love and respect this "Brother" but could not exist or have meaning if it were not for this negative aspect of human physical input in experience.]

In 1785 a courier carrying documents for the Illuminati was struck by lightning and killed. The documents fell into the hands of the police who raided the Illuminati headquarters and found evidence of Weishaupt's plan for world conquest beginning with the French Revolution. Copies of the documents were circulated to all European governments and the plot became generally known, but it appeared so fantastic that it was ignored, and the French Revolution took place as the Illuminati had planned.

In 1785 lodges of the Illuminists began to appear in America, and one of the first members of the New York Lodge was Clinton Roosevelt, a direct ancestor of F.D. Roosevelt.

By the time FDR became President in 1932 the secret influence of the Illuminati was so powerful that he was able to impose the beginning of the New World Order on the United States under the name of the "New Deal".

The insignia of the Illuminati was placed on the obverse side of the Great Seal of the United States and on the one-dollar bill. The Roman numerals are the date the Illuminati was formed. The Latin words Novus Ordo Seclorum mean New World Order, and Annuit Coeptis "our enterprise has been crowned with success". The capstone of the pyramid has been replaced with the all-seeing *eye of Satan*.

From that time on the Illuminati, under various other names, has ruled the US; and the date of its formation [May 1st] is celebrated throughout the world now as "WORKER'S DAY".

THE UNITED NATIONS

After the First World War the League of Nations was formed as the next step towards World Government. But the move was premature and the ploy failed. Then came the Second World War which enriched the bankers still further, impoverished the West and gave the Communists dominion over all of Eastern Europe. Immediately after it was over, the United Nations Organisation was set up in New York on a site *donated by the Rockefellers*. Its Charter is almost the same as the *Communist Manifesto*; it has a very similar seal, and is run entirely by Communists. Since it was formed in 1945, over a billion more people have been enslaved by Communism and it is currently adding to that number the 852,000 inhabitants of South West Africa. The UN is the World Government-in-Waiting; and through it the triumvirate of International Finance, Intellectual Socialism and fiendish Communism are already applying the rules laid down by Weishaupt for world conquest.

- * The world's political leaders are being corrupted and bribed with promises of wealth, power and sensual pleasure into betraying their countries.
- * Changes are being wrought in the ideals of nations by training educators and churchmen to instil the social creed and gospel in the minds of the young.
- * Control has been gained of the media which is deceiving people with quaint words and phrases such as "human rights" into believing lies.
- * A powerful debt system based on usury has been entrenched worldwide.

[END OF QUOTING]

I will interrupt at this point but will note that when I offer that which I feel sufficient from this little journal we will again remind you that this same bunch, prior to this set forth the *PROTOCOLS OF ZION* by the Elders of Zion and you should be reminded that this is simply Lucifer's ongoing plan (2000) to enslave the masses, take all wealth and property, and render you servants unto their own persons.

It simply is, Reader, THE WAY IT "IS" and all the wishing it were not so will not change a hair's breadth of it. You can only be enslaved by acceptance of the LIE. Within God and Truth the old saying goes: *Ye shall know the Truth and the Truth shall set ye free!* The TRUTH is also that which is your shield and buckler (your protection from all things negative and repressive in your spiritual, and yea even, in your human physical expression—but YOU have to recognize this fact and LIVE THIS FACT).

I am using this year-end opportunity for this little refresher course in TRUTH of your circumstances. The choice of what you do with it or the tossing of it in the trash is your prerogative. It is no longer a "maybe" thing, this conspiracy of Puppet-Masters—IT IS FACT. All the lies about you will not make it not be so or go away. Only you, through your own ideas, mind thought and righteous Godly intent shall make a bit of difference. ALL IS THOUGHT! Physical is simply an expression in manifestation of THAT THOUGHT presented in manifest form. The end of the play will not be changed, waiting destroyers, unless YOU CHANGE IT. GOD HAS NO NEED TO SEND HIS HOSTS OR ANYONE OR THING ELSE FOR IT IS SIMPLY FOR HIM TO CREATE A WHOLE NEW UNIVERSE AND LEAVE YOU TO YOUR HELL MANUFACTURED AND BUILT OF LIMITATIONS AND IRON BARS. THERE ARE NO BARS IN GOD'S HEAVENS SO YOU MIGHT CONSIDER THE WISDOM OF COMING TO RATHER IMPORTANT CONCLUSIONS IN THESE DAYS PRIOR TO THE INTENDED COMPLETION OF PLAN 2000.

I am reminded here of the publicity we endured while we were branded Fear Mongers and such, even called the Evil Ones themselves (whatever that might mean)—but if you aren't a bit skittish and nervous or a bit panicked—YOU DON'T UNDERSTAND YOUR PREDICAMENT!

And for you who would count the coup of the Indian ways, etc. Let me remind you about something and these words of expression: "People want to make spirituality and sacredness more than it is. It's a part of life and it comes with each and every BREATH." Little Crow

And to you who speak of change, claim for change, shout for change, let me remind you of FACT: "We must make changes because changes are inevitable and the first change we have to make is in ourselves, as to how we see the world and how we are able to deal with life. That change comes about by releasing the past, releasing the blame, the anger, and frustration for what you feel has been done to you, and to get on with your life." (also) Little Crow

Now, I suggest to you who are looking for that perfection of balance, you can get totally OUT OF BALANCE looking for that which is obviously eluding you. Stop it: GET A LIFE AND GET WITH THE PROGRAM BECAUSE THE DAYS OF WAITING ARE OVER, EVEN IN YOUR FARTHEST IMAGININGS, FOR WHAT YOU HAVE DEMANDED IS NOW COME UPON YOU.

We will again write upon these things along with, hopefully, the offerings of Wisdom and yea, yes, even from the Wisdom Keepers for THEY HAVE ALWAYS KNOWN THE WAY.

Dharma, keep thine perspective for ye are perfection enough for "me" and that, dear, is perfection enough for the journey. We have walked together for long and shall continue through the endless times and seas of perception and perspectives—so, to thine own self be true, and others will simply have to find their own balance and journey's purpose, FOR THEM.

Each individual wants desperately to find "another" to excuse his own shortcomings. It is a "gift" none other has to "take", so simply do not accept it and we can all grow much the wiser and stronger from the experience. IF you are that which is the goose with the golden egg—then you must take care as into which nest you drop the prize. If those near cannot give enough to behold the pale horse arriving at the gates, it is NOT your problem. GOD did not promise ANY a thornless rose or an easy pathway so, all of you, stop expecting it. Pray for everyone but yourself and you shall have opened the limitless power of God upon thineself. Ponder it.

CHAPTER 11

REC #1 HATONN

TUE., DEC. 16, 1997 7:59 A.M. YR. 11, DAY 122

TUE., DEC. 16, 1997

Many of us stay walled in because we are afraid of being hurt. We are afraid to care too much, for fear that the other person does not care at all.

We must strengthen, defend, preserve and comfort each other. We must love one another. We must bear one another's burdens. We must not look only on our things, but also on the things of our brother. We must rejoice together, mourn together, labor and suffer together.

Loving the God self fills a hole within us that cannot be filled by another human being, because they're busy filling their hole. But once the hole is filled, then you are complete and there is a completeness that then can be shared.

And to repeat: Do not waste time praying for yourself but rather, reach beyond yourself and pray for another while you also seek to know, see and hear so that we can look to all our relations and not simply to the wishes of a physical, opinionated world of confusion.

And, does this mean that we must never focus on "self" or turn away from "self"? Nay, never, for self is the central expression of all that IS. You must come to love self unconditionally and then you can begin to erase, dissolve and forgive those "conditions" which pull you away from God and Truth and Abundance of God's idea.

Does this seem too large a contradiction to handle? Chelas, loving yourself unconditionally means "I LOVE GOD THE CREATOR, THE MOTHER-FATHER ENERGY, UNCONDITIONALLY. I DON'T PUT ANY CONDITIONS ON THE CREATOR AND THE CREATOR DOESN'T PUT ANY CONDITIONS ON ME!" GOD is total allowance for free-will expression and limitations are the bindings of MAN. Ah, but the secret (apparently) of the ages is how to recognize and personalize, SPIRITUALLY, the TRUTH OF GOD. When you lock selves into a box by other people's self-centered opinions and perceptions you have destroyed the ability to open and release the lock that holds you tightly and you have effectively tossed away the key AFTER HAVING LEFT NO WAY OUT AND INTO THE FREEDOM OF "KNOWING".

Why this point so early on this morning? Because, beautiful friends, LOVE eliminates a lot of powerlessness. And, brethren, you feel powerless when you don't love yourself. It is a lack of esteem, insecurity, and "I can't" that eats away at your consciousness and eventually mutates the very soul within you.

Right here at Christmas I get such abusive input from readers who claim that I can't leave you one iota of happiness or joy for I spend the time speaking more abundantly on the nasty little things of life waiting to

destroy what you THINK you have. Sorry about that.

Last evening on what you call your Religious Cable Network came a visitation by Hal Lindsey with a friend, unknown, who were pushing a new book to Paul Krouch, the wizard of Christianity according to Paul Krouch. You know, the big discussions about the HOLOGRAPHS in the sky, yea even over Phoenix, and some of the elaborate technologies come upon you. Then there was talk of E.T.s and a put-down of any type of extraterrestrial visitation and finally a pressing mandate to NOT PAY ATTENTION TO THESE EVIL THINGS.

The book being pushed is actually quite good in its presentation of what is going on here and there, but the whole concept of the universe, GOD, and revelation along with inability to do other than as presented by the Evangelical Jesus Christ attitude of MAN, not the Christ attitude of God and all being possible within God. Oh well—the book seems to be called *ALIEN ENCOUNTERS* and is available, they said, from "secular" bookstores, whatever that might mean.

These people all tell you just to wait and all of God's (Jesus Christ) people will be Raptured and the Earth will be left without God and won't everyone be shocked? Indeed, I would guess worse than "shocked". These people (Raptured) will "all go to the clouds with Jesus", goes the hype. Oh? And just what are ye going to do on the clouds? If you are spirit form you certainly do not wish to sit around on the clouds, and if you are human form the law of universal physics will dump you right back, with a huge splat, onto the ground from which you ascended. This is fact and not some Guru's fancy for the day and time. God and Truth are so much the more wondrous in the fact of reality than are the silly and nonsensical prattlings of would-be distractors.

The interchange went on and on about the blood of the Man and believing and salvation costing only your "belief" or your stated line of approach to that belief. God is somehow missed all the way along this prattler's pathway of words and opinions. And then of course comes the message that even though the books are written, you might well choose to only read the ones presented by these narrow-minds as acceptable. The others—TOSS! The end is that you are not to seek or find or even LOOK UPON any other possibilities of difference. And yet there was one inserted statement that would fry your blood: they started quoting from the *Bible* where GOD delivered into the hands of HIS people the hundreds upon thousands of hapless people referred to as Nephalim and GOD said to slay THEM ALL! They didn't get all of them murdered so now you must pay for their failure to murder according to the orders handed down. Are you nuts? God does not CREATE to simply send orders for YOU to slay His creations. Hyper B.S.

Meanwhile, go about your silly games, shopping, for which Christmas was created by the commercial anti-Christs to totally blind you from any resemblance to meaning of giving or receiving. Wrap your own heads in swaddling cloth and bind your eyes and ears so you are not distracted from your credit-card overexpenditures for junk to add to the displeasure of all involved. Go on and move like the herds of sheep on the perimeter of the slaughter houses and contain your journey in the ignorance so that you are not pulled from your ecstasy or bliss of your individual preferences—to remain totally in ignorance and evasion of life experience. You can really get too much "bliss", you know, and the ones around you who must put up with all "your" bliss can be overloaded with your selfishness.

ANTHRAX NIGHTMARE

While all the lies and garbage of chemical warfare and biological terror are flooding the airwaves, guess what! The power-brokers have actually accomplished THE WAY to getcha and make you think and beg for something for yourself. How? Oh well, they just talk about things like Anthrax and Saddam Hussein, A LOT. Any anthrax that Saddam might have CAME DIRECTLY AND ORIGINALLY FROM FLORIDA, U.S.A., AND OTHER LABS AS TIME WENT FORWARD. THE U.S. AND BRITAIN HAVE THE ABILITY TO WIPE OUT THE WORLD OF ALL LIVING THINGS—NOT SADDAM HUSSEIN.

So, now what? Well, it was there for your eyes and ears as it was announced last evening over and over that millions of your servicemen will be inoculated against Anthrax but no civilians will have the opportunity for lack of vaccine. They went on to say there was no evidence of "side-EFFECTS" in the last Gulf War from such vaccinations so this will protect your "boys" and "girls" who must stand guard for you-the-idiot-people.

No side-effects? What in heck do you think all the bombing was about and the "Syndromes" of that debacle wherein your own military blew up and spewed stuff all over yourselves and anyone else in the neighborhood?

Don't you just know that the stuff is in the fan and you are NEXT IN LINE FOR THE GASSING AND PASSING OF SUCH DEADLY ATMOSPHERES? And you sleep on while not wishing to be distracted from your hectic rounds of the stores and candy counters.

Do I want you to give up that glow of the Holidays? Oh no, for it is the only time you appreciate the possibilities of life somehow having more meaning than is experienced. That brief time of wishing to share, shoulder to shoulder with total strangers is even pleasant in the thought-coalition of some measure of pleasure and joy outside self. Just be honest about what you do and why you do it. A thoughtful gift or card mends the holes in our shrouds and heals the hurting hearts. If, for instance, you want a party to share your lights and a piece of bread—DO SO but don't say it is a heartfelt gifting unto Christ. A celebration perhaps—not a focused expression of some Spiritual passage.

Do you notice that once again the terror and deliberate taking of your young soldiers away—just in time for the Holidays, has happened? And, just what do you suppose the U.S.A. and Britain plan to do to those people in Iraq—with Anthrax and worse? The vaccinations are not TO PROTECT THE BOYS FROM IRAQ, it is to protect the boys and girls from your aggression against the helpless people of Iraq. The Third World War (and probably Armageddon) is now upon you. Since the U.S.A. is now considered to be the homeland of Israel, it will not be off limits for retaliation, so you might well want to watch your skies for other subterfuge and check out those colds and flus which will pour upon you like poison rain.

FROM GREECE THIS MORNING

I won't pass this opportunity to present what no one else is going to give you for input so let us take time to offer JUST ONE focus as others around the globe are efforting to DO SOMETHING to assist this terrible atrocity thrust upon Iraq in the name of POWER, GREED AND OIL.

This is a letter formulated as a diplomatic move to express unified desire and intent to stop the insanity. The message is, of course, to the United Nations. Ah, but WHO controls this United Nations in New York and makes the decisions thrust upon the rest of the world? So be it. The cup is going to be very, very bitter, for that which the world projects on the least of God's people shall be turned back upon the senders with ten times the force. Good luck!

[QUOTING:]

Your Excellency,

We, the undersigned, Greek businessmen, meeting in Athens do express our immense outrage and condemnation for the prolongation of the blockade on the people of Iraq since 1991. The death toll as a result of the blockade, now well over 1,250,000 (mostly children), constitutes a process of genocide.

The twenty-two million people of Iraq are under a severe process of starvation and deprivation of the most basic human rights. We believe this process must be stopped at once. We call upon your Excellency to immediately put an end to this unjust blockade.

Excellency,

We are sure that you share with us the feeling that the imposition of sanctions such as those harshly imposed on Iraq, does not comply with any humanitarian conduct because it resorts to starvation, and thus gradual killing of a whole nation.

We are very convinced that all problems can be settled peacefully with dialogue and talks and not by starvation or force.

At the same time, we must convey to you that we witness a blatant discrimination on dealing with Iraq, i.e. a kind of double-standard policy. We all know that Iraq is the cradle of civilization and its contribution to Mankind can't be denied by any power on Earth. Therefore, the people of Iraq do not deserve such treatment.

When we talk of human rights we must accept full responsibility for the deprivation of 22 million people of Iraq of the most basic and crude human rights.

Your Excellency,

We are forced to ask you:

To act immediately to put an end to the unjust blockade on the people of Iraq. No reason or pretext can justify the continuation of this gradual genocide on the land of Mesopotamia—the cradle of civilization. [H: How many of YOU even know where or what is *Mesopotamia?*]

All facts and evidence categorically indicate that Iraq has fulfilled all the obligation of UN resolutions.

We believe that Iraqi Sovereignty, independence and territorial integrity must be fully respected. This is in compliance with the U.N. Charter, the International Law and even the U.N. Resolutions on Iraq. We, therefore, are of the strong conviction that the invitation of the leadership of Iraq to the representatives of the countries, members of the U.N. Security Council, to visit the palaces of the people of Iraq is a direct and positive proof of the utmost constructive cooperation on the part of Iraq. We believe that you should accept the invitation and not to let the process of humiliating a whole nation continue.

We strongly appeal to all peace-loving peoples and governments really concerned about human rights to lift the blockade on Iraq immediately and put an end to the genocide.

With our high esteem and anticipation -

[END OF QUOTING]

How many of you believe that it is simple coincidence that you experience a silly and so-called El Nino at the same time the world is falling apart and humanity is at low ebb? It would appear that the places most touted for devastation from this little boy-child Nino are pretty much secure but the rest of the Third-World survival from the disaster is wiping out millions, and millions more will starve in the aftermath. Don't continue in your silly ways and imbecilic thinking. This is INTENTIONALLY CONSTRUCTED TO DO EXACTLY WHAT IT IS DOING—PRODUCING MAJOR DISASTER AFTER DISASTER THAT CANNOT BE COUNTERED. You have had weather control through technology for half a century on your place.

How many of you are even aware that with the new systems such as HAARP in place globally that your MAGNETIC pole changes as much as 15 degrees at a swing, and as many as 5 to 10 times every 24 hours while these patterns are being structured? Not important? Wow, readers!

I again suggest you pay close attention to that which we began to present yesterday on South Africa—for there goes the world and, any way you wish it to be, Rapture or otherwise, GO YOU!

What is GOD or "I" going to do to fix this mess? ABSOLUTELY NOTHING. GOD DOES NOT BUTCHER OR BRING SUFFERING TO HIS PEOPLE OR HIS CHILDREN—THAT IS MAN'S DOING! MAN IS DOING IT BEFORE YOUR FOOLISH EYES AND IF IT BE RESOLVED, IT WILL BE THROUGH YOUR HANDS, WISHES, AND IN THE DOING. WE CAN SHOW THE WAY, POINT TO TRUTH, BRING HISTORICAL BASIS FOR UNDERSTANDING—BUT IF YOU WANT A BETTER WORLD, YOU WILL DO IT AND NO AMOUNT OF WISHING OTHER-WISE WILL CHANGE AN IOTA OF THE FACTS OF IT.

Since we have a bit of space here without making this writing unmanageable let me give you just a bit more on South Africa and the NEW WORLD ORDER, now into several centuries of accomplishment of its goals:

[QUOTING, THE CONSPIRACY AGAINST SOUTH AFRICA, a brief pamphlet presentation:]

THE ONSLAUGHT ON SOUTH AFRICA

Before the New World Order can be imposed, racial identity and a sense of nationhood have to be eradicated and mankind standardized into a passive, hybrid society. [H: Anybody recognize any symptoms of the success of this measure?] As this can be brought about only through the integration of Blacks with Whites, that policy is an essential part of the one-worlders' plan. To achieve it, drastic action has been taken such as mounting the Civil Rights Campaign in the US and flooding Britain with subsidized non-Whites protected by the Race Relations Act. Scriptural and scientific proofs that integration is wrong are discredited with false multi-racial propaganda and anyone who opposes race-mixing is labelled with the new social taboo word—"racist".

It may therefore be appreciated that the election to power in South Africa of a segregationist government in 1948 caused great consternation among the one-worlders. Ethnic self-determination was anathema to their plan and could not be allowed to succeed. To scuttle it, the vicious anti-apartheid campaign was launched. And with the media, communists, liberals and social gospellers as its mouthpiece and unlimited financial resources, it could hardly fail. The Cold War against South Africa had begun.

THE ATTEMPTED COUP

The latest Soviet target was Africa, and during the fifties one African state after another was decolonized and given a token Black ruler. But South Africa, with its large White population and sound economy, again presented a problem. The following 5-point plan was therefore put into action to collapse White rule and allow a surrogate Black government to be installed:

- 1. Surround South Africa with Marxist states.
- 2. Isolate and demoralize South Africans by means of sport and other boycotts.
- 3. Wage economic war on the country by artificially weakening the rand. (This has been done by holding down the price of gold to far below its true market value.)
- 4. Organize terror through the ANC.
- 5. Foment bitter rivalry and dissent between the different White groups.

It was Dr. Verwoerd's knowledge of the Conspiracy and awareness of this plan that made him decide in 1961 to remove South Africa from the one-world pressure within the Commonwealth and make the country a Republic.

THE ONE-WORLDERS' RESPONSE WAS AN ATTEMPT TO TAKE SOUTH AFRICA BY FORCE

On the 11th day of July 1963 security police raided "Lilliesleaf Farm" in Rivonia near Johannesburg and foiled this plot. The coup, code named "Mayibuye", was to have been spearheaded by 7000 communist-trained troops reinforced by foreigners landed along the coastline. On an agreed date they were to

have led a Black uprising against the Whites, and among the weapons they planned to use were 210,000 hand grenades, 48,000 anti-personnel mines, 1500 time bombs and 48,000 landmines. [H: Still think the "little princess" Di had a chance at any worthy projects for protection since the very parties involved with her SET THE MINES!?]

Their targets were spread throughout the country.

In the "Rivonia Trial" which followed, Nelson Mandela was "Accused No. 1", charged with plotting to overthrow the South African Government by means of sabotage, guerilla warfare and revolution. He was the most dangerous South African Black activist at the time, and already in gaol when his co-conspirators were arrested.

After the failure of the attempted coup the one-worlders stepped up their intrigue. Dr. Verwoerd was assassinated for daring to stand in their way, and was succeeded as Prime Minister by a nervous John Vorster. Through Vorster's collusion with the CFR-controlled U.S. State Department Rhodesia was betrayed. He allowed himself to be tricked into incurring a National Debt to the bankers and set in motion the dismantling of apartheid, the system devised to prevent inter-racial strife.

When Vorster retired to the position of State President the Verwoerdian Connie Multer was in line to become the next Prime Minister. His appointment was avoided by contrivance of the "Info Scandal", and P.W. Botha who appeared more amenable was chosen instead, with CFR-indoctrinated Pik Botha to guide him. The plan to impose a Black government on South Africa was back on track, soon to be finalized by Reform.

THE TRUTH ABOUT REFORM

The blueprint for Reform was contained in a proposal submitted by Chester Crocker to his CFR masters in 1980. Titled: "South Africa, Strategy for Change", it described how the National Party and State machinery could be used as agents for change, and coincides exactly with Reform.

CFR members Arend Lipjhart and Professor Samuel Huntingdon were sent to South Africa to advise the government on how to structure Reform in such a way that it would not be recognizable as the beginning of integration.

And the powerful one-world Establishment within the country swung into action to make sure the final thrust would not fail.

THE ENEMY WITHIN

The internal base of the Conspiracy has been operating since the Boer War—the event that held the seeds of the present situation. When gold was found in the Transvaal Boer Republic the International bankers, through their influence over Queen Victoria and with the collaboration of Rhodes and Milner, contrived the war on a voting pretext in order to seize the gold from the Boers. In 1899 profits from the opium trade with China were used to equip a British force of 400,000 men against whom the Boers could muster only 30,000 volunteers. During the war more than 66,000 women and children, 1,600 elderly men and 2,000 prisoners-of-war died in the British concentration camps while 4,000 Boers were killed in

action. The war was conducted without mercy, and at the end of three years its goal was achieved. The bankers gained control of South Africa's gold.

On this foundation of Afrikaner suffering has been built the mighty empire of Mr. Harry Oppenheimer. And, as billionaire David Rockefeller rules the U.S. through his CFR/Trilateral Commission appointees, so Oppenheimer secretly rules South Africa through control over Big Business and the liberals with the Government.

Oppenheimer's power base consists of nearly all the country's gold and diamond mines, over 60 percent of the stock market, 60 corporations together worth nearly R60 billion, and most of the country's daily and weekly newspapers. When Iscor, Escom, Sasol, SATSa and the SABC are privatized they are certain to also become part of his monopoly. He is a member of the Secret Societies, works closely with the Rockefeller Establishment and has made billions through joint gold and diamond ventures with the Soviets.

Oppenheimer has always kept a low political profile, but through his sponsorship of the PFP maintained a negative liberal political force in the country consisting of a core of radical leftists supported by idealistic liberals. This bloc was strongly backed by his press until Reform was forced on the Government as their new policy. Then Big Business and the Oppenheimer hierarchy came out strongly in its favour and trapped the Government in a pincer of foreign and local power wielders.

The thinly disguised alliance that now occurred between Big Business and the Government led to materialization of "new Afrikaners"—clones of the English-speaking businessman. Like the Cape Colony Afrikaners who fought on the side of the marauding bankers against their Republican kinsmen during the Boer War, they have betrayed their own kind and become slaves of the Money Power.

On the other hand, many English-speakers have thrown in their lot with the patriotic Afrikaner, and so instead of the old Boer versus Brit' alignment, South Africans are ranged either on the Left or on the Right.

[END OF QUOTING]

When we look now at the Blacks, by whatever name they wish to call themselves, we find total confusion as the same thing has happened in modern America and other countries controlled by Great Britain. Don't kid yourselves, readers, that just because you are within a minority group that you somehow relate better to the other minority groups around you. No, there is no allowance for any alliances to be formed but, rather, an emotional training to pull down all other groups, starting with the local minorities, gangs, and other haplessly available victims.

The "Redmen" you call erroneously "Indians" may well present a nice presentation to the individual Black man—BUT beware, for the animosity of this conflicting of players goes all the way back to the "good old days" and slavery. The Blacks were just as busy as their White masters wiping out the Indians (Native Americans). The Blacks HAVE THE SAME MASTERS THEY HAD BACK THEN and the Natives have never either forgotten nor forgiven the efforts at genocide against them.

How many of you, do you suppose, will even outlive the attacks planned through microbes and chemicals

upon your physical bodies, to even make it to more genocidal processes? Genocide of the Christians is underway and genocide of all citizens who conflict with the New World Order Banksters is under way as well. Moreover, the Banksters tie the noose ever more tightly day by day as they integrate into their, ONLY, use, the facilities which would attend YOUR property. Therefore, understand this well, that there is now no property remaining for you-the-slaves. Methods for total usurpation and gathering in ALL WEALTH AND PROPERTY are completed through the political taxation systems. If you can lose ANY-THING for lack of tax-payments—YOU ARE ENSLAVED AND CAN HAVE NO PROPERTY OF YOUR OWN.

So, I have spoiled your Holidays? No I have NOT, for most of you will pay no attention to these writings, form your own desired opinions, and both of us will have done our task. Perhaps slavery is not so bad after all? You have no decisions to make about freedom of actions, thoughts, or any other choices outside that which is given as your limitations and restrictions. Only within GOD is FREEDOM. You of Earth Human have long been enslaved. The guidelines for accomplishment of total enslavement are written in those books called Holy, so go re-read them and you find killing, murdering, and war after war. Then, surely enough, go forth and slay and silence the messengers so that they do not interrupt your love-affair with Big Brother's security measures. Go on, demand your Anthrax vaccinations for equal opportunity with your military, and thus and so. After all, what do you pay those politicians to do? And what is the most important thing in the U.S.A. TODAY? That's right: What did Clinton name the new First Dog?

Merry Christmas and may you even have a New Year! Salu.

CHAPTER 12

REC #1 HATONN

WED., DEC. 17, 1997 7:52 A.M. YR.11, DAY 123

WED., DEC. 17, 1997

WHO HAS THE HEAVIEST LOAD?

The professor of economics, in this day of forgotten computer printouts which feed back what has always been acceptable, undoubtedly thinks his load to be heaviest. He might well be, in any recent morning's confusion, the most noticed—with his breakfast eggs all over his face. But, remember something readers: to the cow the grass is always far better and greener on the other side of the fence from self. Each pack horse believes his burden to be the heaviest and greatest. So, where do you fit into this picture as you look at your own circumstances?

When you are overwhelmed, do you just wait and wait for explanations which never come? Or, do you take a step at a time and work through to the realization that change is what has happened while you thought computer projections to be accurate and dependable.

Overheard yesterday in a restaurant where people were gathered for their usual lunches was a man speaking to his friends at the table: "Well, I've had it! Everyone is taking off for a few days and I have so much work piled up for that damned computer that I could puke. I am going to call in sick and go work on my golf game for the tournament. After all, the economy is the strongest it has ever been and growing and who gives a damn about further overloading the market? Besides, (laugh) most of our customers have lost it all anyway." The man obviously worked at something that relates to the market. So, good people, your investment bottom lines can simply wait until the golf game is a bit better perfected.

Dharma has said similar things, so don't yet romp to conclusions. She has recently said that she didn't actually expect her heart-lungs apparatus to last to the new year, the world is worse, politics rule everything and, "It, Sir, is hopeless, at the least to me." IT IS NOT HOPELESS UNTIL ONE OF TWO THINGS HAPPEN: GOD SAYS IT IS HOPELESS OR WE QUIT!

IS MIND SLAVERY THE HUMAN FUTURE?

Nay, it is the present circumstance. Further, when mind is totally enslaved, it won't matter much, will it? When the President's dog's name is more important than the millions of people dying in Iraq—you are in serious mental derangement and that is exactly what happened yesterday. And the President's naming talents? *Buddy*. Indeed, that really took some thought hours, didn't it?

May I remind you of a fact in this fast-paced world of instant wants for gratification, instant news, instant and participatory (through the TV tube) wars, and other imagined and more unimagined (to you-the-people) technologies: it is obvious you never have the correct picture of anything. And KNOW that if a

thing, an event, news in truth, or silence can be maintained for a week, then it can and probably will be forever kept from you. Always, furthermore, there will be one major distraction following on top of one before it. And the masses eat and frenzy-feed on those distractions.

We had an interesting input from a special guest a week ago who demanded that we get *CONTACT* a website—use his, use anyone's, but get this stuff to the public. He had just become availed of the paper and, boy, were his buttons turned up to full speed ahead. Fine, YOU get it on the web, internet, international headlines—whatever you think "should" be done. We are NOT. We risk life and limb, devote our whole existence to followthrough—and NO, we will simply NOT do YOUR jobs!

Let me give you a bit of insight here. Ekkers (Dharma, specifically) have at LEAST THREE COURT APPEARANCES BEFORE THE END OF DECEMBER. Funny thing: the first court "thing" debacle in this SAME CASE was on December 28, 1988. And, Mr. Green must appear before the Bankruptcy Court in Reno on December 30. How about New Year's on the road, readers, to get through the ice and snow to make a demand appearance to once again TRY to get YOUR stuff into security and reclaim some of the loot taken by Green? Well, don't get up your hopes for this will only be one little hearing to allow the judge to decide to cause the case to go BACK TO ITS THIRD SETTING IN THE GRIFFIN COURT. Hopeless? Well, THIS garbage is the endless hopelessness of our circumstance. We can deal with the disasters of the world for they seem, at the least, WORTHY of attention, but never are the leeches and parasites, criminals and attorneys in corruption, off our backs, necks and in our pockets AT ANY TIME. Laws are BROKEN to and before the judges constantly—AND THEY ONLY AID AND ABET THE CRIMINALS. THIS is somewhat hopeless and yet do we send our people to prison at the hands of some irate Federal judge—to simply bog our stuff down in HOLDING in the Supreme Court of the U.S.? Indeed, you who think you can swing some "common law" cornering of criminal judicial persons think again. There is a compact between the Supreme Court and the judicial system as a whole, mainly the Federal circuits—to simply set aside all such cases arriving in their court. They are not acted on, they are not denied or refined—they are simply buried! WHO IS GOING TO STOP IT? WHAT FORCE DO YOU HAVE GOING THAT CAN REQUIRE THE LAWS BE KEPT—THESE ARE THE PEOPLE MAKING THE LAWS.

We have decided here that one approach for the remainder of this year and until this Supreme Court fiasco can be considered, that at least Ekkers will withdraw the suits against some of these boogers until we can carefully decide where next to act. Judge Coyle of the Federal Court has now emphatically ruled against any participation in any such plan and since he already wanted to get Dharma into prison—it is not very wise to march off like some stupid martyr to prove nothing save stupidity. There will come the DAY and THE WAY if we just act in wisdom in every encounter and in every confrontation, for the enemy does not know "wisdom" and it will be the general ignorance and refusal to recognize Truth that will open the holes through which you can pass.

We needed to know all there is to glean from the current systems in operation and now you can recognize that which we are about. It is called "on-the-job training". We can now get our funding moving and move right into sovereignty circumstances right in front of the blind eyes. God did not, however, intend by the phrase "wait upon God" in patience—to park your fannies and meditate on your belly buttons.

We study what is WRONG—and we build from that which is RIGHT. Simple! Further, if we stop the

incredible stupid assaults against the masters of the slaves and the enforcers thereof—they will help us in our "little" projects for they think that God will never "work" anyway.

With such as AIDS and other plagues can they expect to fully depopulate to their (the World Government) wishes? Oh indeed, it will not be AIDS—it will be the utter lack of immune systems already starving, unbalanced and weakened to death, which will simply allow the overwhelming impacts on societies of masses of people. Starvation and Earth-"controlled and projected" disasters will allow the total spread of everything from disease to pest overruns. Again, I remind you that you HAVE ONLY TWO YEARS UNTIL THE PLAN IS TO BE *FULLY FUNCTIONAL*.

Let us just go back to South Africa where you can visualize further as the reflection of yourselves and any part of the global arena. This information we use here is a decade old and you can openly see the changes already taken place. It is just a refresher review of "gotcha".

[QUOTING, The Conspiracy Against South Africa. (NOVUS ORDO SECLORUM):]

THE PRESENT SCENARIO

South Africa's future destiny will be decided by the forthcoming General Election and events in South West Africa.

The implementation of Resolution 435 has already fulfilled the intention to surround the Republic with Marxist states. Swapo cannot fail to take over the government of SWA/Namibia, and of concern now is what will happen when it does. The withdrawal of 3,000 of the 60,000 Cubans in Angola was hailed as a victory by Mr. Pik Botha. But what of the 2,500 Soviets, 3,500 Portuguese mercenaries, 2,500 East Germans, 3,000 North Koreans, 1,000 Vietnamese, 3,000 ANC troops, 9,000 remaining Cubans? These soldiers, referred to by Swapo's Secretary General Toivo ja Toivo as "fraternal socialist armies", have all been invited by him to settle in Namibia now that the war in Angola is supposedly over. No doubt they will bring with them the artillery, tanks, helicopters, trucks and armored personnel carriers (with Ford engines) now in Angola. Soviet radar will monitor South Africa from bases in Namibia, and Namibian airspace will be blanketed with Soviet air defenses as was the case in Angola. The morale of the Defence Force will be destroyed by seeing its military gains turned into defeats at the negotiating table, and it may be presumed that as a result of the military buildup on the other side of the Orange River the desire for "peace at any price" will prevail in South Africa as intended.

By the time all of this happens the General Election in the Republic will already have taken place, and if it is won by the National Party the threat on the border will be excused away.

South Africa will be in the process of becoming "the world's first multi-racial state", in accordance with the promises made by the Government.

To ensure the Nats do win, a favourite KGB tactic has been employed. Their doubtful voters have

been given a <u>worse alternative</u>. The three leftwing parties made irrelevant by the Government's own move to the left have been combined into the new Democratic party which provides so leftist a stance that by comparison the National Party appears conservative.

The impression is conveyed by statements made by leading members of the DP and faithfully reported by the press which is also at pains to imply that the Government is still on the Right.

This ploy is intended to prevent defection of Nationalist voters to the Right, but at the same time the electorate is told that Black rule is inevitable, and resistance would lead to revolution, to prepare voters for the NP's later turnaround. And this last argument is taken up enthusiastically by the ultraliberals within the Government.

ROLE OF THE LIBERALS

Liberals, Lenin's "useful idiots", have contributed greatly to the success of the Conspiracy. They are products of its second prong, the socialist, humanist intellectuals converted by Rousseau, Ruskin and the Fabians to their philosophies. From positions within the academic structure, the Church, media and political parties, these people form public opinion and influence governmental policies and have made liberalism and prevailing doctrine of the Western world. In *Suicide of the West* author James Burnham refers to liberalism as "the ideology of Western suicide" and blames it entirely for the West's decline.

As the main supporters of all Communist front organizations, liberals are "Communists in free-speech clothing", protesting against every control and discipline. They are obsessed with racial equality, which does not exist, and it is their insistence on imposing Western culture on Blacks that is mainly responsible for the political and social problems South Africa faces today.

The liberals within the Government, having been metamorphosed from moderate conservatives, are a little apprehensive of the current situation. But they find comfort in the liberal practice of seeing things as they would *like them to be*, not as they are. They have slipped easily into the liberal habit of explaining defeat as victory, abandonment as loyalty, timidity as courage and withdrawal as advance. Consequently they experience no guilt over the betrayal of their country.

Our Government has succumbed to the pressures of the one-worlders and surrendered to the prospect of Communism [H: Which, of course, never was, is NOT, and never shall be "communism".]. The life-and-death struggle for survival now depends on the rest of us.

[H: The following is going to be so blatantly disagreeable that many of you will stop reading and that is exactly what your enemies within this NEW WORLD ORDER want you to do. They want you to become so opinionated and so brainwashed that surely you won't be accepting of concepts such as <u>Blacks are of no significance except as a tool to destroy the White race.</u> No, I am not just referring to Africa or some distant and dim place—I am going to shock hell out of a lot of you right now: Proof of the last statement is to be found in the U.S. Congressional Record for June 1957 (page 7633, if not purged) which quotes the following extract from *A Racial Program for the 20th Century*, written by Communist spokesman Israel Cohen:

"By propounding into the consciousness of the dark races that for centuries they have been oppressed by the Whites, we can mold them to the program of the Communist party... we will aid the Negroes to rise in prominence in every walk of life; in the professions, and in the world of sport and entertainment. With this prestige the Negro will be able to marry with the Whites..."

"This policy of using the Blacks has already become obvious in America, Britain and other countries, and is now manifest in South Africa." So, readers, it is DONE, AND YOU CAN NOW WAIT FOR THE OTHER SHOE TO FLOP ON THE TABLE AS THEY SHOW YOU WHAT WILL BE DONE WITH THIS "NEW PLAN".]

FACING FACTS

[H: HOLD YOUR SEATS BECAUSE THIS IS GOING TO BE A HARD RIDE ON YOUR CONSCIOUSNESS!]

There is a general awakening to the knowledge that something is very wrong with the world, an undercurrent of panic in every country which those who have travelled overseas lately will confirm. This is particularly so in the Republic where people indeed may well "perish for want of knowledge". Awareness of the Conspiracy provides the missing dimension required to understand South African and world affairs, and its perception enables disinformation to be swept away and the truth revealed.

It then becomes apparent that we are victims of the most audacious hoax ever perpetrated, for the new morality that has condemned South Africa's policies and professed compassion for Blacks is a sham.

[H: Can't you people SEE that the sham is now prevalent in every other nation on the globe? Can't you see that in even celebration of Blacks (especially women) the celebration following Christmas is simply a repeat of the Jewish celebration right down to the candles and candlesticks? FACE it. You Blacks insisted on, at the urging of your so-called leaders, to call yourselves African-Americans. NO! You are NOT. If you are citizens of the United States of America—YOUARE AMERICANS (with perhaps some native heritage and culture), but you are not even that for YOU as a whole DID NOT COME FROM AFRICA! BUT, BROTHERS, YOU ARE NOW CLASSIFIED AND TIED INTO THE SAME BAG WITH THE OTHERS WHO ARE VICTIMS OF THE HUNT-AND-KILL. CAN YOU REALIZE HOW EASY IT HAS BEEN TO TOTALLY DEFRAUD THE WORLD AND YOU IN IT?]

The realities with which we then have to come to terms are these:

1. The secret government of the U.S. is working closely with the USSR. The rival superpower story is a myth. [H: Don't even bother at this point to look to Israel because Israel's Khazarian Jewish elements set up and structured the entire Communist Empire of Russia (the Soviet Union) and NOTHING HAS CHANGED ABOUT THOSE INTERNATIONAL LEADERS AND THE INTENT AT WORLD CONQUEST. THE CONFUSION IS SIMPLY THAT—CONFUSION TO KEEP YOU FROM KNOWING TRUTH.]

- 2. The policies of countries throughout the world are governed by the international bankers and it is they who are orchestrating the economic pressures on the Republic.
- 3. There is no point in trying to make treaties with the neighboring Black states because they are not free agents. Their hostility towards the Republic is the due they pay for the Aid they receive.
- 4. The political, economic and spiritual onslaught on our country will not end until our sea lanes and minerals are in the hands of the Communists.

5. BLACKS ARE OF NO SIGNIFICANCE EXCEPT AS A TOOL TO DESTROY THE WHITE RACE. [H: THUS ALLOWING THE "SELF-CHOSEN" RACE OF BANKSTERS TO MOVE INTO TOTAL AND FULL CONTROL OF EVERYTHING AND EVERYONE.]

[H: I ask that this next be repeated because I doubt anyone will take the time to go back and study the following input.]

Proof of the last statement is to be found in the U.S. Congressional Record for June 1957 (page 7633) which quotes the following extract from *A Racial Program for the 20th Century*, written by Communist spokesman Israel Cohen:

"By propounding into the consciousness of the dark races that for centuries they have been oppressed by the Whites we can mold them to the program of the Communist Party... we will aid the Negroes to rise in prominence in every walk of life; in the professions, and in the world of sport and entertainment. With this prestige the Negro will be able to marry with the Whites..."

This policy has already become obvious in America, Britain and other countries, and is now manifest in South Africa.

Neither the Development Aid programmes responsible for our high taxation nor the enforced race-mixing we are experiencing has anything to do with Black "human rights". These measures were introduced to lower White standards and turn South Africa into a multiracial meltingpot in which integration can easily be enforced by law. [H: Does this seem bigoted to your senses when you speak of lowering "White standards"? Why? Think about it a minute—the Blacks have experienced such a horrendous ill-conceived baseline of general poverty and exploitation as to have such a low standard of living that the only way for them to move would be up. So, the point is well taken to neutralize the problem of that kind of structure by simply reversing the operation and causing the Whites to be sucked into the already present Black entrapment. This also causes the integrated races to intermix and everything from poverty to AIDS is spread at random without limitation.]

Blacks have been as disadvantaged by their exploitation as have we. They have forfeited their racial identity to become copycat Whites in an alien environment where they are unable to cope and are exposed to temptations they cannot resist. Odinga Odinga of Kenya, reacting to a similar situation said: "If we want to be savages we will be savages," and this sentiment must be echoing defiantly in the breast of many a Black South African as he struggles with the Western culture imposed on him to suit the designs of the one-

worlders.

The upliftment of Blacks is a paradox, for should South Africa surrender as is intended, the whole of Southern Africa will be lost to the free world like Eastern Europe was after the Second World War, and the fate of the Blacks will be worse than our own. Once a strategic mineral cartel has been formed with the USSR, and the seas from the Equator to Cape Town are controlled by the Soviets through the possession of Walvis Bay and Simonstown, the one-worlders will forget about South Africa. They will have the means to emasculate the West by cutting off supplies of oil and essential minerals and will embark on the next stage of their plan.

This is why the survival of South Africa is vitally important to the West, and the Republic is the pivot of the Counter Revolution.

[H: By the way, this is simply another illusion for you to swallow. Remember that speaking of Russian (or even Soviet) is to distract you from noticing that the ones gaining power are NOT "communists" but rather factions of this thing, the NEW WORLD ORDER OF BANKSTERS. By changing labels, look at how totally and easily a whole concept is changed. Who is the "West"? Well, you had better look more closely then, had you not?]

[END OF QUOTING]

I am ending this segment at this point, prior to the next topic from this 1988-89 writing entitled "OPPOS-ING THE WORLD REVOLUTION". I want to call your attention to the news THIS VERY DAY (12-17-97). The ANC just announced nominations for a new leader and other political aspirants. Winnie Mandela was placed into nomination to serve as what amounts to the "Vice Presidency" under the opposition to her former husband Mandela. She declined to keep order in the ranks and political circles due to recent accusations of murder and such other claims. No comment, readers, about those fragments—just note the fact that the new "President" has stated TODAY that "the revolution is far from over". No rest for the innocent or weary? No, and neither will there be until the New World Order has claimed everything they seek. South Africa, I repeat, is simply a good view of what is taking place everywhere and even right under the noses of the very world leaders who intend to take everything. Israel is not the "headquarters" and neither is Russia—through the British-Israel hierarchy the Americas become (already accomplished) the new head of Israel to facilitate the luxurious life-styles and wealth of the United States and Canada. With NAFTA, however, that wealth has been destroyed and the remainder of the property is in a state of seizure.

All associations formally laid with China will be hyped and shied-away-from in order to stop any coalition. The leaders of this non-joint venturing will be well-intended patriots but will be totally MISREPRESENTED BY THE VERY ONES THINKING THEMSELVES SOMEHOW DOING WORTHY AND PATRIOTIC WORK. It is hard to sort it all into neat little piles of who is what and where is who and what would who do where. Infiltration into the very joints of your national being has it now jeopardized and compromised to the point of NO RETURN—so, if there be change it must be in the measures of building up through some other routing than is the Federal Government as corporately structured. And, since you can't tell who is on which side, perhaps you had best decline to take sides only to find you didn't know what in the name of common sense you were, or are, speaking about. Be careful lest you would-be do-

gooders are next blamed for the next Federal Building Massacre. There will always be the discontented mouths who would take the guns and go to war while setting THEMSELVES up for takeout by the professionals (BATF, FBI, POLICE, and CIA-Mossad-KGB).

We here at this place will continue doing exactly what we ARE doing as long as it is acceptable without open defiance. We are not going to fight anyone's wars nor become martyrs for false assumptions. If the McVeighs and Nichols, Davidians and Ruby Ridge Separatists wish to martyr themselves, so be it, for if the shoe fits the planned rigging, they will have cornered themselves and left the door open for the hanging squads. The U.S.A. became slaves of the British Empire and the Crown of England the minute England first took control to those many years ago when you thought you were gaining your freedom. You have been struggling to get back under total British control since the War of 1812 and, in fact, since the very uprising called your American Revolution.

Am "T" anti-government or something? NO, if this is what YOU want, then you certainly shall have it. I am not anti-anything but am PRO-FREEDOM—but not to be gleaned from the blood of anyone, including YOU. Anti-government would mean that I am "in favor" of ANARCHY for that is what would remain after the smoke would clear away, and that would mean total devastation of everything meaningful and move you into total collapse of your economies and your life-structures while pushing you into total chaos and bloodshed in a massive struggle for the worst-fitting derelicts to take, forcibly, control over the nations. Your minds are being manipulated, as we speak, on everything from lies regarding "bird flu" from Hong Kong to Anthrax and market fluctuations. Just run from one distraction to another and you will find no rest or peace at any rest-stop. Satan laughs as you bungle and hysteric your way through the maze set forth for your failures.

[QUOTING, Continuation from THE CONSPIRACY AGAINST SOUTH AFRICA:]

OPPOSING THE WORLD REVOLUTION

Utmost secrecy has always surrounded the aims and modus operandi of the Conspiracy, but nevertheless information about it has been circulating since before 1798 when John Robison wrote *Proofs of a Conspiracy*. It is generally agreed that the master plan for this World Revolution embodies the Luciferian doctrine of Adam Weishaupt and that it is being applied by means of the international Secret Societies. But a more intimate knowledge of what is going on is being gained all the time by people who study every aspect of world affairs. The Conspiracy is under the searchlight of a Counter Revolution whose intention is to expose it to the masses it plans to enslave.

[Doris notation: Every time I begin to doubt I am brought up to attention so uncompromisingly as to shock myself after all these years of this work.

This morning I came to my downstairs corner for only the third time in months to use my regular computer to write these recent (this week's) entries. I was making room to get to my computer chair and several books FELL OFF THE DESK WHILE PULLING A WHOLE SECTION OF OTHER BOOKS FROM THE TOP SHELF. MOST FELL TO THE FLOOR OR BEHIND THE DESK BUT ONE HIT MY HEAD, SHOULDER AND FELL ONTO MY FOOT INSTEP SO HARD AS TO CAUSE A LIMPAND A BRUISE-BUMP. WOULD YOU GUESS? *PROOFS*

OF A CONSPIRACY BY JOHN ROBISON, A.M. 1798. God alone knows from whence it came and God alone must have thrown it at me but I need a break now to stop the shaking. I wonder if any of us are ever ready for GOD to go to work WITH US?]

[Me again: I am back now, fortified with Margie's chocolate cookies (candy by any name), and being soothed as my "inner child" is soothed by only the benefit of calories and chocolate, I shall continue. GOD got even with me for cutting-out by having the first two pieces of mail I opened on my "break" be asking for money. Oh well, a day in the life of (you insert the name).]

The Counter Revolution operates in all Western countries by means of books, newsletters, tapes and lectures. These are mainly concerned with current events, and its preoccupation at present is with the attempt to establish a group of Common Markets for conversion at a later date to Regional Branches of the World Government.

The first Common Market was formed by the Warsaw Pact countries, and is now a political slave state. The European Common Market appeared next, and in spite of Mrs. Thatcher's protestations is due to become "The United States of Europe" in 1992. The East Asian and North American Common Markets are in the process of development, and the first steps towards the Southern African Common Market were outlined by Mr. P.W. Botha not long ago.

The plan to establish **ten** Common Markets and convert them into Regional Branches of the World Government was contained in a Club of Rome report issued on Sept. 7th, 1973 under the heading "Strategy of Survival Project". Reference to the role to be played by South Africa appeared in Appendix 7—Regionalised and Adaptive Model on the World Global System, and now that it is about to be implemented has obviously been communicated to Mr. Botha as it exactly matches his statement.

According to the plan, the Regional Branches of the World Government will control the exchequers, economies and armed forces of the proposed regional areas, and as South Africa is in the same area as the Main African Unity bloc, our resources are intended to be integrated with theirs. [H: Does anyone remember those *Revelation* ten heads and ten horns ——?]

There has already been an outcry over the R100 million promised to Mozambique in military aid. Therefore the Government is aware that there will be resistance to the sharing of our resources with our Marxist neighbors.

This would account for the sudden SA/USSR rapprochement and the fact that the Soviets appear to have moved in somewhat prematurely for the kill.

Their first objective is to arrange negotiations with the ANC. The ANC then could be included in a Government of National Reconciliation, and diplomatic relations with the USSR made official. The opening of a Soviet embassy would imply acceptance of Communists and communist front organizations and the alignment of the Republic with Marxists in the regional areas, as proposed, would then not seem untoward.

Progress towards a Southern Africa Common Market and Regional Branch of the World Government

could then be expected to proceed smoothly.

This plan, like many others, has been adopted on the assumption that the present maverick National Party will be re-elected; but that is far from inevitable.

Had the original National Party not come to power in 1948 South Africa would undoubtedly have fallen long ago. As it was, a succession of strong leaders resisted the one-world pressures to which many other governments succumbed, and allowed the country to grow into what was the most promising area of Western civilization. And when the pressure became intolerable, a courageous Dr. Verwoerd openly defied the one-worlders by making South Africa independent of the Commonwealth—for which bold step he paid with his life.

[H: Look again at the above paragraph and let me point out what most of you will miss entirely: firstly it was PLANNED and Dr. Verwoerd had, actually, nothing to do with it. Secondly, please note the YEAR in point. It says "1948" which is THE year the United Nations organization drew up its charter and came into full-blown POWER, inclusive of Russia, et al. You will please note TODAY that an African Black man is now head of the United Nations, Kofi Anon. Still think happenstance and coincidence rule your lives??]

Since then we have been ruled by much lesser men who have chosen, through what coercion we cannot tell, to take the road of appearement, collusion and surrender. Their present policy of racial socialism has already destroyed much that was built before, brought misery on many and blighted our children's future.

On September 6th, the 23rd anniversary of Dr. Verwoerd's assassination, we will have the opportunity to restore the ideals he represented by ridding ourselves of these men. But if this is to be done we must not only expose the duplicity of the National and Democratic Parties, we must make known their masters. [H: OK, readers, this was printed a decade ago and where are you with either the informing or the restructuring?]

"There is nothing as powerful as truth, and often nothing as strange," said Daniel Webster, and we might add to that George Washington's pronouncement that: "Truth will ultimately prevail where there is pains taken to bring it to light," for Truth is the weapon that will destroy the Conspiracy.

Gary Allen says in *NONE DARE CALL IT CONSPIRACY*: "You are the answer, you are their Achilles heel. The one thing these conspirators cannot survive is exposure."

Like most counter-revolutionary writers, Gary Allen is concerned in his books with the total scenario of the Conspiracy, whereas we have dwelt only upon the part that concerns South Africa. But his words are a clarion call to us at this moment, for if a sufficient number of South Africans can be made to realize that Satan is directing their lives towards "a godless, totalitarian one-world government" they can halt the one-worlders in their tracks. If, under new leaders, we refuse to become part of the New World Order, we can turn the tide.

We must remember however, that we are fighting the spiritual force of evil, and it can be conquered only by an even stronger force of good. Therefore we need to pray as well as fight, and recall the

admonishment of the Bible: Put on the whole armour of God that ye may be able to stand against the wiles of the devil. For we wrestle not against flesh and blood, but against principalities, against powers, against the rulers of the darkness of this world, against spiritual wickedness in high places." EPHESIANS 6;11;13.

[END OF QUOTING]

Since this is the end of the booklet, we will just stop here and thank the sender who has shared this summary for our review. Since it is less than desirable to have your name scattered among your enemies, we will leave the party without name, but, THANK YOU. I will also note that which the party penned to the back of the booklet: "Sad, but true. The Black races of Africa and especially in South Africa under the 'New' Constitution of the ANC, are 100% set up to destroy themselves. Unfortunately they've been so emotionally hyped-up against the Whites that they can no longer even see the woods for the trees."

There is a book list which we can share but all the important pieces of information you need came this decade since the writing of the offered pamphlet. My first and major recommendation is, AGAIN, CON-SPIRATORS' HIERARCHY: The Story of the Committee of 300, by John Coleman, WIR, 2533 N. Carson St., Carson City, NV 89706.

And, if you really want the scoop, you will want to get the early background proof of this information and movement toward total World domination and takeover. *PROOFS OF A CONSPIRACY* by John Robison, A.M. 1798. (The Americanist Classics). Published by Western Islands, Boston-Los Angeles.

It becomes obvious that at some point you will have to look at these presentations for unless you find your way and what happened TO YOU along that way you can no more change the way of the ending than you can easily fly without wings or attachments.

And while you are looking at facts, you might as well go right on forward and realize that there is no coalition against Saddam Hussein. There is JUST THE U.S. and Britain. There is not even much lip service otherwise and the sham disclosures and vaccinations of your troops, etc., is simply to keep the illusion going until something worse can be found to feed you.

You have to come to realize that, more importantly, the October and November Persian Gulf crisis was the FIRST TIME IRAQ AND IRAN HAVE OPERATED OPENLY TOGETHER AGAINST THE WEST. This is NOT GOOD FOR YOU, PEOPLE, WHO CAN'T SEE TRUTH AND HANG ON TO THE LIES.

Let me point out a reminder: Sixty-five percent of the world oil supply is in the Persian Gulf. The armies of Kuwait and Saudi Arabia are NOT LOYAL, so the only thing standing between the oil and Iraq and Iran IS THE US MILITARY. My good friends, Iraq and Iran WILL TAKE BACK THE PERSIAN GULF; it is only a matter of time. That Mother of All Wars is just about upon you sleeping beauties. I would further remind you that every "pass" is systematically being cut-off at the narrows, leaving only blind canyons from which there is no escape.

These factions do not involve GOD in the way you might think because each faction is only dealing, again, with that which is physical and over property rights, etc. Remember that GOD IS SPIRIT and, therefore, anything LESS THAN SPIRITUAL IN TRUTH is not fully of GOD.

Can "you" who are Godly survive? Of course, but will you? That is up to your own choices. A remnant WILL BE BROUGHT THROUGH, BUT THE REMNANT WILL PERFECT THE WAY.

The way IT IS, World, means that you have gone about as far as you can go and so be it. So, if our personal attentions seem scarce and personal inquiries go without response, please KNOW that we are working 24-7 and we are doing all we can physically and humanly do within those limits. We will apologize for any slights felt by you when we have a minute to reflect on just "who" might have reason to be hurt or disappointed.

We had gotten nice new Christmas Cards to send this year because they would be special and bear greater tidings of good cheer than usual—but life again gets in the way. So, when you see a Christmas Card arrive from here—know that it is special and the meaning wondrous. Until then we just keep right on doing what we are doing and we will do it just as rapidly as we can find a way.

THERE IS NO "FAILURE" WITHIN THE LIGHT OF GOD

Within the Light of God there can be no failure. There is only experience. There are only lessons. There is only growth—much of which may only be fully understood and completely known on the soul level. It is within this LIGHT that wisdom prevails and security exists.

May you remain within that you might find perfection, peace and love beyond that which can be imagined. When you think you have exhausted all alternatives, remember something: YOU HAVE NOT! Salu.

CHAPTER 13

REC #1 HATONN

FRI., DEC. 19, 1997 8:47 A.M. YR.11, DAY 124

FRI., DEC. 19, 1997

DISTRACTIONS OR ATTENTION-NECESSARY?

It is requested by so many that I turn briefly for comment on some of the happenings going on at this Christmastide. There is nothing "new" taking place in your arena of viewing—it is only making it to your attention—finally. This is so that you get so confused that you can't actually remember what you had heard or did not hear and how it might actually affect yourself and those in your attached network.

I am going to leave the microbes to Mr. Horowitz of the AIDS and EBOLA fame and Rick Martin to ferret out that which is disclosed and ongoing within the pages of our paper and through some of the more remarkable radio-talkers. Suffice it for me to say that I have written, right down to the nitty-gritty facts, of molecular genetics and the genetics of bacteria as well as on the subject of virology, DNA, RNA and related subjects. Indeed, there has not been funding for the publishing of the *Journals* with this information but it has appeared in series in *CONTACT*. Moreover, THIS IS WHY you don't have ability to publish—TO KEEP THE INFORMATION BURIED IF AT ALL POSSIBLE.

I trust that Mr. Martin has hooked up Horowitz with the "new" contact in radio who is blasting his way through astounding piles of our information with such as Dr. Coleman, Mark Phillips, Norio Hayakawa, and on and on goes the list.

We do what we can when we can, and that to the best of our ability, while then releasing it unto God and the ethers and praying that mankind will open his sleepy eyes.

ANTHRAX

I have said sufficient amounts of words on this topic and I understand there is a lot of additional print that will be brought to your attention through these other parties. It is imperative that YOU GET INFORMATION OF VALID NATURE THROUGH WALKING, TALKING HUMAN PHYSICAL BEINGS! We can't PROVE anything save through backup documentation and reflected Truth. Otherwise the topic is recognized as feasible or non-feasible REVELATION and prophecy. We are not into either of those activities.

[Editor's note: Rick Martin's dynamite recent interviews with Dr. Len Horowitz are presently being readied for inclusion in next week's CONTACT. For those of you who are serious about researching and understanding this most serious subject of superbugs and from whence they originate, it would be useful to go back to our 1/28/97 and 2/4/97 issues of CONTACT for earlier eye-opening information from Dr. Horowitz. Meanwhile, Commander Hatonn's writings on this subject go back over almost 10 years of presentations scattered throughout this newspaper, its predecessor, and the

Phoenix Journals.]

More will be shared on the topic of the anthrax vaccinations, etc., but you might well look carefully at the fact going around that your Commander-in-Chief, Mr. President *Clinton*, is refusing to take the injections, and **that** with a trip of immediate taking to such as Bosnia. Anthrax doesn't need summertime OR permission (unless the infections are spread intentionally) to infect anyone available. Even if this turns out to be some kind of sick "joke" on you-the-people, PAY ATTENTION. Is Mr. Clinton somehow not at risk of such assaults? Well, as a matter of fact, yes—he is not at risk. YOU ARE AT RISK.

LIGHT SHOWS

I find the Japanese incidents of illness through light pulses on the televisions to be humorous if not downright funny. Readers, ANY microbe can be sent through any light system these days and so too can programmed insanity and mind control. So, the trial balloon paid off and the testing got through and neither the broadcasters nor the Japanese authorities ever realized what had hit them. This is a circumstance from "outer space" systems pinpointing exactly the targeted population.

Well, I think you might want to turn to more "possibility thinking" and consider this: THERE IS NOW TECHNOLOGY WITH CONSTRUCTED EQUIPMENT WITH LASERS SO LARGE, SO DEADLY AND SO SOPHISTICATED TO SIMPLY VAPORIZE TARGETS FROM THE SIZE OF CITIES TO SPECIFIC "HEADQUARTERS". These can be bounced off any satellite or "body" available and wham, zoom, the target is just no longer anywhere to be located. This is clean and simple and it has been suggested, in response to some of my own projections, that this simply "uncreates" in massive ways without bloodletting or violence, as you think of violence. Is God using a great vacuum cleaner to sweep up debris of a Satanic nightmare? That, we have to realize, is up to God. However, if this be physical, it will be operated by the minds and hands of man and that becomes your nightmare in new costume.

Will the Aliens use these things? It depends on what YOU mean by the term Alien. It will be used by some who, certainly, are extraterrestrials because anyones not rooted to the ground are E.T.s.

Stop your silliness and face the orchestra, readers, for I never claimed to be anything save what I am, and if you chose to train yourselves otherwise, so be it. This is the time of the GREAT PURIFICATION of Earth and the time of the great revelations unfolding. Did you think it to be a magic show-and-tell that would not touch your beings? You can experience the worst or the best according to the level of your KNOWING.

What, dear ones, DID YOU THINK THE GREAT RAPTURE WOULD BE? Religiously indoctrined persons tout THE only way to salvation is through the blood of someone they murdered, That is not fully satisfactory to the cause of GOD OF CREATION who loves and holds within HIMSELF the souls of mankind. How much "*RAPTURE*" do you want? If it means vaporization by LIGHT, is that sufficient? How did you expect to get onto those clouds with anyone while never-minding the "savior" who took all your sins upon himself so you could remain totally irresponsible? Shocking? I hope so.

But you were promised it could not be accomplished, this great turn-about, through violence and Satanic intent, bloodletting, etc.? "It", as to the perfection of God, can't be perfected through any other routing

than the CREATING THROUGH THE GIFTS OF GOD. That does not mean that there will not be wars, rumors of wars, devastation, good things, and/or total annihilation or totally new creations upon the Earth in the CONSCIOUSNESS OF WHAT MAN HAS BECOME.

THIS is why, however, our teams are LEFT OUT OF ANY SUCH UPHEAVALS IN PARTICIPATION. Love and Peace can never be achieved through anything save the insight, enlightenment, and LOVE OF GOD CREATOR—all else is simply experience. When all is said and the game finished—only that remnant and the Ancients with their instructions will be remaining to bond, again, man to God. Will this be great numbers or only the very few? Well, at this reading it doesn't look too good for interested parties, sans violence, to complete the journey—DOES IT?

The great and fierce "Titans" will clash and battle, kill and maim for it is THE WAY of MAN. "Except these days be cut short there would be no living thing remaining!" Frightening? Enough so to frighten you OUT OF YOUR VIOLENT WAYS? Oh, no? What shall you do—send more of your babies off to war to die as gun-fodder or microbe food? Will the battles be waged over goodness or gold? I think you know that answer and do not find lesser definition in "gold" being whatever the color of wealth might be. Did you think it would be a romp through the garden of good and evil and you would somehow simply be divested of all touchy-feely from the involved?

Is Dharma going to somehow run for the hills with angels? No, we are orderly and reasonably going to rearrange the purposes of having hills and valleys, sovereignty and growth. Man will bring upon himself, at his own hands, his demise, according to that which HE KNOWS IS DESERVING OF HIS DEEDS—GOD HAS TO DO NOTHING FOR SATAN IS ALIVE AND WELL ON PLANET EARTH. Does such a statement mean that God is also "*evil*"? No, it means that good and evil are both concepts of a WHOLE IDEA. And ALL are the projections made manifest from and by THE THOUGHTS OF GOD.

FORCE AND POWER

There is physical force and then there is the "power" of the Elite who control physical force. Ah, but God controls all other POWER AND SO-CALLED "FORCE". These come from the THOUGHT OF GOD to the actual FORCE OF UNIVERSAL PHYSICS. If, for example, you rush forward and jump into the path of an oncoming train moving at full-speed capability, you are going, without much doubt, to sustain quite a bit of FORCE upon your physical being. Probably enough force will be applied to quite dead your mechanical being—releasing your nice, compliant soul to its own reward. Is this a dirty deed of God? How about the train? How about taking responsibility for SELF and put the TRUTH where it belongs?

SO—WHEN?

Ah, back to that old petition of "when"? Well, readers, if the Plan 2000 of the adversary's Elite is destined or expected to be completed and operable with all men and nations enslaved by those would-be-kings, I suggest that this year or next will certainly be "interesting". Since much needs doing in the trenches of God's bevy of doers, I would suggest that things might well start bursting loose as we write—and they are. Do you think Mr. Clinton's silly garbage about keeping troops in Bosnia is "new"? No, it is mandatory because the very Emergency Powers are based on upheaval in Bosnia—exactly as Bush declared while he was President. 'Tis only YOU with your rear-end uncovered—nice ostriches. THAT is simply another

viable excuse and distraction so that you no longer even object when you are left totally without protection in the nation and wide open to whatever the Big Brothers want to do to you. Who is going to help you? God? Oh, I don't think God is going to intervene into your intentionally perceived escapades. You wouldn't actually want GOD to stop your Blue Beam RAPTURE would you? Holographs are exactly that—whole pictures of NOTHING save light.

So, were the lights over Phoenix some UFOs? NO! They were simply Holographic projections all the way from Area 51 in Nevada. You don't even have to get off your ground bases anymore, and hardware and troops are simply a bad problem in logistics for the technicians.

Will "WE" go on the air and project truth as in speech-making, etc.? No. We have been there and done that and my people have been killed, ridiculed, stripped of all property and generally targeted for destruction. God does NOT coerce nor intervene in YOUR FREE-WILLACTIVITIES. Agreements between the "powers that be", however, cover pretty carefully the limitations of what and who the bastards of the universe can harm, either physically or mindwise. Are you among us or do you remain waggling on the fence trying to make up that "conscious brain" as to what you can "buy" in this old mental game? GOD NEVER HAS AND NEVER SHALL—CHANGE. GOD KNOWS HIS CREW! I suggest YOU make sure YOU know GOD!

By the way, some of you gather in your "guilt" complexes and go hither and yon to the golf courses or the private clubs and proclaim a need to "take time to smell the roses". Oh? I don't think that is what was meant by that statement of run-off-from-your-responsibilities and whack a bunch of silly little balls around the only park settings left in your recognition. You who have chosen to run to the "easier" and more convenient places to make your way—blessings and good luck! You will find that "remoteness dilution" shall be your undoing. You will find that it becomes more and more convenient and easier to NOT MAKE THE EFFORT of keeping up with either readings or personal participation—and before you know it, the game is over for you for you will not have realized when living comfortably and in a good life-style has replaced the basic need of participation with God. Enjoy the luxury NOW for the days of such games with self are quite limited.

"But how can we do our work if we can't get that which we need with which to accomplish it?" What mean ye? IF YE BE OF GOD AND HAVE FAITH IN THAT TRUST OF GOD—<u>YE CANNOT</u> <u>HAVE OTHER THAN THAT WHICH YE NEED!</u> It simply may not appear as YOU EXPECT IT TO BE.

In consideration of contracts, gold holdings for collateral, contributions to our work, etc.: Please KNOW that your intentions are FIRST noted and your charades equally noted. Good intent is always the bearer of the TRUTH. But nonetheless, man is created to be a thinking, curious and individual process of God's expression, so enjoy the curiosity of even the most mundane things for therein lies the whole of it.

Today the barrage of inquiries is on the level of "fear" as the Asian markets and economies become more and more unstablized. This is planned chaos and you are to both witness and inquire—but you don't need fortune-telling, you only need to GET INFORMATION.

Where and how do you get that information? Well, you can start by realizing that I can sort information

rapidly and offer you quite a bit of "stuff" which needs attention—right here in this resource. Will I "revelate"? No, but I will offer you what is available from sources I deem worthy and pretty much hitting the target of fact along the way. And yes, there is a network of interested parties "out there" who find bits and pieces of focus information relative to individual subjects and can pretty much glean worthy information, and we usually have it within minutes, or at the least hours, of it being made available. We, I repeat, are not your gurus—only your brethren with discernment and judgement KNOWLEDGE.

Our team gets such as "Nick's" information and that is enough identification to suffice. We give this person total credit in many different ways as to insight and possibilities so he is always delighted when we focus on and offer that which he has perceived—correctly, I might add. To example, I will simply ask for Dharma to retype this bulletin just received, here into this writing. No, we don't use scanners at this computer. We also note that the computer is again being tampered with and we welcome the attention but object to the negative discharge of energy surges which damage the equipment. So, surveillance teams, please stop the overkill for we are not hiding nor efforting to keep immediate information FROM YOU.

12/19/97 [Thank you, L.G. & M. B.]

NICK'S OPTIONS SPECULATOR

[QUOTING:]

ANOTHER MAJOR FAILURE STUNS JAPAN

You are witnessing the most extraordinary time in the markets of our lives. Overnight, the Japanese announced another major bankruptcy. Toshaku Group—one of Japan's largest—failed.

In all my years in this business, I have never seen so many large failures spread so quickly. I truly am baffled at the lack of understanding or reporting of what's going on in Asia.

My extensive Asian contacts are livid. Japanese and Korean companies are failing. Vast numbers of other failures are imminent. Executives are jumping out of windows. Plants are shutting down. Millions of people have lost their jobs. [H: And this is just for *starters*.]

The price of gold in Korea has doubled. [H: Note just today's news brings information of a newly elected *Democratic* leader in South Korea while the famine, etc., continues to control in North Korea.] (Gold is denominated in dollars, and the Korean currency has lost half its value against the dollar.) Food and energy prices are shooting out of sight. People are literally starving, being wiped out wholesale.

The U.S. caused the last Great Depression, of the Roaring 20s. Japan will cause the wipeout of the Soaring 90s.

This premium newsletter really shows its value in a situation like this. Great, great trading opportunities are arising. The most significant financial event of our times is being virtually ignored. The vested interests do not want to cause a panic. But if you are headed for the slaughterhouse—as anyone with money in the

stock or bond markets is—you should be panicked. [H: Suddenly you might all begin to realize the REAL viability of the loan program to the Institute and the ability to use funds while also holding some collateral values in the only commodity upon which a world REALLY bases its wealth-value units. Are there any of you regular readers remaining who don't NOW think the doubling of gold is feasible? It is the commodity upon which the games are based in general. It must also be obvious that we are also among THE VERY, VERY FEW who have honorable intentions and actions toward making the way and forming valid projects in a coming time of total devastation and chaos. In spite of everything that could be thrown at our teams, we SHALL PREVAIL and we will hold just about the only usable security around.] [Editor's note: To contact the Pheonix Institute For Research & Education, Ltd., please call 805-822-0601 during normal West Coast business hours—that is, until the phone lines are kaput due to impending earthquake activity!]

Now if you live on an island—if you make your living picking up coconuts from the trees and fish from the sea—these Asian events are not important to you. But for the rest of us, we are talking about a global depression. We are talking about a global financial wipeout. [H: I might point out to you, however, that even if you pick up coconuts from places, say, like Guam, that sustained record winds, these will blow away your coconuts and uproot your coconut trees, and harvest will be negative. You got gusts of 236 mph (highest recorded on your planet) in this past little storm. Wow, we KNOW there will be sustained winds globally of a base of 250 mph. DO YOU HAVE YOUR ROUND, AERODYNAMICALLY CONSTRUCTED HOGAN? IS IT IN YOUR PLANS? WHY NOT? OR, DO YOU SIMPLY NOT MAKE SUCH "NEGATIVE" PLANS? AGAIN, GOOD LUCK.]

The crisis started by hammering the Philippines, then Indonesia, then Malaysia. Now it has wiped out Korea—formerly the world's 11th largest economy. It is beginning to destroy Japan. This financial crisis has devastated one-half the world's major economies. It won't be long before it affects the other half.

Corporations, banks and brokerage firms, factories and manufacturing facilities are being wiped out. These are some of the biggest, world-class institutions on Earth. Yet no one wants you to know.

I find Wall Street's misinformation and spin campaign incredible. You are witnessing the most significant financial event of three generations—the biggest wipeouts, bankruptcies and failures the world has ever seen. But these events are being virtually ignored.

Wall Street's attempt to mitigate these events is nothing short of fraud. Trust me, my friends. They know what's going on. They know how serious this is. They don't want you to know how close the world financial system is to meltdown.

In a desperate backlash, the [South] Koreans just elected former socialist dissident Kim Dae Jung as their new president. Talk about a success story. This man went from death row and an appointment with the hangman, to prison, to house arrest, and now to PRESIDENT.

Look folks, the solutions the IMF and other financial Einsteins are offering don't come close to solving Asia's problems. In fact, these problems cannot be solved, short of a complete wipeout. Normally, this wipeout would be a healthy market reaction, striving to correct excesses. But these excesses have gotten too big. The adjustments are so large, they will bring on wholesale slaughter.

Tokyo and Seoul are hoping to use their age-old formula of exporting their way out of problems. But neither the markets nor the capital exist for that to happen. The IMF is totally incapable of analyzing the problem, offering solutions to the problem, or administering the problem. Besides that, they are broke. [H: Ah, but they won't be when they realize and utilize the values in such as Bonus Contract 3392-181, will they? Just which "side" do YOU believe will hit the jackpot first?]

We are beyond any kind of numerical solution the IMF could offer. Korea is at the heart of the problem. But despite rhetoric to the contrary, their new president is so anti-capitalist, he was labeled a dissident and thrown in prison for years. He is definitely the wrong man, at the wrong time.

Now, here's how these events will unfold:

You will get barraged by p.r. spin from the financial establishment that the Asian problem has been solved. Despite this, the stock, bond and currency markets will keep on collapsing, with occasional rallybacks.

The high-flying U.S. stock market is the last market to react to the 50% wipeout that's occurred so far in Asia. This is to be expected. Asians hold over a trillion dollars of U.S. debt. Do you really think they will continue to finance soaring U.S. trade deficits, as their domestic economies collapse? Do you think politically they can keep on financing U.S. deficits, while that same capital is desperately needed at home?

At some point their \$45 billion and \$10 billion injections here and there will evaporate. They will be forced to repatriate their capital, i.e., bring it home. When the market realizes what is about to happen, look out below.

This has big ramifications for several key U.S. markets. Most obvious is stocks. By this time next year, the Dow will be at 4000. That's just a 50% wipeout. Some of the world's wealthiest and fastest-growing economies have already suffered that drop.

As you go Christmas shopping, everything seems to be going so well. America has its best employment numbers in 25 years. [H: But, just WHO produces the numbers for your information/disinformation consumption?] But reality is that U.S. government, corporations and consumers are all highly leveraged. [H: People individual are to the limits with their credit cards and going under by the hundreds of thousands as credit is now used and the piper is having to be paid or bankruptcy strikes everything and one along the line of the economy. Christmas is just more debt piled upon that which is still outstanding for the prior years. It is not a "merry" Season, readers.] They are deeply in debt. Everything from U.S. stocks, real estate, the dollar, and the capital assets of U.S. corporations are grossly overvalued. A huge price must soon be paid for these excesses.

You mean to tell me the stock markets of the world's fastest growing economies have lost over half their value—and the U.S. stock market is not far behind? Of course it is. You want to be positioned to profit from a falling U.S. stock market.

To sum up...this Asian crisis is not a temporary, passing event. It is decades of mistakes. And the reasons the Asian markets are collapsing apply double to the U.S.

It's a shame the U.S. media refuses to report the runs on banks; the huge loans being called; the major bankruptcies; the plants being closed. They refuse to tell you the severity of the financial crisis. When these events occur in the U.S. market, they will be even more silent.

Folks, this is the start of the great global depression. Don't believe it? Take a trip to Seoul or Tokyo. Their economies and markets are falling apart. And these are the guys who supplied the capital to keep America going.

Their banks grossly overvalued assets like real estate? Well guess what, so do U.S. banks. Their markets are highly leveraged, without adequate capital, deeply in debt? That's doubly true in the U.S.

Wall Street says everything is going so well. Then why is Asia—the world's strongest economic region, and the key to the global economy—**BEING WIPED OUT**?

Nick Guarino, 12-19-97

[END OF QUOTING]

Thank you, Sir.

So, if your attitude remains "Eat, drink and make Mary," I suggest you carefully consider your stance, for the part about "tomorrow I may die" might well become your obituary. The old joke about "going out happy while shaking the bed" may well gain a chuckle, but the facts are that "going out" is the fact of your so-called expected future, and not the funny-paper's Hustler bit of speculation. Where were you "when the lights went out over the White Cliffs of Dover"? If you don't know of what I speak—GO LOOK IT UP!

Good morning.

CHAPTER 14

REC #2 HATONN

FRI., DEC. 19, 1997 3:05 P.M. YR. 11, DAY 125

FRI., DEC. 19, 1997

AND THEN THERE WERE NONE...

There is an intensely interesting and important book entitled *THE SURVIVAL OF CIVILIZATION* compiled of selected papers by JOHN D. HAMAKER with supporting evidence by DONALD A. WEAVER that you should have and study well, readers. You near year 2000 and the survival of civilization and existence are severely threatened. The only information I have is Hamaker-Weaver Publishers, Michigan and California, ISBN 0-941550-00-1.

On January 11, 1983, Buckminster Fuller wrote the following: "I have received and read John Hamaker's *THE SURVIVAL OF CIVILIZATION*. Well done—completely convincing.

"I explained in *CRITICAL PATH* my whole grand strategy for what I could see would be the most effective way in which I might carry on. This does not include joining political forces with anyone. It does include using every opportunity afforded to clarify for those asking me to speak to them just what I think they might do to be effective in coping. I will tell all those inquiring of me about matters relevant to our survival that they had best read Hamaker's book *THE SURVIVAL OF CIVILIZATION*." Sig: Buckminster Fuller. And, on the pictured tombstone it reads: "*CIVILIZATION*. BORN 8000 B.C., DIED 1990 A.D."

Sobering of mind? Not nearly as much as I would like it to be.

I ask that Chapter 6, "Perspective", be reprinted here for your reading. Please note that this wouldn't be so dangerously looming ahead if it were observed today, the 19th of December 1997—BUT—this comes from information from the 1970s (two decades past). And YOU see how much has come to be, changed or *gone away* in those two decades for you don't need unseen angels to point out your plight as you come upon year 2000 and meet, head-on, the finalizing of the PLAN 2000.

[QUOTING:]

GLOBAL 2000

The Global 2000 Report to the President was commissioned in 1977 by President Carter and finally released in July, 1980 as a 3-volume work of over 1,000 pages. Mr. Carter explained its purpose in his Environmental Message to the Congress (May 23, 1977):

"Environmental problems do not stop at national boundaries. In the past decade, we and other nations have come to recognize the urgency of international efforts to protect our common environment. [H: Never mind the particular misstatements which are always a part of political rhetoric. Just pay attention to the decline of the values in all aspects of civilization and the physical world in relationship to every other part of the whole.]

"As part of this process, I am directing the Council on Environmental Quality, working in cooperation with the Environmental Protection Agency, the National Science Foundation, the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, and other appropriate agencies, to make a one-year study of the probable changes in the world's population, natural resources and environment through the end of the century. This study will serve as the foundation of our longer-term planning."

Before quoting a few of the report's findings, it is well to note, on these U.S. government projections, this word from Vol. 1, the summary ("Entering the Twenty-First Century"); "They do not predict what will occur. Rather, they depict conditions that are likely to develop if there are no changes in public policies. A keener awareness of the Nature of current trends, however, may induce changes that will alter these trends and the projected outcome."

Here then are a few of Global 2000's "Principal Findings":

- * Rapid growth in world population will hardly have altered by 2000... population will grow from 4 billion in 1975 to 6.35 billion in 2000. In terms of sheer numbers, population will be growing faster in 2000 than it is today, with 100 million people added each year compared with 75 million in 1975. [H: The FACTS ARE: The Earth, which is balanced for some 500 million people, has grown to an overwhelming number at the time of this writing to between 7 and 8 BILLION. This is in spite of diseases and famines.]
- * The large existing gap between the rich and the poor nations widens.
- * Significant losses of world forests will continue over the next 20 years as demand for forest products and fuelwood increases. The world's forests are now disappearing at the rate of 18 to 20 million hectares a year (an area half the size of California), with most of the loss occurring in the humid tropical forests of Africa, Asia, and South America.
- * Atmospheric concentrations of carbon dioxide and ozone-depleting chemicals are expected to increase at rates that could alter the world's climate and upper atmosphere significantly by 2050. Acid rain threatens damage to lakes, soils, and crops.
- * Extinctions of plant and animal species will increase dramatically. Hundreds of thousands of species—perhaps as many as 20 percent of all species on Earth—will be irretrievably lost as their habitats vanish.
- * Regional water shortages will become more severe. What are Global 2000's projections on climate change to the year 2000? It says this:

"Because climate has a profound effect on our lives and economies and has possible consequences for the future, we cannot ignore it, yet there are unresolved problems which make

statements about future climate very uncertain. This is to say, not enough is known about climate to provide us with a reliable predictive capability. Before the future climate can be reliably estimated, science must understand it well enough to build realistic quantitative models that relate cause and effect. Such models are yet primitive and incomplete."

And on the carbon dioxide crisis:

"Carbon dioxide increase is thought to produce a warming of the Earth by the so-called greenhouse effect. (p. 51, Vol. II)

"As discussed in Chapter 4 and in the climate section of this chapter, the experts are more or less evenly divided over the prospects for warming or cooling, and most felt the highest probability was for no change." (p. 337, Vol II)

[H: I don't want to scare your pants off (perhaps enough for you to keep them ON) but this does not take into consideration the now recognized capabilities of politicians and warriors to totally control these elements which were once left to Nature and evolvement.]

Therefore, in Table 12-46, "Summary of Impacts on the Environment" projections, the global, regional, and local climate effects are in every case given as "No impact projected". (p. 392)

This same table projects many forms of severe environmental devastation from expanding consumption of fossil fuel and nuclear energy technologies. It says this about carbon dioxide:

- * $\rm CO_2$ emissions will increase from 26 to 34 billion short tons per year, roughly double the $\rm CO_2$ emissions of the mid-1970s.
- * 446 million hectares of CO₂-absorbing forests will be lost.
- * Burning of much of the wood on 446 million hectares will produce more CO_2 . (446 million hectares equals 1,070,400,000 acres)
- * Decomposition of soil humus will release more CO_2 .
- * A doubling of the CO_2 concentration by 2050 could increase the average temperature of the Earth by about 3 degrees C, melting much of the polar ice.

And about Agriculture and Food:

"Land productivity is declining in many industrialized countries as well as LDCs (Less Developed Countries). Losses of range and farmland to desertification by 2000 could total 2,800 million hectares.... One half the total irrigated land is already damaged by waterlogging, salinization and alkalinization."

If it is not obvious at this point, it is important to realize that the projections given by this report, and those offered by John Hamaker, while similar in some ways, are fundamentally different in a number of

ways, including these three:

- 1. Hamaker's whole thesis emphasizes ecological problem solutions beginning now on a worldwide scale. *Global 2000* admittedly suggests no solutions, but concurs with Hamaker in asserting, "Prompt and vigorous changes in public policy around the world are needed to avoid or minimize these problems before they become unmanageable. Long lead times are required for effective action. If decisions are delayed until the problems become worse, options for effective action will be severely reduced." (p. 5, Vol. I)
- 2. Hamaker, to a great degree, performs the absolutely essential task of recognizing and understanding the many interactions and "feedbacks" within the whole man-environment ecology, and he realizes where we are in the long-term soil-climate cycle. In contrast, *Global 2000*, "the foundation of longer-term planning", took this approach:

"The elements of the Government's global model were not, of course, designed to be used together as an integrated whole. The constituent models were developed separately and at different times to serve the various projection needs of individual agencies (Vol. II, p. viii). [H: Wow, and how many "truths" might you have which are such that cannot even be integrated?]

"Exercises cutting feedback within integrated world models reveal that the omission of system linkages greatly influences the results of forecasts, which suggests that the Government's Global Model...is presenting a distorted picture of the probable future. The predictive error incurred by omissions of feedback is cumulative over time: in most cases it is not highly significant over a 5-year period, but becomes important in a 20-year period and may become paramount over a 50-year span." (Vol. II, p. 681)

John Hamaker has already made it abundantly clear that the errors of such a fragmented approach can become quite "paramount" in only a 5-year period at this point. The Report concludes Vol. I with the admission: "The inescapable conclusion is that the omission of linkages imparts an optimistic bias to the *Global 2000* study's (and the U.S. Government's) quantitative projections." (p. 45)

3. Hamaker's fundamental assumptions and perceptions of the present state of the biosphere—and of humanity's capacity to build up its health and fertility, should also be seen in sharp contrast to the assumptions and projections of the *Global 2000* authors. No better nor more important example of this could be presented than their views of the soil and future productivity therefrom.

This book's first six chapters have presumably made clear Hamaker's findings, findings that are based on the documented natural cycles and observable, easily-proven processes of fertility creation. The following section on the *Global 2000* views of soil, food and agriculture is needed to make unmistakably evident the distinctions between the two views on the most basic factor of health and survival. Certainly the truth in either or both views must be recognized and applied on an unprecedented scale if humanity is to prevent *either* the rapid and quickly irreversible socio-ecological decline and glaciation projected by Hamaker, *or* the relatively slower, eventually irreversible decline into misery conservatively projected by the U.S. Government—were those government projections valid. [H: Well, good friends, if the government makes predictions and they can control the outcome, what might be the outcome as to validity?]

[END OF QUOTING]

We are out of time for more sharing this evening. There are other things which claim our attention but, prior to closing this writing, I can only humbly speak to you who have so lovingly and willingly shared with such as the computer expenses, borne so willingly and silently by our children, Jeff and Alysia. And then you have allowed us to pour on the information quantity for at least another couple of issues of the paper. The loving generosity of others allowing us to keep on keeping on is beyond our capability of simple human projection. Your loving thoughts, cards, gifts and prayers (above all) have supported that network of scaffolding which allows us to go one more step in safety. Can we ever see into the future or must we always wait for unfoldment? I might see; you must wait; however, the mind will fill the gaps. For example, let us consider the handwork of the "Indian" woven vase sent from Utah. The loving hands which made it gave it life; the Clay's gift of last August gave it purpose. There are wondrous peacock feathers to balance its empty contents. May we always be given to take that moment in appreciation which brings love and beauty for even the most tiny moment in passage. And yes, Rays, the three bears are perfectly at home and cherished in their new place. Can't we marvel at the changes and happenings in our lives in such short months of transition?

Remember that it is so and share it with Jack; you really DO have to know when to hold them, know when to fold them—and be flexible to retain all possibilities and move beyond and into the greater recognition and plan of God. We have to allow and RELEASE those who cannot find their way or simply refuse to do so. Gifts from God must be properly accepted, lest they simply are taken away. When we do for others we are given gifts in abundance. When greed and ego take center stage—the stage all falls down. EARTH NEEDS A NEW STAGE. Salu.